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Corporate Information

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

TERRRET HPERERTRODBRAF
FIERITIRODBR A A
EB/KFRITERAT
BITRIT (P E) ARIQA

China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd
China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited

UBS Switzerland AG

ImtIR1T

AUDITOR BDO Limited ZEEm BB ERGERD
EBFBER AT
REGISTERED OFFICE Clarendon House A EE Clarendon House
2 Church Street 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11 Bermuda Hamilton HM11 Bermuda
PRINCIPAL OFFICE Rooms 2028-36, FERER
20/F Sun Hung Kai Centre 728 30 9%
30 Harbour Road Wanchai FREAP L2018
Hong Kong 2028-36 =
REGISTRAR Tricor Secretaries Limited WEERE BENEEKEERA A
(in Hong Kong) Level 54, Hopewell Centre (&H) 5
183 Queen’s Road East EFEAEBEBE 1835
Hong Kong BB 54 18
REGISTRAR MUFG Fund Services BEERNR MUFG Fund Services
(in Bermuda) (Bermuda) Limited (BHRE) (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North 4th Floor North
Cedar House Cedar House
41 Cedar Avenue 41 Cedar Avenue
Hamilton HM12 Hamilton HM12
Bermuda Bermuda
STOCK CODE 970 A& 9 5% 970
WEBSITE www.hk970.com At www.hk970.com
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Financial Highlights

Revenue for the financial year ended 31 March 2019 increased by
28.8% from HK$2,893,052,000 to HK$3,724,845,000 as compared
with the last financial year.

Gross profit for this financial year increased by 41.6% from
HK$399,025,000 to HK$564,937,000.

Other income for this financial year increased by 8.4% from
HK$83,576,000 to HK$90,634,000.

Selling and distribution costs and administrative expenses for this
financial year increased by 49.5% as compared with the same in the
last financial year.

No provision for litigation losses was recognised in automobiles
business for this financial year (2018: HK$12,976,000).

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 March 2019 was HK$97,429,000 (2018:
HK$664,565,000).

Earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company were
HK2.0 cents for this financial year as compared with HK14.9 cents

earnings per share in the last financial year.

No dividend was declared for this financial year (2018: nil).
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Financial Highlights
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Financial Highlights

Financial position: BI AR
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Total assets BE&E 3,933,651 3,907,033
Total liabilities B1ERTE 1,560,457 883,853
Net assets BEFE 2,373,194 3,023,180
Net tangible worth BREEFE 1,588,772 2,816,616
Financial Ratios: BIi& LR :
2019 2018
= —E\%
Gross profit margin ER=E 15.2% 13.8%
Return on equity MEE O )R &R 4.1% 22.2%
Current ratio TR ED H & 1.58 2.45
Gearing ratio BERBELE 36.8% 18.8%
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Chairman’s Statement

China’s economy grew at its slowest pace in 28 years in 2018, with
gross domestic product expanding at 6.6%, down 0.2 percentage
point from the previous year, according to the data released by
the National Bureau of Statistics of China. Despite the slowdown,
the growth rate for 2018 exceeded the target of about 6.5% set by
the Chinese government. The economy grew faster in 2017 for the
first time in seven years, but slowed again in 2018. For 2019, the
Chinese government targets growth at 6-6.5%, which was already
China’s slowest annual growth in nearly three decades. While
there are a number of positive signals, the Chinese economy still
faces downward pressure coming from the external environment.
China’s growth has been hit by a trade war with the United States
and government efforts to rein in a huge amount of debt in China’s
financial system.

During the financial year under review, the Group’s revenue
increased from HK$2.893 billion to HK$3.725 billion. Gross
profit for the financial year increased from HK$399.0 million to
HK$564.9 million. The auto business was still a major income
driver, accounting for approximately 88.8% of our business. Net
profit attributable to owners of HK$97.4 million was recorded in this
financial year compared with a net profit of HK$664.6 million in the
last financial year.

As the Group expected to record a substantial decrease in the net
profit for the year ended 31 March 2019 as compared with a net
profit of approximately HK$667 million for the year ended 31 March
2018, the Board had issued a profit warning announcement on 17
May 2019.
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Chairman’s Statement

CHINA’S LUXURY GOODS AND
AUTOMOBILES MARKETS

There are quite a few ongoing updates and research reports from
reputable authorities, investment banks and global research houses
mentioning that China’s luxury goods market has cooled down but
is still growing in a healthy way. According to the “Bain & Company’s
2019 China Luxury Report” issued by Bain & Company on 18
March 2019, spending on luxury goods is expected to increase by
10% in 2019, down from 20% in the previous two years. In 2018,
mainland Chinese consumers spent 170 billion yuan (US$25.3
billion), representing a 20% growth in the previous year on luxury
goods. Chinese consumers made 27% of their luxury purchases in
China in 2018, up from 23% in 2015, and Bain anticipates that such
share will increase to 50% by 2025. However, mainland Chinese
consumers’ total spending on luxury items accounted for 33% of
the global total last year, according to Bain. The cooling down of
China’s luxury goods market is due to the impact of the slowing
economy on people’s incomes and personal wealth, which will deter
China’s affluent classes from buying luxury items and the present
condition that real estate prices are likely to flatten, reducing the
positive wealth effect on Chinese households.

According to the sixth edition of an annual study titled “2019
True-Luxury Global Consumer Insight” published by The Boston
Consulting Group (BCG), a global management consulting firm and
the world’s leading advisor on business strategy, released on 17
April 2019, the global luxury market was worth €920 billion in 2018,
a sum combining €590 billion spent on experiential luxury, up 5%
over 2017, and the €330 billion spent on luxury consumer goods (up
3%). In 2025, it is expected to be worth €1.256 trillion, growing at
an average annual rate of 4.6%. In 2018, 30% of the world’s luxury
spending, equivalent to €278 billion, was made by 18.5 million
consumers, 4% of all luxury goods consumers worldwide. Chinese
consumers played a leading role as “True-luxury consumers”, whose
share of the global luxury market is expected to increase from 35%
to 40% in 2025, accounting for 75% of growth in 2018-25, and by
millennials. The study further states that Generation Z, being people
born in the last two decades, currently only accounts for 4% of the
luxury market. Attention has to be drawn to the resale market, which
is now worth €22 billion and is expected to grow at a rate of 12% per

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2% & E F R A
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Chairman’s Statement

annum, reaching €31 billion in 2021, mainly fuelled by e-tailing sites.
This segment accounts for 7% of the luxury good market, estimated
at €330 billion, with growth rate four times faster than that of the
traditional luxury goods market.

For the global luxury car market, China is still the most important
market. According to an article titled “Luxury Car Brands Expect
to Keep Bucking China’s Sluggish Trend in 2019” issued by Caixin
Global Limited, a member of China’s most influential financial media
group on 28 January 2019, it mentioned global luxury-car brands
are predicting strong sales growth in China this year after bucking
the downward trend last year in an automobile market that saw its
first annual sales decline in nearly three decades. Luxury car players
are positive towards the market in 2019 including Volkswagen AG’s
Audi which is expected to sell a total of 682,000 units in the world’s
largest car market this year, up 2.87% from 2018 while the brand
sold 663,000 vehicles in China from the previous year. Additionally,
BMW AG predicts its China sales will rise by 10%, extending a
7.7% increase last year when it sold a total of 640,000 units in the
country.

Luxury car market continues to grow steadily based on an article
named “China’s luxury car market maintains steady growth” issued
on 29 May 2019 by SHINE, an English-language newspaper in
China published since October 1999 and owned by Shanghai United
Media Group with the latest information in Shanghai. It mentioned
that China’s luxury car market remains on a steady growth path
despite weak market sentiment in overall car sales. According to a
recent report issued by China Passenger Car Association, China’s
luxury sedan segment grew around 18.8% in the first 11 months of
this year as compared with that of the same period last year.

MSEBENERSIZEHEMS - BRNEE
RB22018 BT - W TEET 4% LA 12% &) F 3 & K
BE RIZTZ—FERI10ERT - T2H
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Car Brands Expect to Keep Bucking China’s
Sluggish Trend in 2019)] X E + EFIZE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Auto Dealerships

During the year under review, revenue of the ultra-luxury automobile
distributorships of Bentley, Lamborghini and Rolls-Royce recorded
an approximately 29.3% increase to approximately HK$3.194
billion, as compared with that of approximately HK$2.470 billion
in the previous financial year. All our 3 brands, Rolls-Royce,
Bentley and Lamborghini recorded sales growth. Rolls-Royce had
performed the best among the Group’s others brands in terms of the
increase in revenue and gross profit with total sales of approximately
HK$1.540 billion, representing an approximately 47% rise as
compared with that of approximately HK$1.046 billion recorded
in the previous financial year. 203 units of Rolls-Royce were sold,
representing an increase of approximately 20% as compared with
169 units sold in the previous financial year. Among all models of
Rolls-Royce sold during this financial year, Phantom performed the
best in terms of revenue and gross profit contribution.

According to the article titled “Rolls-Royce Celebrated Success
in China at 2019 Shanghai Motors Show” under the brand’s
official website issued on 16 April 2019, Rolls-Royce announced a
remarkable business record in 2018 and achieved its greatest sales
result in the brand’s 115-year history, with 4,107 cars delivered
to customers in over 50 countries worldwide. The Greater China
market is a significant market in the marque’s 2018 success story,
becoming the brand’s second largest market. The brand anticipated
that the Greater China market will, at some point in the not too
distant future, become Rolls-Royce Motor Car’s largest single
market.

Lamborghini recorded a rise in sales during this financial year
with a total of approximately HK$256.2 million, representing a
98% increase in sales as compared with that of approximately
HK$129.7 million during the previous financial year. 53 units of
Lamborghini were sold, representing an increase of approximately
83% as compared with 29 units sold in the previous financial year.
Among all models of Lamborghini sold during this financial year,
Urus performed the best in terms of revenue and gross profit
contribution.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Bentley recorded an approximately 8% increase in sales to
approximately HK$1.397 billion during this financial year, as
compared with that of approximately HK$1.294 billion in the
previous financial year. 437 units of Bentley were sold, representing
an increase of 39% as compared with 314 units sold in the previous
financial year. Among all models of Bentley sold during this financial
year, Bentayga, the new SUV model, recorded the greatest number
of units sold and performed the best in terms of revenue and gross
profit contribution.

Gross profit margins of sale of Lamborghini and Rolls-Royce
increased during this financial year due to the increase of both
quantity and gross profit margin. For Bentley, gross profit margin
recorded a decline during this financial year.

Revenue of after-sales services recorded a rise of approximately
14% during this financial year as compared with that of the previous
financial year. Accordingly, the gross profit margin decreased
slightly from approximately 45.4% in the previous financial year to
approximately 44.3% in this financial year.

Non-auto Dealerships

During the year under review, the sales of our non-auto dealerships
division recorded a decrease in revenue of approximately 1%
to approximately HK$320.3 million as compared with that of
approximately HK$323.5 million in the previous financial year.

Gross profit margin of our non-auto dealerships division decreased
during this financial year from approximately 35% in the previous
financial year to approximately 32.1% in this financial year.

Among all non-auto dealerships division during this financial year,
Bang & Olufsen performed the best in terms of revenue and gross
profit contribution.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Others

During the financial period under review, our others division, which
includes the new business of provision of property management
services, sub-lease services, catering services and film investment,
recorded revenue and gross profit of approximately HK$96.8 million
and approximately HK$68.7 million respectively.

Based on the calculation result, the profit guarantee of not less than
RMB50,000,000 has been achieved for the period between 1 April
2018 and 31 March 2019 in relation to the property management
business.

Investment

The Group completed its acquisition of 6,519,358 shares,
approximately 15.09% shareholding in Bang & Olufsen A/S
(“B&0”), a company incorporated in Denmark whose shares are
listed and traded on Nasdaq Copenhagen, on 16 December 2016.
The consideration for the acquisition of the shares as stated in
the relevant circular dated 25 November 2016 was approximately
HK$494 million.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group held 6,000,000 shares of B&O,
approximately 13.89% of its total issued shares, as a long term
investment for capital appreciation and distributions. The carrying
amount of this investment represented approximately 10.8% of the
total assets of the Group as at 31 March 2019.

No dividend was generated from this investment to the Group during
this financial year.

During this financial year, the Group sold 519,358 shares of B&O
and hence realized approximately HK$97 million.

During this financial year, the share price of B&O was traded in a
range of DKK58.3 to DKK176 per share. As at 31 March 2019, the
share price of B&O closed at DKK59.9 per share and the total fair
value of the shares of B&O held by the Group was approximately
HK$426 million. As compared to 31 March 2018, the fair value of
this investment decreased by approximately HK$865 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

This equity investment was irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature. According to the relevant
accounting standard, equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income is measured at fair value. Dividend income
is recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investments. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 was
approximately HK$3,724.8 million, representing an increase of
approximately 28.8% as compared with that of approximately
HK$2,893.1 million recorded in the previous year. Such increase
was mainly due to the increase in sales of automobiles, provision of
after-sales services and audio products. The table below sets out
the Group’s revenue for the year indicated:

AAAEER /IR EREBEEIEE - &)
ZERE N AR IEE /R A A ERT AR
EEBAZKE - RIBHESHER - BOA
B AHEMEERAZKRERERAAESR
B - REBWATIREBEE®ER - RIERBKRAS
BRI BWEE D R ERANRNERR © EAF
W M EEDREME2ERAERL TS EH

DHEEIRE

g JEI -
W zs

(E_FE-NF=ZA=+—"HLLFE  F5£H
2 WS #953,724,800,000/8 7 © BEF 5
2 #32,893,100,000 % JT1% hN4928.8% ° Wz
ENEZRHNABIHEE RESERBES
BEMEINAY - TREIIAEEBRATEE
ZWEs

FY2019 FY2018 Changes
“E-NERBEE “E-\ERREE 28
Contribution Contribution
Revenue Source BHERF HK$°000 (%) HK$’000 (%) HK$'000 (%)
TET BRE (%) TR BEL(%) TET %
Automobile segment RENH
Sales of automobiles AEHE 3,193,687 85.7% 2,469,539 85.30% 724,148 29.3%
Provision of after-sales services RIEERRE 114,029 3.1% 100,036 3.50% 13,093 14.0%
Sub-total et 3,307,716 88.8% 2,569,575 88.80% 738,141 28.7%
Non-automobile dealerships FRENENT
segment 320,315 8.6% 328,477 11.20% (3,162) (1.0%)
Others Hit 96,814 2.6% - - 96,814 -
Total o 3,724,845 100.0% 2,893,052 100% 831,793 28.8%
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019
increased by approximately 41.6% to approximately HK$564.9
million (31 March 2018: approximately HK$399.0 million). Such
increase in the gross profit was mainly due to the increase in gross
profit from sales of automobiles and increase in incentive bonuses
offered by automobile suppliers in this financial year which were
deducted from the cost of sales. The gross profit of the sales of
automobiles increased by approximately 42.7% from approximately
HK$240.4 million in the previous financial year to approximately
HK$343.0 million in this financial year.

Other Income and net gains

Other income and net gains was approximately HK$90.6 million for
the year ended 31 March 2019, representing approximately 8.4%
increase from approximately HK$83.6 million in the last financial
year. Such increase was mainly due to increase in income from
advertising, exhibitions and other service income.

Selling and distribution costs

The selling and distribution costs increased by approximately 29.2%
which were mainly due to the increase in marketing expenses,
depreciation, staff costs and additional consumption levy.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$89.9
million. The changes were mainly due to the expenses incurred in
relation to the acquisitions and investments in debt securities and
the increase in amortisation of other intangible asset.

Finance Costs

The finance costs of the Group increased by approximately 152.3%
from approximately HK$16.2 million in the previous financial year to
approximately HK$41.0 million in this financial year. The increase
was mainly due to the increase in borrowing for the acquisition of the
property used by the Group as showrooms and office.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ¥ @A R A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s total assets as at 31 March 2019 were approximately
HK$3,933.7 million (31 March 2018: approximately HK$3,907.0
million) which were mainly financed by the total equity and the total
liabilities of approximately HK$2,373.2 million (31 March 2018:
approximately HK$3,023.2 million) and HK$1,560.5 million (31
March 2018: approximately HK$883.9 million) respectively.

As disclosed in the note 29 (b) to the interim condensed
consolidated financial statements contained in the 2018/2019
interim report of the Company, the value of the intangible asset,
goodwill and the deferred tax liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition of Reliable Intelligence International Limited (currently
known as San Sparkle Culture Investment Limited) and its
subsidiaries were stated HK$437,879,000, HK$61,116,000 and
nil respectively. The audited value of the other intangible asset,
goodwill and the deferred tax liabilities initially recognised upon the
acquisition date during the year were adjusted to approximately
HK$413,211,000, HK$189,087,000 and HK$103,303,000
respectively. The changes were mainly due to recognition of
deferred tax liabilities on the intangible asset. The Board considered
that such adjustments do not have material impact on the
2018/2019 interim report.

Cash Flow

The Group’s cash at banks and in hand as of 31 March 2019 were
approximately HK$185.2 million (31 March 2018: approximately
HK$155.7 million) which were mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”") and Renminbi (“RMB”).

The Group’s primary uses of cash are to repay the Group’s
borrowings, to pay for purchases of inventories and to fund
the Group’s working capital and normal operating costs. Such
increase was mainly attributable to increase in operating profit and
borrowings.

The Directors consider that the Group will have sufficient working
capital for its existing operations and financial resources for
financing future business expansion and capital expenditures.

RBETRBHER

R-ZZE—NE=ZA=+—H8 AE@BZHEE

EE #)/53,933,700,000 8 L (= — N\F=A

—+—H : #3,907,000,0008 7T) * £Z A

%2w3momw5ﬂ:%fﬂﬁiﬂi+*
© #93,023,200,000 8 T ) 2 #E o 4B 58 N 49

1560500000,%7z<_ —NF=A=+—
B : 49883,900,000/870) Z @B ERE -

BAARRB TN/ ZT— NP EBHREFH
#%%%ﬁé%%ﬁﬁwﬁmuﬁ&ﬁ'ﬁ
BEREERAT CRBEREBRREULEERR
AR REMBARRKERBHEERZER
BE BHEKEEREABRZEEDRHE
/£ 437,879,000 7T * 61,116,000 T K E °
FARKERBRNLERZEMEREE &
EREERIBEABZEEZBESAARE
#) /413,211,000 7T * 189,087,000 Jt M
103,303,000 %7t - 8B EZ RN ERER
EFZﬁLﬁEEEO§$Ewﬁ ERAE

YT )/ ZE-NHEREERKEKR

B/ 48R
= °

BReRg

RZE-NF=ZA=+—8 x5EZ#ETK
FIEIR S #9/5185,200,0008 L (—E—N\F=
AZ=4+—H : 155,700,000/ 70) * HYEBELA
Br((Br) RARE (AR EHE -

AEETENARSEELAEEEE B
BEREZHE  UWRRAEEZEERENIE
BREKAEE - BRABMEZZANE LR
M R GBI INFTEL

EERR/ ARBAGBRHNEEES  BRUE
NEREEBHT - BEBERWUBER - 7]
RAREBIRMEAHARHATES
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Property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments

W% BERRBERBANHEAERER

As at As at
31.3.2019 31.3.2018 Changes
RZZE—-AE RZZ—N\F
=A=+—H =ZA=+—H BE)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET
Property, plant and equipment
ME - W RERE 242,273 92,527 149,746
Prepaid lease payments (non-current)
A HEIE (GERE)) 564,982 - 564,982
Prepaid lease payments (current)
TBRHEERE (RE) 17,183 - 17,183
824,438 92,527 731,911

The increase in property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments was mainly arisen from the acquisition of Beijing Wenfu
Hengye Technology Development Co., Ltd.* Jt R i 1B 2RI E
BRAT]) (“Wenfu”), a property holding company during the year
ended 31 March 2019. The Group initially recorded approximately
HK$130.7 million as additions in property, plant and equipment
and approximately HK$575.9 million as prepaid lease payments
for the transaction. For more details about the property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments, please refer to the notes
16 and 17 to the financial statements on the pages 224 to 226 of
this report. For the details of the transaction, please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 6 March 2018 and 3 September
2018 and the circular dated 24 April 2018.

ME  BERLEREMREREENHES
HREBE - Z-NFE=ZA=+—HIFEKE
—RWEER AT R EEEREERER
ARl ([XE) TR - REBBRZER B FE5
#7130,700,000 B TTIEAREME - HBE LR
1% & %7575,900,000 8 L E AT A EFKIE °
A% KERIELRENHEREZES
B BRMAREF 224 FE 226 B 2 HHKR
K16 217 - AR S ZFHE  B2HA
AEHBEAZETE - NF=ZARNABEZ=ZZE—N
FAAZAZAMEBHA=-ZT— N\FNA
ZHVB 7K e

Goodwill and other intangible assets EERHMEREE
As at As at
31.3.2019 31.3.2018 Changes
R=ZB-h& RN-ZT-/\F
=R=+—-BA =A=1+—H g
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FExT TR TETT
Goodwill
kS 397,545 206,171 191,374
Other intangible assets
Hi | & E 386,877 393 386,484
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The increase in goodwill and other intangible assets was mainly
arisen from the acquisition of Reliable Intelligence International
Limited (currently known as San Sparkle Culture Investment Limited)
and its subsidiaries which are principally engaged in property
management service business in the PRC during the year ended 31
March 2019. For more details about goodwill and other intangible
assets, please refer to the notes 18, 19 and 44 to the financial
statements on pages 227 to 228, 229 and 273 to 279 of this report
respectively. For the details of the transaction, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 25 June 2018,

Investment in films

As at 31 March 2109, the Group recorded approximately HK$301.8
million of investment in films (31 March 2018: nil). Such investment
in films was arisen from the acquisition of Cheer Summit Investment
Limited and its subsidiary which are principally engaged in the film
investments. For more details about investment in films, please
refer to note 24 to the financial statements on page 236 to 237 of
this report. For further details of the transaction, please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 29 October 2018, 30 December
2018 and 17 January 2019.

Borrowings

The Group’s borrowings as at 31 March 2019 were approximately
HK$873.9 million, representing an increase of approximately 53.9%
from approximately HK$567.7 million as at 31 March 2018. The
Group’s borrowings were mainly denominated in RMB. The increase
was mainly due to a new borrowing used for acquisition of Wenfu.

Gearing Ratio
The Group’s gearing ratio computed as total borrowings over total

equity increased to approximately 36.8% as at 31 March 2019 (31
March 2018: approximately 18.8%).

HMEREMEREEENFEHREET
—NEF=ZA=+—HLFEKEFEEEER
AR CERBRBEFE LR EBRAR]) REMK
BRAR(EEBAETEREMEEERBER) T
B BHmEREMEBEREEZESHE &
DRIREARREFE227E228E - F229B NE
273E 279 B I WIS MEMNE18 - 19Kk44 - F
MR BZHE  B2HAARAEAZZ— N\
FEXRATTHBZAMH -

RZZE—NF=ZA=+—H ~EEHEH
301,800,000 8L (ZFE—\F=HA=+—H:
BICERRE -FHASTRERKEXRSR
BEERAFRREMBATI(EZENEERIRE)
MEL - ERREEX 2EZHIG  B2HA
HEF 2362237 B o HmEAMTT24 - 5
Rp2i—H515  BRHAAFBAHAZE
—NE+A=Z+hB - ZE-NFE+ZA=+
ARZZ—NF—AT+tBIZAM -

BE

REBR-Z—NFZAZT—HZEENA
873,900,000/t R_FBE—N\F=ZA=+—
H #567,700,000 7 JT1E 149 53.9% © A& [E
ZEEEZUARKE - BINEZERHRH
HEERRKEEXE -

EXREEER
RZTF-NEF=ZA=+t—8 AEEZEX
BELE(REEERABSAEE) EN

E2436.8%(ZFE— N \F=ZA=+—H80: 4
18.8%) °
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Inventories

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s inventories decreased by
approximately 3.1% from approximately HK$1,061.4 million as at 31
March 2018 to approximately HK$1,028.8 million. Such decrease
was primarily due to the decrease in automobile inventories which
comprised approximately 53.8% of the inventories of the Group.

The Group’s average inventory turnover days decreased from 145
days in the year ended 31 March 2018 to 121 days in the year ended
31 March 2019.

Exposure to Foreign Exchange Risk

The revenue and expenses of the Group are mainly denominated
in RMB and HK$ while the production cost and purchases are
denominated in RMB, HK$, Euro (“EUR”), United States Dollar
(“US$”) and Swiss Franc (“CHF”).

The Group did not enter into any foreign currency forward contract
for this financial year. As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group did
not have any foreign currency forward contracts.

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment

The Board of Directors of the Company considered that the Group
had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2019. (31 March
2018: other than the possible obligations arising from the litigations
(as mentioned in the paragraph headed “Concluded Litigations”
below), the Group had no material contingent liabilities.)

The Board of Directors of the Company considered that the Group
had no material capital commitment as at 31 March 2019. (31
March 2018: other than the commitment arising from the major and
connected transaction — acquisition of a property holding company,
the Group had no material capital commitment.)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ¥ @A R A
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Charges on Assets

As at 31 March 2019, property plant and equipment, prepaid lease
payment, deposits and inventories of the Group with aggregate
carrying amounts of approximately HK$131.7 million (31 March
2018: nil), approximately HK$582.2 million (31 March 2018: nil),
approximately HK$106.4 million (31 March 2018: HK$91.4 million)
and approximately HK$407.5 million (31 March 2018: approximately
HK$484.1 million) respectively were pledged to secure general
banking facilities and other facilities granted to the Group.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 530 (31 March 2018: 474)
employees. Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) charged
to profit or loss amounted to approximately HK$65.3 million for this
financial year (31 March 2018: approximately HK$44.4 million).

The Group provided benefits, which included basic salary,
commission, discretionary bonus, medical insurance and retirement
funds, for employees to sustain competitiveness of the Group.
The package was reviewed on an annual basis based on the
Group’s performance and employees’ performance appraisal.
The Group also provided training to the employees for their future
advancement.

Concluded Litigations

Reference was made to the Company’s announcement dated 28
December 2018 in relation to certain updates on the litigations
involved by the Group in the PRC.

The Board would also like to inform the shareholders and potential
investors of the Company that, with the conclusion of the First
Litigation as set out in such announcement, all of the First Litigation,
the Second Litigation and the Third Litigation have been concluded.

BEEEA

RZZE—NFE=ZA=+—0 AEEZERE
E#AZED BI149131,700,0008 7L (T — NF=
A=+—H : &) #9582,200,000 L (==
—N\F=HA=+—8 : &) - £9106,400,000/
T(Z2E—N\F=H=+—H : 491,400,000
770) K #)407,500,0008 T (—E—N\F=A
=+—H : #7484,100,000/87C) 2 ¥ % - #25
B ENEERE - FREFEE - UEUE
REERBRZ —MIRITRE REMBE o

ANEIR

RZZE-—NF=ZA=+—H  AEEHE530
H(ZZE—N\F=ZA=1+—8 :474%)EE -
AU BRFERBEENBRZEINAN(BIEE
£ )% 565,300,000 (-2~ NE=H
=+—8 : #744,400,000%&T) °

AEERRERBELATE M MBI
A BERRMERESSEN  UERAE
BZBEFN AREBFRAKXERERZEX
A BRRETE - AREERESEM
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R ARR AP/ T N\F+_A-TN
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A BCEFARNEZIERDICAES

iig
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Use of proceeds from the placing

As at 31 March 2019, the net proceeds from the placing of the

BEESEMEREAR

R-E—hNhE=ZA=1+—"H HZZ—+F

Company’s new shares completed on 13 November 2017 had been

fully utilised as follows:

Revised use of
net proceeds

HRAECEHSAWT

T AT =R =KEEAR R ZFAFR

as disclosed
in the Net proceeds Net proceeds
announcement utilized from unutilised as
dated 25 June As at 31 May 1 June 2018 As at 31 March at 31 March
2018 2018 onwards 2019 2019
REA
—E-N\F
ARAB=+EH BH=ZE-N\f§ R=B-h&
AR E RNE—RE =A=t+-H
FSREFHE RZZE-N\&E 2B ARG R-E-h& REAME
RIEFTRAE EFA=+—H IR TR =A=+—H MIEFE
HK$’ million HK$’ million HK$’ million HK$’ million HKS$’ million
BEAT BEAT BEET BEAET BEAT
Repayment of borrowings
BEEE 108 108 - 108 -
Expansion of the audio business
of the Group and as general
working capital
BRAASENEEEBRBE—R
LEE® 41 41 - 41 -
Partial settlement of the
consideration for the
acquisition of property
management business
THREBAFERBEFERARNKED
REBEBLRE 292 - 292 292 -
Total
HEt 441 149 292 441 -

MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION
COMPLETION OF ACQUISITION OF A
PROPERTY HOLDING COMPANY

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements dated 6
March 2018, 3 September 2018 and the circular dated 24 April
2018. On 31 August 2018, the acquisition of Wenfu was completed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS

On 25 June 2018, Sparkle Roll Fine Wine Limited (currently known
as Sparkle Roll Global Asset Management Limited), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement as purchaser with Mr. Wang Qiang as
vendor and Reliable Intelligence International Limited, which is the
target company principally engaged in the business of property
management and provision of tenancy and sub-tenancy services
in the PRC, for the acquisition of the entire issued share capital
of the target company. The Directors were of the view that such
acquisition can expand the scope of business of the Group and
shall bring in a source of stable income and profits of the Group
in the long run. Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the
consideration was paid at RMB428,000,000 and the acquisition
was completed during the financial period under review. For further
details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 25
June 2018.

Besides, the Group had also acquired the entire issued share capital
of Cheer Summit Investment Limited (which, through its subsidiary,
is principally engaged in movies industry in China) in January 2019
which constituted a discloseable transaction of the Company.
Upon completion of the acquisition, 340,000,000 new shares of the
Company were issued and allotted by the Company at HK$0.3 each
to the vendor as settlement of the initial consideration. For further
details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 29
October 2018, 30 December 2018 and 17 January 2019.

QUALIFIED OPINION

As mentioned in this report, our independent auditor, BDO Limited,
issued a qualified opinion on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019. Such qualified
opinion is related to the comparative figures of the Group’s
investment in B&O between 1 April 2017 and the date of deemed
disposal of investment in associate, where the Group’s share of
the loss of B&O as an associate in the amount of approximately
HK$12,779,000, and a gain on deemed disposal of investment in
an associate in the amount of approximately HK$585,588,000 in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2018. For more details of such qualified opinion, please
refer to the section headed “Qualified Opinion” of the Independent
Auditor’s Report of this Annual Report.

As the qualified opinion is related to the corresponding figures which
is a consequential effect resulting from the qualified opinion on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2018, the Directors expect that similar qualified opinion will
not be issued in the Group’s financial statements for the year ending
31 March 2020.

EPNLY
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The Audit Committee of the Company has critically reviewed
the management’s position on the major judgmental areas and
concluded that there is no disagreement with the management’s
position on the qualified opinion issued by the auditors and then
recommended the same to the Directors for approval.

RECENT DEVELOPMENT AND PROSPECT

China is on track to be the largest luxury cars market in a few years.
Super brands including Audi, Mercedes Benz and Porsche had
recorded brilliant sales in China during 2018 based on a summary
published by China Passenger Car Association (“CPCA”) dated 30
January 2019. Audi gained the crown in China in terms of the 2018
single luxury car brand sales. Last year, it saw its China sales grow
at 10.9% from the previous year. Out of that, sales of China made
Audi cars exceeded 600,000 units for the first time with a year-on-
year increase of 10.2%. Deliveries of imported cars jumped 20% to
60,188 units in 2018. Additionally, Mercedes-Benz also did quite a
good performance in 2018 which its sales evidently climbed 11.1%
from a year ago to 652,996 units. For Porsche, China once again
became the largest single market for the brand in 2018, who saw its
sales rose 12% from a year ago.

Although the China luxury cars market continues to grow in 2018,
the Group maintains a prudent view towards our 3 super brands.
Due to the policy of National VI emission standards for motor
vehicles (BIZRK & /<& BB B )5 2 HEHUE %), the production of
Bentley is affected and hence the supply of Bentley to the Group
will decrease in the upcoming financial year. However, according
to the manufacturer, Bentley will be delivering new models of
Continental GT and Flying Spur in the second half of the upcoming
financial year. The sale of Lamborghini will maintain its sustainability
due to its newly released SUV — Urus during the current financial
year. As the supply of Rolls-Royce will increase, the market price
may be inevitably under pressure. The above factors may have a
modest downward impact on the revenue contributions to the auto
dealerships segment of the Group in the upcoming financial year.

Regarding the Group’s non-auto dealerships segment, the products
of B&O are expected to maintain growth in revenue in the upcoming
financial year since personal income tax in China dropped and thus
consumption power raised. For watch, jewellery and fine wines, the
relevant segments have continued shrinking in recent years, hence
destocking such inventories will remain one of the missions of the
Group in the upcoming financial year.

For others segment, the Group is optimistic towards its
development. As there is a time frame for film production and official
approval in mainland China, we expect such segment will not bring
substantial contribution to the Group in the upcoming financial year.
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Report of the Directors

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in distributorships of luxury goods and
automobiles and provision of after-sales services, property
management services, catering services and property rental
services. The Group’s operations are mainly based in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Malaysia. Details of the principal activities of
the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business, including the Group’s
segmental analysis, the important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of 31 March 2019 and the likely future
developments, is set out in the sections headed “the Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
Annual Report.

Details about the principal risks and uncertainties that the Group
is facing, are set out in the section headed “Risk Management and
Internal Controls” of the Corporate Governance Report contained in
this Annual Report.

Details about the Group’s financial risk management are set out in
note 42 to the financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: nil) while no
interim dividend (2018: nil) had been distributed during the year as
the Group would like to reserve more capital to operate and develop
the existing businesses.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a special general
meeting of the Company held on 7 October 2002 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to the Directors and eligible
employees. The Scheme expired on 6 October 2012.
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Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 20 August 2012, the Company’s
new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was adopted.
The New Scheme is valid and effective for a term of ten years
commencing from 20 August 2012. There are approximately 3 years
remaining life of the New Scheme.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the New Scheme as at 31 March 2019 was
297,982,885 shares (including options for nil share that have been
granted but not yet lapsed or exercised), representing 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of approval of
the adoption of the New Scheme initially.

The Company operates the New Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s business. Eligible
participants of the New Scheme include any Director (including
Executive, Non-executive and Independent Non-executive
Directors), any employee, or any consultant, advisor, customer and
business associates.

There was no outstanding share to be issued under the New
Scheme as at 31 March 2019 (as at 31 March 2018: nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the largest and the top five
suppliers of the Group accounted for 43.3% and 97.0% of the
Group’s total purchases respectively. The largest and the top five
customers of the Group accounted for less than 10% of the Group’s
total revenue.

At no time during the year under review did a Director, an associate
of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had a beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five
largest suppliers or customers for this financial year.
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Report of the Directors

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 113 and 114 of this Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of this financial year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during this financial year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 119 and 120 and note 46 to
the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In addition to retained profits, under the Bermuda Companies Act,
the contributed surplus account of the Company is also available
for distribution to its shareholders. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution, out of contributed
surplus if:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

In the opinion of the Directors, the distributable reserve accounts
comprise the reserves of the Company of approximately
HK$370,299,000 in surplus (2018: HK$475,891,000 in surplus).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during this financial year in the share
capital of the Company are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements.
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BORROWINGS BmE

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2019 are set AEFER-_ZE—HNE=A=+—HZ{EEE
out in note 32 to the financial statements. R BHREMFEI2

FINANCIAL SUMMARY BEEE

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non- ZARNEEZ 2 AMES  BEHEB & NLIELARE
controlling interests of the Group for the past five financial years is #ZHRBEAERREE 2 HMEHARNERSE

set out on page 284 of this Annual Report. 284 8 o
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT W% - MR RR1E

Details of the movements during this financial year in the property, ZANEEZ % « HMELBERATHEERNZ
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the B HFIEENIIEHRERMFT 16
financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS EERBREEN
The Directors of the Company during this financial year and up to ZABBEEARBEERNFERTZEBEIL - AR
the date of this Annual Report were as follow: RIZEENT :
Executive Directors: HITESE .
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang BT A
Mr. Zhao Xiaodong HNRSTE
Mr. Zhu Lei KREXE
Non-executive Directors: FEHITES !
Mr. Gao Yu BB E
Mr. Qi Jian Wei RRELE
Independent Non-executive Directors: BYHEHITES :
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo #BHASE A
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong MBS A
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor ST

Z 6 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #2 %% &£ = A R A 7 °
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In accordance with bye-law no. 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of Company after his appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting.

In accordance with bye-law no. 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
every director should be subject to retirement by rotation at the
annual general meeting at least once every three years and are
eligible for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The term of office of each Independent Non-executive Director is
for the period of two years and renewable for one year up to his
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with bye-law n0.86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Zhao Xiaodong was appointed as the Executive Director during
this financial year and will hold office until the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. Mr. Zhao Xiaodong will offer
himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with code provision A.4.3 of Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), serving more than 9 years could be relevant to
the determination of a Non-executive Director’s independence. If
an Independent Non-executive Director serves more than 9 years,
his further appointment should be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders. The papers to shareholders
accompanying that resolution should include the reasons why the
board believes he is still independent and should be re-elected.

In accordance with bye-law no. 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Gao Yu, Mr. Qi Jian Wei and Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo will retire
by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. In
addition, as Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo has served the Company for
more than nine years, his appointment will be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 68 to 77 of this Annual Report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Nonexecutive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Except as disclosed in note 39 to and elsewhere in the financial
statements, there are no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of this
financial year or at any time during this financial year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the Company disclosed
that no Directors of the Company is considered to have interests in
any business which is likely to compete directly or indirectly with the
business of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during this financial year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the bye-law no. 168(1) of the Company’s Bye-Laws,
the Directors, secretary or other officers of the Company shall
be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all losses or damages which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office,
or otherwise in relation thereto.
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The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and/or the chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were required
to be (i) notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (ii) as recorded in the register required to be maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

Long position in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company

ARBEREFTRAKESEBBLHSE L
EELEABREREERR

EERAQAREEBZEZIEZ
R~ HERODRES 2 ER

RZTE—NEF=ZA=+—8 AR6A&ES
R/ S&mITBRABRAR R RE A LR
(EERBHFEBEGO(TESRIEKRD])
EXVE) 2k - ARG REHPES ()R
BEEREGHEXVEETRFESN HA
MEARRIREBEBHERBARA G ([H
R z#Em AR (BREREEFRPERK
PIBBIE X B EERRIERR 2w A
B) ¢ i) AR RRIRE S RS EHIE3521%
ATHEE B MR e s MR E ok (i)
RIE ETTAR BB ER +-FTd#l E BT AZE R 1T
BHRGNEETFUEASITHEARR R RER
FTZ R MORBIT

RAEXRRSD - HEARDREZR2FR

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of director Capacity shares held interest
EEuA B4 BEROGHE EEBNADL
(Note 2)
(PFteE2)
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1) 10,640,000 0.21%
B L& THEE R (1)
Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.02%
ZRELL BERBEBA
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor Beneficial owner 1,680,000 0.03%
TR K& EmBEAA
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Notes:

(1)  These 10,640,000 Shares were held by Keyking Mission Group Co., Ltd,
a company is wholly owned by Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang. Accordingly, Mr.
Zheng Hao Jiang was deemed to be interested in these Shares.

(2)  The denominator used is 5,019,061,447 shares, being the total number
of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March 2019.

SHARE OPTIONS

The New Scheme was adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed at the general meeting of the Company held on 20 August
2012.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2019, the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests and
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company:

(1) #%10,640,000 R RH BEEETEELEHS
2 A alKeyking Mission Group Co., Ltd$574
Hitt S5 T EAEWBARLEROPES
WS o

@  FAHR5,019,001,447 BB - IR —F
—NE=ZA=+T-BARRZEBHETRNA
2 o

B
FEHBDRBEAATN T —FN\A=+H
BITZRRAE LBIB 2 EBRARRM -

FERRRAQTREG RAEBERS
ZRE

R=F-NE=A=+—A8  BRAAAREE
5 RHRHE 15DV 336 1 2 IR P B 2 B M
T BAARNEEREBITRARLN - TR
REME AR AVEFRAR RS RABBRS
2 BBES ROAR

Long position or short position in the shares RO 2EFESRE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares Interest
BREgE/ 28 54 REEE EsfOEL
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(BH3E1) (FizE2)
Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 2,321,012,630 (L) 46.24%
BREREBRAA ERBAA
Mr. Qi Jian Hong alias Beneficial owner 286,224,000 (L) 5.70%
Mr. Kei Kin Hung (‘Mr. Qi) EGHRAA
(Notes 3 to 6) Interested of controlled corporation
Bk ([8E4E]) (i E326) (Notes 3 10 6)
EHlEEES (HE3E6) 2,321,012,630 (L) 46.24%
2,607,236,630 51.95%
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares Interest
BRR#HE/ 2B 54 RO EE BEHOEIL
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(1) (s 2)
Ms. Zhu Shuang (Note 3) Interest of spouse (Note 3) 2,607,236,630 (L) 51.95%
KL L (M) BB (MEs)
Able Honour Holdings Limited Having a security interest in shares (Note 4) 1,200,000,000 (L) 23.91%
BERMREER (Fi4)
Ms. Xu Jiaying Interested of controlled corporation (Note 4) 1,200,000,000 (L) 23.91%
hEgTT T EE R (i 4)
Beneficial owner 4,208,000 (L) 0.08%
ERBAA
1,240,208,000 23.99%
Mr. Lam Chi Kin (Note 5) Beneficial owner 100,000,000 (L) 1.99%
MEBSEAE (K5E5) ERBHAA
Person having a security interest in shares 300,000,000 (L) 5.98%
(Note 5)
B AR R RERER (FFE5)
400,000,000 7.97%
Mr. Lin Peng (Note 6) Person having a security interest in shares 300,000,000 (L) 5.98%
(Note 6)
RIS % 4 (P T 6) BABEE RN REER (H3E6)
Ms. Tam Cho Wai Josephine Beneficial owner 340,000,000 (L) 6.77%

ELiE 3

EafAA
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Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” in such Shares and the
letter “S” denotes a person’s “short position” in such Shares.

(2) The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of
5,019,061,447 Shares in issue as at 31 March 2019.

(3) These 2,321,012,630 Shares were held by Sparkle Roll Holdings
Limited. Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited is a company wholly owned by Mr.
Qi. Accordingly, Mr. Qi was deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited. Ms. Zhu Shuang is the wife of Mr. Qi.
Accordingly, Ms. Zhu Shuang was deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited and Mr. Qi.

(4)  Among these 2,321,012,630 Shares, 1,200,000,000 Shares have
been charged to Able Honour Holdings Limited as security interest.
Able Honour Holdings Limited is 100% controlled by Ms. Xu Jiaying.
Accordingly, Ms. Xu Jiaying is deemed to be interested in all the Shares
in which Able Honour Holdings Limited is interested.

(5)  Among these 2,321,012,630 Shares, 300,000,000 Shares have been
charged to Mr. Lam Chi Kin (“Mr. Lam”) as security interest

(6)  Among these 2,321,012,630 Shares, 300,000,000 Shares have been
charged to Mr. Lin Peng (“Mr. Lin") as security interest

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
(including any interests in options in respect of such capital), which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who was directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group.
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(4) %5 2,321,012,680 (%% H A + 1,200,000,000
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Report of the Directors

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options”
above, at no time during this financial year was the Company, fellow
subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company repurchased a total of 281,552,000 Shares on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of
HK$84,833,473.37 from July 2018 to March 2019. As at 31 March
2019, all the repurchased Shares have been cancelled except for
the repurchases carried out on or after 25 March 2019 (which have

BEROHESF ZLZH

B EX TR ] —EIF R EE SN - MAMBF
WIEMESRE - ARF -~ FRME QR REER
B R RS ERT SLE A B ?5(@$"‘7%$
AW AR RS EME AR B 2 Rk inE
EF M

%E HEXBEEAQAF 2 L™
g

ARFEZE—\FLtAZEZE-NF=AMNU
#1818 84,833,473.37 B T E B BB FrEEE
& $£281,5652,000 kit - RZZFE—NF=A
—+—H BRRZE-NF=-AR=-+HHZHZ
BETHRNBE (REFRNENR_Z—NEF

already been cancelled on 10 April 2019). WA+ BN - TEBRMKRGIIEEHE -
Number of
Highest Lowest Average shares
Date of repurchase price price price repurchased Total paid
BERH 5B BEE 46 BERGHA BfEE
HKS HKS HKS HKS$
BT BT AT BT
1 9July 2018 “2-\EtANA 0.32 0.285 0.29737 18,712,000 5,564,443.58
2 16 July 2018 “E-\EtATAR 0.32 0.29 0.31188 3,000,000 935,640.00
3 23 July 2018 “E2-\§+A=T=H 0.3 0.29 0.29903 22,200,000 6,638,466.00
4 24 July 2018 “2-\E+AZT0A 03 0.29 0.29636 1,800,000 533,440.80
5 25 July 2018 I 03 029 0.29773 30,400,000 9,051,052.80
6 27 July 2018 ZE2-\E+A=TtA 0.3 0.295 0.29904 26,000,000 7,774,988.00
7 31 July 2018 ZE-\ftA=1-HR 0.3 0.29 0.29730 22,000,000 6,540,600.00
8 2 August 2018 ZE2-\§\AZH 03 0.29 0.29874 26,000,000 7,767,240.00
9 3 August 2018 “E-\£/\A=H 0.295 0.295 0.29500 6,000,000 1,770,000.00
10 6August 2018 “2-\EN\ARA 0.28 0.28 0.28000 2,400,000 672,000.00
11 7 August 2018 ZE2-\E\RtH 03 0.28 0.28908 8,000,000 2,312,640.00
12 8August 2018 “2-\E\AN\A 03 0.3 0.30000 11,000,000 3,300,000.00
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Number of
Highest Lowest Average shares

Date of repurchase price price price repurchased Total paid
BERY 556 gEE 458 BERAHE EHEE

HKS HKS HKS HKS

BT BT BT BT

18 10August 2018 ZE-\5/\FTR 03 0.29 0.29996 10,000,000 2,999,600.00
14 14 August 2018 “E-\F/\BTEA 03 0.29 0.29833 8,400,000 2,505,963.60
16 27 August 2018 “2-\ENAZTtA 03 0.285 0.29446 4,520,000 1330,959.20
16 28 August 2018 ZE-\E\AZT/\R 03 03 0.30000 1,720,000 516,000.00
17 29 August 2018 ZE-\EN\AZTHA 03 0.29 0.29852 7,048,000 2,103,997.15
18 30August 2018 “E-\E/\A=TH 03 03 0.30000 39,976,000 11,992,800.00
19 31 August 2018 ZE-\E\A=1-H 03 03 0.30000 200,000 60,000.00
20 4 September 2018 “E2-)\ENAWA 0.33 03 0.30613 5,600,000 1,714,322.40
21 11 September 2018 “E-\ENAT-R 0.33 0.325 0.32940 4,040,000 1,330,759.84
22 12 September 2018 “E-\EnATZR 0.33 0.33 0.33000 160,000 52,800.00
23 13 September 2018 “E-\FnAT=H 0.33 0.33 0.33000 3,000,000 990,000.00
24 25March 2019 “E-N\E=A-t3R 0.33 0.325 0.32800 5,000,000 * 1,640,000.00
25 27 March 2019 ZE-NEZAZTtA 0.33 0.325 0.32994 1,856,000 * £12,360.00
2 28March 2019 “E-N\F=Rt/\B 0.33 0.32 0.32893 7,640,000 * 2,513,000.00
27 29 March 2019 “E-N\E=R-thR 0.33 0.33 0.33000 4,880,000 * 1,610,400.00
Total &3t 281,552,000 84,833,473.37

Repurchased but not yet cancelled as at 31 March 2019 (which have
already been cancelled on 10 April 2019).

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidaries purchased, sold or redeemed any Shares during the
year ended 31 March 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED %t @5 R A &
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Report of the Directors

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee of the Company on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The Board has the general power of determining the Directors’
remuneration, subject to authorization of the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting each year. The emoluments
of the executive Directors are subject to review by the Remuneration
Committee of the Company, and their remuneration is determined
with reference to the Directors’ qualifications, experience, duties,
responsibilities, performance, results of the Group and comparable
market information.

The Company has adopted the New Scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible participants.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the completeness
and accuracy of disclosures of continuing connected transactions
(“CCT”) and the Company’s compliance with the Listing Rules in
respect of such transactions.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company had
reviewed all CCT as shown on pages 35 to 41 and confirmed in
this Annual Report and accounts that the transactions have been
entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  on normal commercial terms; and
(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

B = BUR

AEBREEZMEBRTAARRIFMEE S
ENEB ZRHR - BEMENHIE] °

EXECBAETESTTM . —RIEN - Mk
NABFRBERBFAEG LEARARRE
B HITES M BHRARAFMEE SR
A MEFHESEIREREFZER - &5 -
B BE KRR AREERERATHLERTS

ARRERMFFTENRBEZ RS ERSHE
% o

HERERS

ARBEERFERER S ((FEREXS )
BEEH B REREARANRAIZE
RZETLETRAAE -

AATZ B FNTEFOEMES T A
iR AR ERER S  ARAERNIEE
W HERST

(1) RARBBEER—REBFBIZPFIL

@) ERAEZSZXZAGIBATAEL
HAEARPRRER N m 2 B R
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BDO Limited, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. BDO Limited has issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules and confirmed that:

(@) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that
the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the board of the Company;

(b) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that
the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

() nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the relevant annual caps as set by the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

1. Showroom Rental Agreement

An agreement (the “Showroom Rental Agreement”) entered
between Tianjin Xin Chang Tai Fu Trading Development
Limited (“TJXC”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Mr. Qi dated 31 December 2010 in relation
to rentals of showroom incurred from the operations of the
Group’s luxury cars dealership business, of a portion of
showroom having a gross floor area of approximately 365
square meters (“sq.m.”) at Zeng No. 4, No. 162 Zhang Zi
Zhong Road, Heping District, Tianjin, People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2% & E A R A
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A supplemental agreement entered between TJXC and Mr. Qi
dated 30 June 2011 for extension of the duration of Showroom
Rental Agreement from its original terms of three years from
1 January 2011 inclusive to ten years from 1 January 2011
inclusive.

Tianjin Leasing Agreement |

An agreement (the “Tianjin Leasing Agreement I”) entered
between Tianjin Heng Ying Tai Fu Trading Development
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Mr. Qi dated 30 June 2011 in relation to rentals of
showroom incurred from the operations of the Group’s luxury
cars dealership business, of a portion of showroom having a
gross floor area of approximately 366.13 sg.m. at Zeng No.
2 and Zeng No. 3, No. 162 Zhang Zi Zhong Road, Heping
District, Tianjin, the PRC.

Beijing Leasing Agreement |

An agreement (the “Beijing Leasing Agreement |”)
entered between Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin Tian Di Commerce
Development Limited (“SRXTD”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Mr. Qi dated 30 June 2011 in
relation to rentals of bonded warehouse incurred for exhibition
purpose, of a portion of bonded warehouse having a gross
floor area of approximately 2,150 sg.m. at Basement Level 1 of
Tower A and B, International Wonderland, 40 Xing Fu Er Chun,
San Li Tun, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC.

An amended agreement (the “Amended Beijing Leasing
Agreement I”) entered among Mr. Qi, SRXTD and Sparkle
Roll Retail Net Development Limited (“SRRND”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, dated 26 June 2013
in relation of surrender of portions of Basement Level 1 of
Tower B (with area of 1,400 sq.m.) and retention of portions
of Basement Level 1 of Tower A (with area of 750 sg.m.) to
continue under the same terms as stated in the Beijing Leasing
Agreement | save for rental reduction on account of the partial
surrender with effect from 1 July 2013.

REEERELAIVARAS-FT——
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Beijing Leasing Agreement |l

An agreement (the “Beijing Leasing Agreement I1”)
entered between Beijing Mei He Zhen Yong Motors Trading
Limited (“BJMH”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Mr. Qi dated 30 June 2011 in relation to rentals
of showroom incurred from the operations of the Group’s
luxury cars dealership business, of a portion of showroom
having a gross floor area of approximately 1,135 sqg.m. at
portions of Level 1 of Tower A, International Wonderland, 40
Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li Tun, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the
PRC.

An agreement was entered into between Mr. Qi, BJIMH and
SRRND, dated 6 July 2011 pursuant to which the tenant of the
Beijing Leasing Agreement Il was transferred from BJMH to
SRRND, with the same agreement terms.

Beijing Leasing Agreement ||

An agreement (the “Beijing Leasing Agreement IlI”) entered
between Sparkle Roll Oriental (Beijing) Trading Development
Limited (“SROBJ”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Mr. Qi dated 30 June 2011 in relation
to rentals of showroom incurred from the operations of the
Group’s business in the distribution of wine, watches and
jewellery, of a portion of showroom having a gross floor area
of approximately 2,148 sg.m. at portions of Levels 1 and 2 of
Tower A, International Wonderland, 40 Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li
Tun, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC.

An agreement was entered into between Mr. Qi, SROBJ and
SRRND, dated 6 July 2011 pursuant to which the tenant of the
Beijing Leasing Agreement lll was transferred from SROBJ to
SRRND, with the same agreement terms.
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Beijing Leasing Agreement IV

An agreement (the “Beijing Leasing Agreement IV”) entered
between Beijing De Te Motors Trading Limited (“BJDT”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Mr. Qi
dated 30 June 2011 in relation to office rentals incurred from
the operations of the Group’s business in the distribution of
luxury goods, of a portion of office having a gross floor area of
approximately 1,280 sqg.m. at of Level 3 of Tower A and portion
of Level 7 of Tower B, International Wonderland, 40 Xing Fu Er
Chun, San Li Tun, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC.

An agreement was entered into between Mr. Qi, BJDT and
SRRND, dated 6 July 2011 pursuant to which the tenant of the
Beijing Leasing Agreement IV was transferred from BJDT to
SRRND, with the same agreement terms.

On 6 March 2018, the Group entered into an acquisition
agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”) with Mr. Qi and
Beijing Wenfu Hengye Technology Development Co., Limited
(“Wenfu”), an entity wholly-owned Mr. Qi, the Group had
conditionally agreed to purchase the entire equity interest in
Beijing Wenfu Hengye pursuant the Acquisition Agreement,
and this acquisition was completed on 31 August 2018 (the
“Completion Date”). Under the Acquisition Agreement, all
rentals payable by the Group to Mr. Qi under Beijing Leasing
Agreements | to IV in relation to Tower A, International
Wonderland No. 40 Xing Fu Eu Chun, San Li Tun, Chaoyang
District, Beijing, the PRC between 1 April 2018 and the
Completion Date should be waived, all such continuing
connected transactions are ceased.

Beijing Leasing Agreement V

An agreement (the “Beijing Leasing Agreement V") entered
between SRRND and Mr. Qi dated 26 June 2013 in relation
to rentals of showroom incurred from the operations of the
Group’s luxury automobile business, of a portion of showroom
having a gross floor area of approximately 1,429.2 sg.m.
at of portions of Levels 1 and 2 of Tower B, International
Wonderland, 40 Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li Tun, Chaoyang
District, Beijing, the PRC.
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9. Beijing Leasing Agreement VI 9.

An agreement (the “Beijing Leasing Agreement VI”) entered
between SRRND and Mr. Qi dated 26 June 2013 in relation
to office rentals incurred from the operations of the Group’s
business in the distribution of luxury goods, of a portion of
office having a gross floor area of approximately 840 sg.m. at
portions of Level 3 of Tower B, International Wonderland, 40
Xing Fu Er Chun, San Li Tun, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the
PRC.

LIST OF DISCLOSED CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS ENTERED INTO
BY THE GROUP WITH CONNECTED PERSONS

RS HZEVI

BETERBEZTEITVARA-F
—=FRAZtTRBzHH(LtRER
BV 1) - % KRB Bl R T #A
BR=-EHFERE _N40REERERE
5 BEEIERAAKEDHEZRESRH
CBEEEZHAEHE (RAZFD 24
BHEEEX 840 F 7 K) -

AEBHEBEATITIZEATRE
RFERERS Z2¥&

Annual fee for the year
ended 31 March 2019
BE-ZT—-h&E=A=+—H

1. Rentals of showroom in 1. BBEXEZHEHZI2ERE
relation to the Tianjin Leasing HE
Agreement |

2. Rentals of showroom in 2. EFHEEAEmE2EEMR
relation to the Showroom =

Rental Agreement

3. Rentals of showroom and 3.

ERILRBEERZ I REE

office in relation to the Beijing
Leasing Agreement | and
Amended Beijing Leasing
Agreement | (Note (i))

Rentals of showroom in
relation to the Beijing Leasing
Agreement Il (Note (i)

Rentals of showroom in
relation to the Beijing Leasing
Agreement Il (Note (i)
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Annual fee for the year
ended 31 March 2019
BE-_Z—hF=H=+—H
LEEZFEER
Equivalent to
RMB’000 HK$°000
AR® TR HERTRET

6.  Office rentals in relation to the
Beijing Leasing Agreement IV
(Note (i)

Office rentals in relation to the
Beijing Leasing Agreement IV

7. Rentals of showroom in
relation to the Beijing Leasing
Agreement V

BRALREERZE IV 2
=HE (M)

N 1,450 1,741

B REERZEIVZHA 1,080 1,279
=HE

EHILREEREVZIEE 13,200 15,631
he

8.  Office rentals in relation to the BRI R ERZE VI 29
Beijing Leasing Agreement VI =HE
Note (): These rental expenses are waived and have not been recorded by

the Group between 1 April 2018 and 31 August 2018.

n 3,360 3,979

Mt ZSHEBRTUARR BREELER

—E-N\EMA-RE=F-N\FN\A
=+—A T -
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MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Completion of acquisition of a property holding company

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements dated 6
March 2018, 3 September 2018 and the circular dated 24 April
2018. On 31 August 2018, the acquisition of Wenfu was completed.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During this financial year, the Group entered into certain
transactions with parties regarded as related parties under the
applicable accounting standards. A summary of the related party
transactions entered into by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2019 is contained in Note 39 to the financial statements of
this Annual Report including connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements, to the
extent they are not exempted or waived by the Stock Exchange, in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to
the connected transactions and continuing connected transactions
entered into by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2019.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 March 2019.
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AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe”) resigned as auditor of the
Company with effect from 1 March 2019. BDO Limited (“BDO”) was
appointed as auditor of the Company with effect from 1 March 2019
to fill the casual vacancy occasioned by the resignation of Crowe.
BDO shall hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. The financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2019 was audited by BDO. A resolution will
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
DEVELOPMENT

The Group recognises the importance of environmental protection
and has adopted relevant measures for environmental protection
in order to ensure the compliance by the Group of the prevailing
environmental protection laws and regulations. Details of the
environmental policies and performance of the Group are set out in
the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
on pages 78 to 104 in this Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and the operations of the Group are mainly carried
out by its subsidiaries in Hong Kong, the PRC and Malaysia. The
operations of the Group should comply with relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong, China and Malaysia. During the year
ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this Annual Report,
the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in
Hong Kong, China and Malaysia.
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CORPORATE GOVERANCE

The Board is of the opinion that the Company had adopted, applied
and complied with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2019 except
for the deviation from provision A.2.1 of the Code since 1 January
2018.

Details of the corporate governance of the Group are set out in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 46 to 67
in this Annual Report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be
held at 4:30 p.m. on 30 August 2019 at Regus, Conference Centre,
35/F, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong and a
notice of annual general meeting of the Company will be published
and despatched in due course.

CHANGE OF ADDRESS OF HONG KONG
BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 20 June
2019, with effect from 11 July 2019, the Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar and Transfer Office of the Company, Tricor Secretaries
Limited (the “Branch Share Registrar”), will change its address
from Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong to:

Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

All telephone and facsimile numbers of the Branch Share Registrar
will remain unchanged.
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Report of the Directors

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 27
August 2019 (Tuesday) to 30 August 2019 (Friday) (both days
inclusive) during which period, no transfer of the shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
all share transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 26 August 2019 (Monday).

On behalf of the Board

Zheng Hao Jiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Sparkle Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance. The board of Directors of the Company
(the “Board”) agrees that corporate governance practices are
increasingly important for maintaining and promoting investor
confidence. Corporate governance requirements keep changing,
therefore the Board reviews its corporate governance practices
from time to time to ensure that all practices can be met with legal
and statutory requirements. Throughout the financial year ended
31 March 2019, the Group has adopted the principles and code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The Company has been in compliance with the Code
throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2019 except for the
deviation from provision A.2.1 of the Code since 1 January 2018.

According to provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang is
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
with effect from 1 January 2018, responsible for overall strategic
development, project management and client management of the
Group. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both chairman
and chief executive officer in the same person has the benefit
of ensuring consistent leading within the Group and will enable
the Company to make and implement decisions promptly and
effectively; and considers that such arrangement will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management and that the Company has sufficient internal controls
to provide checks and balances on the functions of the chairman
and the chief executive officer. Nevertheless, the Board will review
such arrangement from time to time in light of the prevailing
circumstances.

In addition, the Audit Committee of the Company, comprised
exclusively Independent Non-executive Directors, is freely and
directly to communicate with the Company’s external auditors and
independent professional advisers when it considers necessary.
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MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to govern securities
transactions by the Directors. After having made specific enquiry of
all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the Model Code during the year and up to the date of this Annual
Report.

The Company also adopted the Model Code as guidelines
for its relevant employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information of the Company in respect
of their dealings in securities of the Company. No incident of
noncompliance of the Model Code by the relevant employees was
noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises three Executive, two Non-executive
and three Independent Non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhao Xiaodong (Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating Officer)
Mr. Zhu Lei

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Gao Yu
Mr. Qi Jian Wei

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor

The biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this Annual
Report.
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The Company has three Independent Non-executive Directors,
representing one-third of the Board. At least one of the Independent
Non-executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise under
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. All the Independent Non-executive
Directors have signed the annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to confirm their
independence.

Under the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to determine the overall
strategies, monitor and control operating and financial performance
and set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Groups’ strategic objectives. Matters reserved for the Board are
those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policies, material contracts
and major investments. Day-to-day management of the Group’s
business is delegated to the Executive Director or officer in charge
of each department. The functions and power that are so delegated
are reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.
Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Group’s
performance, status and updates on the latest developments in
order to enable the Directors to discharge their duties. All Directors
have recourse to external legal counsel and other professionals for
independent advice at the Group’s expense upon their request.

During the year under review, Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor, Mr. Zheng
Hao Jiang and Mr. Zhu Lei retired and were re-elected as the
Directors at the annual general meeting held on 31 August 2018.
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NON-EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There are currently five Non-executive Directors of whom three
are independent. Each of the Non-executive Directors and the
Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment for a term of two years and then renewable for one
year. Under the Bye-laws of the Company, every Director, including
the Non-executive and the Independent Non-executive Directors,
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least every three years.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Nonexecutive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the List ing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

Pursuant to the code provision A.4.3 of the Code, serving more than
9 years could be relevant to the determination of a Non-executive
Directors’ independence. If an Independent Non-executive Director
serves more than 9 years, his further appointment should be subject
to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders. The
circular to shareholders accompanying that resolution will include
the reasons why the Board believes he is still independent and
should be re-elected.

During the year under review, Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor was
re-elected in a separate resolution at the annual general meeting
held on 31 August 2018.
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MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group and approve business plan. 8 Board
meetings were held in 2018/2019.
Director at the Board meetings, the Audit Committee meetings,
Remuneration Committee meetings and the Nomination Committee
meeting during 2018/2019 and the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 31 August 2018 (“2018 AGM”) is set out below:

Director

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang

Mr. Zhao Xiaodong (appointed with
effect from 3 September 2018)
Mr. Zhu Lei

Mr. Cheung Man Kit (retired with
effect from 31 August 2018)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Gao Yu

Mr. Qi Jian Wei

Mr. Tang Sung Wai (retired with
effect from 31 August 2018)
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEAH,/ EERH
Audit  Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee 2018 AGM

-0\

Director ) - BREEE yHzEE REZEE RREFAE

Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BV HE/TEE

Mr. Choy Sze chung, Jojo = U 8/8 4/4 2/2 2/2 1/1
(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (BLZE521fE)

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong (Chairman MEE%HE 8/8 4/4 2/2 2/2 i
of the Remuneration Committee) (FHZE22fE)

Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor (Chairman ~ Z# K L4 8/8 4/4 2/2 2/2 17
of the Nomination Committee) (BEZ581E)

Board and committee minutes are recorded in appropriate detail.
Draft minutes are circulated to Directors for comments within
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open for
Directors’ inspection.

INDUCTION, DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
OF DIRECTORS

Every Board member has received a guidance book on Directors
duties and liabilities upon joining the Group, which also lays down
the guidelines on conduct for the Board and Board committee
members and other key governance issues, including but not limited
to Board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations
that they are required to observe during their service in the Board.
The updated guidelines will be provided from time to time as and
when appropriate.

A formal and tailored induction programme will be arranged for each
new Director, which includes a briefing on the Group’s structure,
businesses and governance practices by the senior management.
To seek continuous improvement, the Directors are encouraged to
attend relevant training sessions, particularly on corporate ethics
and integrity matters, risk management, and relevant new laws and
regulations, from time to time.
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To ensure that the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains AEREFHERNESTSELEABELRERBRE
informed and relevant and in compliance with code provision A.6.5  &f @ W&~ ~F A 2 SFRIEX FEA.6.5(E » A
of the Code, the Company shall arrange and fund suitable training R ZHRBER TFEZETEEET - UERE
for the Directors to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.  REHEHMH Rivee - REIBERN £E502
During the year under review, the Directors participated in the kinds B2 Z3Z5I|# 8R40 -

of training as follows:

Director Kind of Training
BE il
Executive Directors #iTEE

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang BREST Se A A.B

Mr. Zhao Xiaodong /NS A AB

Mr. Zhu Lei RELLE AB

Non-executive Directors FHITEE

Mr. Gao Yu Sy S8t A,B

Mr. Qi Jian Wei EEREL AB

Independent Non-executive Directors B IHNTESE

Mr. Choy Sze chung, Jojo BB SE A.B

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong M & kA& AB

Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor TR ST A.B

A:  Reading materials on legal and regulatory updates. A BEZIERESRHERZEY -

B: Attending training seminar organised by The Hong Kong Institute of B: HEBHEAEE2e8 Wy 2 EIEE - £E ()
Directors relating to (i) analysis and categories of SFC approaches BEESHIARMH DI MR () EERIR
to Enforcement Cases; (ii) updating of Listing Rules and Corporate T EEIRTRIM R E R X (i) R BE R Pk
Governance Code and (iii) implications of recent HKEX Consultation AN HHEENTE -

Papers to Directors.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Based on the business needs of the Group, the Nomination
Committee has recommended and the Board has adopted the
following measurable objectives:

(i) a prescribed proportion of Board members shall be Non-
executive Directors or Independent Non-executive Directors;

(i)  a prescribed proportion of Board members shall have attained
bachelor’s degree or above;

(i) a prescribed proportion of Board members shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications;

(iv) a prescribed proportion of Board members shall have China
related work experience.

The Nomination Committee shall monitor the implementation of the
board diversity policy and review the progress of its measurable
objectives from time to time. Based on its review, the Nomination
Committee considers that the current Board is well-balanced and
of a diverse mix appropriate for the business development of the
Company.

NOMINATION POLICY

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate.

° Reputation for integrity;

° Accomplishment and experience;

° Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;
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° Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above),
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and

cultural and educational background,

length of service; and

o In the case of independent non-executive Directors, the
independence of the candidate.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive
and decisive.

Subject to the provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company, retiring
Directors are eligible for nomination by the Board to stand for re-
election at a general meeting.

Proposed candidate will be asked to submit his/her necessary
personal information in a prescribed form, together with his/her
written consent to be appointed as a Director and to the public
disclosure of his/her personal data on any documents or the relevant
websites for the purpose of or in relation to his/her standing for
election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to provide
additional information and documents, if considered necessary.

Nomination Procedures

The Secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting of
the Nomination Committee, and invite nominations of candidates
from Board members if any, for consideration by the Nomination
Committee prior to its meeting. The Nomination Committee may
also put forward candidates who are not nominated by Board
members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval. For
proposing candidates to stand for election at a general meeting, the
Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation.
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Until the issue of the relevant circular to the Company’s shareholders,
the nominated persons shall not assume that they have been
proposed by the Board to stand for election at the general meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates nominated by
the Board to stand for election at a general meeting, and to invite
nominations from shareholders, a circular will be sent to the
Company’s shareholders. The circular will set out the lodgment
period for the Company’s shareholders to make the nominations.
The names, brief biographies (including qualifications and relevant
experience), independence, proposed remuneration and any other
information, as required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations, of the proposed candidates will be included in the
circular to the Company’s shareholders.

A shareholder of the Company can serve a notice to the Company
Secretary within the lodgement period of its intention to propose
a resolution to elect a certain person as a Director, without
the Board’s recommendation or the Nomination Committee’s
nomination, other than those candidates set out in the circular to
the Company’s shareholders. The particulars of the candidates
so proposed will be sent to all shareholders for information by a
supplementary circular.

A candidate is allowed to withdraw his candidature at any time
before the general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the
Company Secretary.

As there may be more candidates than the vacancies available,
and the simple majority method will be used to determine who shall
be elected as a Director, shareholder’s proposed resolutions shall
therefore take the same form as the resolutions proposed for the
candidates recommended by the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties and has adopted a written guideline on corporate governance
functions in compliance with the Code.

The duties of the Board in respect of corporate governance
functions are summarised as follows:

()  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
as set out in the Code and its disclosure requirements in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board reviewed and monitored the training
of the Directors, and the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

During the year, the Board reviewed the terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee of the Board of Director. The revised terms of references
were effective from 1 January 2019.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company established the Remuneration
Committee in March 2005. The principal role of the Remuneration
Committee is to exercise the power of the Board to determine
and review the remuneration package of individual directors and
key executives, including salaries, bonuses and benefits in kind,
considering factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and key executive, employments conditions elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance based remuneration
so as to align management incentives with shareholders interests.
The Remuneration Committee is also considering all relevant
remuneration data and market conditions in addition to considering
the performance and responsibility of individual directors and
officers by linking their compensation with performance and
will measure it against corporate goals. During the year, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved the remuneration
package of the Executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company about its proposals
relating to remuneration of the Executive Directors and have access
to professional advice if it considers necessary. After reviewing
all relevant information, the Remuneration Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board for the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors and two executive Directors. Its present
members are:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong — Chairman

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo

Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor

Executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang
Mr. Zhu Lei
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The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings in 2018/2019
to review and approve directors, and senior management’s
remuneration. The directors fee paid to the Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive Directors are subject to annual review
and approval by the Remuneration Committee. The emoluments of
each of the Directors of the Company for 2018/2019 are set out in
note 12 to the financial statements.

Below is a summary of principal work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during 2018/2019:

° Review of the remuneration of the Executive Directors and
senior management and approval of the same.

° Review of the remuneration of the Non-executive Directors
(including the Independent Non-executive Directors), with
recommendations to the Board for approval.

° Review the existing share option scheme with recommendations
to the Board for approval.

The annual remuneration of the members of the current senior
managements of the Group by band is set out below:

Emoluments Band

< 48 5!

HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000
T # L ZE 1,000,00078 7T
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000
1,000,000 7T & 1,500,000 % 7T

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 6 October 2008
and currently comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors
(“INED"),
Nomination Committee), Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo, and Mr. Lam

namely, Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor (chairman of the

Kwok Cheong.
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The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board member, assessing the independence of INED; and making
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors in particular the chairman and the chief
executive officer.

The Nomination Committee has adopted written nomination
procedures specifying the process and criteria for selection of
candidates for directorship of the Company. The Nomination
Committee shall, based on criteria such as skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments
of such individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations, identify and recommend the
proposed candidate to the Board for approval of appointment.

All Non-executive Directors and INED are appointed for a specific
term of two years and renewable for additional one year, and are
required to retire and eligible for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company in every three years in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings in 2018/2019. Below
is a summary of principal work performed by the Nomination
Committee during 2018/2019:

° Recommendation to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors.

° Review of the structure, size and composition of the Board and
the Board committees.

° Assessment and confirmation of the independence of the INED
according to the criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee in compliance
with the Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process and internal
controls and discussing with the external auditor for the nature and
scope of audit. Written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
were formulated and adopted in March 2005.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent
Non-executive Director. Its present members are:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo — Chairman
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Choy Sze Chung,
Jojo, has appropriate professional qualification in accounting
and extensive experience in accounting and auditing matters.
Senior management and external auditor shall normally attend the
meetings. The Audit Committee held 4 meetings in 2018/2019 in
which three of the meetings with representatives from the external
auditor of the Company, for the purpose of discharging the
aforesaid duties.

Below is a summary of principal work performed by the Audit
Committee during 2018/2019:

° Discussion with the auditors the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations before the audit commenced.

° Review of the annual financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2018 and the interim financial statements
of the Group for the six months ended 30 September 2018,
with recommendations to the Board for approval.

° Review reports from the auditors to the Audit Committee.
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° Review of the internal controls and the risk management
systems of the Group.

° Review of the connected transactions (including continuing
connected transactions) carried out during the year.

° Review of the financial budget of the Group.

° Review and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment and the resignation of the auditors.

° Review and approve the remuneration, other terms of
engagement, the nature and scope of the audit and the
reporting obligations of the auditor.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment and resignation of the
external auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2019
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Each year, the auditor is appointed by resolution at the annual
general meeting of the Company and the Directors are authorised to
fix the remunerations for the auditing services.

During the year, Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe”) resigned as
the auditor of the Company with effect from 1 March 2019. BDO
Limited (“BDO”) was appointed as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 1 March 2019 to fill the casual vacancy occasioned by
the resignation of Crowe. BDO shall hold office until the conclusion
of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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The fee paid or payable to BDO for annual audit for the year
ended 31 March 2019 amounted to approximately HK$1.50 million
(2018: HK$1.30 million paid to Crowe). BDO and its affiliated
companies have performed other non-auditing services during
the year with aggregate service fee of approximately HK$0.34
million (2018: HK$0.51 million paid to Crowe). Non-auditing
services include mainly provision of professional services in tax
consultancy, compliance review, review on Environmental, Social
and Governance Report and review of the continuing connected
transactions and the annual results announcement of the Group.
The Audit Committee has considered, based on the policy
developed by them in this regard, and made recommendations to
the Board for these non-auditing services conducted by our auditor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board and the Board
committees by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company
Secretary also plays an essential role in the relationship between
the Company and its shareholders, and facilitates induction and
professional development of directors.

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring that the Board is
fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments and that it has regard to them when making
decisions. The Company Secretary also advises the Directors on
their obligations for disclosure of interests in securities, connected
transactions and inside information and ensures that the standards
and disclosures required by the Listing Rules are observed and,
where required, reflected in the annual reports of the Company.

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and
has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company
Secretary is appointed by the Board and reports to the chairman
and the chief executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Li Yat Ming, the Financial Controller of the Group, has been
appointed by the Company as the company secretary. He is also the
primary contact person of the Company. For the year under review,
Mr. Li has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
trainings to update his skills and knowledge. The biographical
details of Mr. Li are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” of this Annual Report.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS
RIGHTS - CONVENING OF GENERAL
MEETING

To promote investor relations and communications, meetings
with fund managers and potential investors are held frequently.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meetings for which at least 21 days, notice is given. The Chairman
and Directors are available to answer questions on the Group’s
businesses at the meetings. An annual general meeting of the
Company shall be held every year within a period of not more than
fifteen (15) months after the holding of the last preceding annual
general meeting.

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
general meeting of the Company and put forward agenda items for
consideration by shareholders. Each general meeting, other than an
annual general meeting, shall be called a special general meeting.
Shareholders holding an aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%)
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section
74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. Pursuant to Rule
13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a general
meeting must be taken by poll. Accordingly, all the resolutions
put to vote at the annual general meetings will be taken by way of
poll. The chairman of the annual general meetings will explain the
detailed procedures for conducting a poll at the commencement of
the annual general meetings.

After the conclusion of the annual general meetings, the poll results
will be published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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The Board is committed to providing clear and full performance
information of the Group to shareholders through the publication
of interim and annual reports. In additional to dispatching circulars,
notices, financial reports to shareholders, addition information is
also available to shareholders from the Group’s website.

A resolution in respect of certain proposed changes to the Bye-laws
of the Company was passed in the 2012 AGM held on 20 August
2012. An updated constitutional document of the Company was
published on 22 August 2012.

DIVIDEND POLICY

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Company may
declare dividend according to the recommendation of the board of
directors of the Company. No dividend shall be paid or distribution
made out of contributed surplus if to do so would render the
Company unable to pay its liabilities as they become due or the
realisable value of its assets would thereby become less than its
liabilities.

The Company may in its full discretion decide not to declare
dividend due to various reasons, including but not limited to
maintaining or adjusting the capital structure and reserving more
capital to capture opportunities, etc.

According to the Bermuda Companies Act, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution, out of contributed
surplus if: (a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or (b) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ¥ @A R A
ANNUAL REPORT 2019 45

EEQEBTIRTHRFREREBMEE
wrRARREEREEAEERRAZER - KES
TR - BERMBHREI - BERINAIRALE
B ERIEE A AR

BEARRETARMAZ ZEEE 2IRER
ERARRE_E——FNA-THBETZZ
E-_FRFAFAG BB - AQFERZ
T——FEN A+ -HHHLFHEREX
o

BRI BUR
BEAATNER  ARATREFANES
BNRBTHHERE - MREFHEEAF

EEAXNEENEEXREEEN T ZRER
At eERERE  NMEXMREHDEHR
Btk o

REAIRBEEBRE - SRERETRRER
BEXGEE REEZESUERKESE R
ETRROLE

RIBCARZERRDE) » 0@ AN TR BEAS
AMHEE - RATFEMDIREISITALF
SRBRNAEFTETOR k(o) HEEMNA
SHREERNEKEREBEMD HETROD LR
AR EE -



TEERRE
Corporate Governance Report

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company or at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company secretary of
the Company whose contact details are as follows:

Sparkle Roll Group Limited

Rooms 2028-36, 20th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2299 9902

Fax: (852) 2802 8577

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has an on ongoing responsibility for maintaining the
Group’s system of internal control and for the assessment and
management of risk and reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard
shareholders, investment and the Company’s assets. In meeting
its responsibility, the Board has entrusted the Audit Committee
and appointed professional internal control consultant with the
responsibility to assess risk of the Group and review the internal
control systems of the Group, which include financial, operational
ad compliance controls functions. The risk assessment report
will document the major business risks while the internal review
report will provide the factual findings of whether the internal
control procedures, systems and controls of the Group are suitably
designed to achieve specified control objectives, have been placed
in operation, and are operating effectively, in which the specific
controls objectives are achieved during a specified period from the
testing and review.
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During the year, the Board has conducted review on the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group through
discussions with the Audit Committee on audit findings and control
issue. The internal control review report for the year listed out the
findings of the weaknesses in respect of the relevant cycles and
procedures with recommendations proposed for the Company to
further improve its internal control system. The results of the review
and the risk assessment report have been identified and appropriate
measures have been put in place to manage the risks. The Board
based on the review of the Audit Committee, considered that the
Group’s internal control system is effective and the resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the accounting and financial reporting functions, were adequate for
the year under review.

The Company has reviewed the inside information policy from
time to time and kept its content up-to-date. The updated inside
information policy for the handling and dissemination of inside
information has been circulated to the Directors, the senior
management and the relevant employees when they are employed.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Company and that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. It is also the responsibility
of the Directors to ensure the timely publication of the financial
statements of the Company. During the year, the management has
provided sufficient explanation and information to the Board to
enable it to make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before it for approval including the updates on the

Company’s performance, position and prospects.

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance, an
explanation of the basis on which the Company generates or
preserves value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering
the Company’s objectives have been prepared and included in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this Annual Report.
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TRERBE

Corporate Governance Report

The Directors confirm that they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board recognises its responsibility to prepare consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view and are in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations (hereafter
collectively referred to as HKFRSs) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently. Judgements and
estimates made are prudent and reasonable. The Group has
changed some of its accounting policies following the adoption of
the new or amended HKFRSs which are relevant to and effective
for the Group’s financial statements for the year. The accounting
policies adopted by the Group are set out in the Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies of the note 3 to the financial
statements. The Directors use their best endeavours to ensure a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects in financial reporting. The
Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

The responsibilities of the auditor with respect to financial reporting
are set out on pages 105 to 112 in the Independent Auditor’'s
Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sparkle Roll Group Limited

Zheng Hao Jiang
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ZHENG HAO JIANG (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Aged 52, Mr. Zheng graduated in the Law Department (Economic
Law Speciality) of Peking University in 1990 with a Bachelor degree
in Law. Mr. Zheng has over 20 years’ experience in Beijing in the
areas of equity portfolio management, capital market analysis
management and financial advisory. He is a founding member of
Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association and a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Zheng
joined the Group in October 2006.

Mr. Zheng has an interest in such number of shares under Part XV of
the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the Directors
— Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations” of this annual report.

ZHAO XIAO DONG (Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating Officer)

Aged 51,
Department of Beijing University of Chemical Technology in 1990

Mr. Zhao, graduated in the Information Technology

with a Bachelor degree in Engineering. He has over 18 years of
experience in the areas of wholesale and retail management of
luxury goods in Beijing. Mr. Zhao has been a Member of Supervisory
Board of Cultural Investment Holdings Co., Ltd (Shanghai Stock
Exchange stock code: 600715) since October 2015.

Mr. Zhao was the executive Director, the Deputy Chairman and the
Chief Operating Officer of the Company from September 2008 to
December 2015. He had also been a Consultant from January 2016
to 15 April 2018 in respect of the watch and jewellery business
of the Group and has been re-designated as the Chief Operating
Officer of the Group since 16 April 2018.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

ZHU LEI

Aged 44, Mr. Zhu obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Russian
from the Department of Foreign Languages and Literatures
of Beijing Normal University in 1998. He has over 18 years of
experience in management and sales of watches and jewelry and
management and operation of golf clubs. Mr. Zhu joined the Group
in May 2011 and has since held several positions in the Group,
including but not limited to the executive director of the marketing
department of our Beijing headquarter, the operating director of
Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin Tian Di Commerce Development Limited,
the director of the fine wine business of the Group and the general
manager of Sparkle Roll Online (Beijing) Business Service Limited.

Mr. Zhu is the brother-in-law of Mr. Qi Jian Hong who is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Qi Jian Hong is also the
younger brother of Mr. Qi Jian Wei, a Non-executive Director of the
Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

GAO YU

Aged 45, Mr. Gao is currently a Managing Director of the Private
Equity Division of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, primarily focusing
on private equity investment activities in China. He had also been
a non-executive director of China Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd. (HK
stock code: 3818) (“China Dongxiang”) from July 2007 to May 2013
and then has been re-designated as an independent non-executive
director of China Dongxiang from 24 May 2013 to present. Mr.
Gao is a director of Shandong Buchang Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.
(Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code: 603858) which was listed on
18 November 2016.
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Mr. Gao was also a non-executive director of Belle International
Holdings Ltd (HK stock code: 1880) from August 2006 to August
2014 and then had been re-designated as an independent non-
executive director of Belle International Holdings Limited from 5
August 2014 to 27 July 2017.

Prior to joining Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, Mr. Gao worked in
Citigroup’s Investment Banking Division in Asia for about five years.
He also worked in Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette’s Debt Capital
Markets Group in New York. Mr. Gao graduated from Stanford
University with a Master’s degree in engineering-economic systems
and operations research as well as from Tsinghua University in
Beijing with dual Bachelor’s degrees in engineering and economics.
Mr. Gao joined the Group in September 2010.

Ql JIAN WEI

Aged 64, Mr. Qi has over 15-year experience in the jewellery
business in China including trading management, development of
distribution channels and production operations. He graduated from
machineries profession of Beijing Open University in 1982. He is
the elder brother of Mr. Qi Jian Hong, the sole beneficial owner of
Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited. Mr. Qi joined the Group in September
2010.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHOY SZE CHUNG, JOJO

Aged 60, Mr. Choy is the Vice Chairman of National Resources
Securities Limited. He has extensive experience in the securities
industry and business management. Mr. Choy obtained Master of
Business Administration Degree from University of Wales, Newport
and Master of Business Law Degree from Monash University. Mr.
Choy was awarded Fellowship by Canadian Chartered Institute of
Business Administration and Honorary Doctorate of Management
by Lincoln University in 2019. Mr. Choy is also an independent non-
executive director of Luye Pharma Group Limited (HK stock code:
2186), Zhaojin Mining Industry Company Limited (HK stock code:
1818) and First Credit Finance Group Limited (HK stock code:
8215).

Mr. Choy was also an independent non-executive director of
Chengdu Putian Telecommunications Cable Company Limited (HK
stock code: 1202) (“Chengdu Putian”) from 16 February 2006 to 31
January 2018. On 5 July 2018, the Listing Committee of the Stock
Exchange censured, among other persons, Mr. Choy, being one
of the independent non-executive directors of Chengdu Putian, for
breach of his director’s undertaking to the Stock Exchange to use
his best endeavours to procure Chengdu Putian to comply with the
Listing Rules relating to the disclosure requirements for continuing
connected transactions. He has completed the training with respect
to the compliance obligations and duties of directors under the
Listing Rules during the period from 21 June 2018 to 30 September
2018.
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Mr. Choy is also the Vice Chairman of the Institute of Securities
Dealers Limited, a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Directors, a fellow member of Institute of Financial Accountants,
a fellow member of the Institute of Compliance Officers, a fellow
member of the Institute of Public Accountants, a member of
Society of Registered Financial Planner Limited, a member of the
fourth session and the fifth session of the Chief Executive Election
Committee of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (Financial
Services Subsector), a member of the Election Committee of the
12th and 13th National People’s Congress of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, a member of Shantou Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Committee, an honorary president of Shantou
Overseas Friendship Association, an honorary president of Shantou
Overseas Exchange Association, an honorary principal of Chen Po
Sum School, a committee member of Rotary Club Kowloon West
and a director of Federation of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Community
Organizations. Mr. Choy joined the Group in October 2007.

Mr. Choy has an interest in such number of shares under Part XV of
the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the Directors
— Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations” of this annual report.

LAM KWOK CHEONG

Aged 65, Mr. Lam holds Bachelor of Laws degree from the
University of Hong Kong. He is an independent non-executive
director of Wah Sun Hangbags International Holdings Limited (HK
stock code: 2683).

Mr. Lam was an independent non-executive director of Southwest
Securities International Securities Limited (HK stock code: 812) and
China Brilliant Global Limited (formerly known as Prosten Health
Holdings Limited) (HK stock code: 8026) until his resignation on
19 September 2016 and 12 February 2018, respectively. He was
also an independent non-executive director of Kaisa Health Group
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Mega Medical Technology
Limited) (HK stock code: 876) from September 2004 to June 2014
and then re-designated as a non-executive director from 20 June
2014 to 30 June 2016.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lam is a Justice of the Peace with Bronze Bauhinia Star
(BBS) and a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Mr. Lam is currently a China-appointed
Attesting Officer, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors, Ex-Officio Member of Heung Yee Kuk New Territories,
member of Panel of Adjudicators, Obscene Articles Tribunal, a
member of Buildings Ordinance Appeal Tribunal Panel and a Civil
Celebrant of Marriages. Mr. Lam joined the Group in October 2007.

LEE THOMAS KANG BOR

Aged 65, Mr. Lee is an independent non-executive director and the
chairman of the audit committee and the remuneration committee
and a member of the nomination committee of China Infrastructure
& Logistics Group Ltd. (HK stock code: 1719).

Mr. Lee is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Lee
graduated from the University of London with bachelor’s and
master’s degrees in laws and was called to the Bar of the Lincoln’s
Inn of United Kingdom. He served as president of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong from 1999 to 2002, president of the Asia—
Oceania Tax Consultants’ Association from 2012 to 2014 and is
now its honorary advisor, and he is serving as the president of Hong
Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association. Mr. Lee
is the chairman of Thomas Lee & Partners Limited, Certified Tax
Advisers. Mr. Lee joined the Group in August 2008.

Mr. Lee has an interest in such number of shares under Part XV of
the SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the Directors
— Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations” of this annual report.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ql JIAN HONG

Aged 52, Mr. Qi has over 20 years’ experience in the areas of
wholesale and retail management of luxury goods in China. Mr. Qi
is also the sole beneficial owner of Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited, a
controlling shareholder of the Company. He is the younger brother
of Mr. Qi Jian Wei, a non-executive Director. He is a President of film
division since 1 February 2019.

Mr. Qi was the Honorary Advisor from 1 December 2015 to 31
March 2017 and then serves as the Honorary Chairman of the
Company from 1 April 2017 to 31 January 2019.

Mr. Qi was the President of the automobile dealership division
and watch distributorship division and was regarded as a senior
management of the Group from June 2008 to November 2015.
Mr. Qi was also a director of Cultural Investment Holdings Co., Ltd
(Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code: 600715) until his resignation
with effect from 16 August 2018.

Mr. Qi has an interest in such number of shares under Part XV of the
SFO as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the Directors —
Substantial shareholders’ interests in shares and underlying shares
of the Company” of this annual report.
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LI YAT MING

Aged 39, Mr. Li is the Financial Controller, Company Secretary and
Authorised Representative of the Company and he joined the Group
in July 2009. He has over 10 years of experience in accounting,
auditing, financial management, taxation and company secretarial
fields. Prior to joining the Group, he had served in an international
accounting firm. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in
Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
a Postgraduate Certificate in Corporate Compliance from The
University of Hong Kong School of Professional and Continuing
Education. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and also is a member of Hong Kong Securities
and Investment Institute and Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association.

JIA HAI TAO

Aged 51, Mr. Jia graduated from the master’s programme in
business economics (FHELKLBEE ) of the Graduate School of
Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in 1998 and is the General
Manager of Rolls-Royce Beijing of the Group. Mr. Jia has held
various senior management positions since 1998 in the fields of
sales and marketing, and in these positions, he was responsible
for the marketing of computer equipment at KeHai Group* (L&
£[E), consultancy and marketing of life insurance at Sino-US
MetLife Insurance Co., Ltd.* (R ERKH 2= ASZSHFEE AT )and film
studio marketing at Beijing Sparkle Roll International Film Studio
Management Limited* (b RIRK BB M EIR AR A 7]). Mr. Jia
joined the Group in September 2012 and has served in various
capacities, including deputy general manager of the automobile
dealership division, deputy general manager of Rolls-Royce Beijing,
deputy general manager and general manager of Bentley Beijing of
the Group.
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LIU JING JING

Aged 45, Ms. Liu graduated from the Beijing University of
Technology in 1997 with a Bachelor of Engineering in air-
conditioning and cooling (= EK S HEE)and is the Head of
automobile dealership division and deputy general manager
of Lamborghini Beijing of the Group. Since 1997, Ms. Liu had
been working in the area of public relations with Beijing Dongan
Group* (bt REZEE), Shidu Mall* (tH#HE)and Zhongshang
Department Store* (B H & ). She joined the Bentley Beijing Group
in 2001 as assistant to president and was responsible for handling
commercial vehicle orders, vehicle purchase and liaison with foreign
vehicle manufacturers for nearly 6 years. Ms. Liu joined the Group in
July 2008 and has served as assistant to president and purchasing
manager of the automobile dealership division of the Group.

CHEN LING

Aged 40, Mr. Chen graduated from the Beijing Institute of
Technology in 2001 with a Bachelor of Engineering in computer
science and from the University of Wollongong in Australia in 2009
with a Master in Information Technology Management. He is the
General Manager of B&0O PLAY at Balanorm Beo (Beijing) Trading
Development Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, and Head of the
e-commerce division of the Group. Mr. Chen has been engaging,
and has accumulated rich experience, in corporate management
and information technology management since 2010. Mr. Chen
joined the Group in July 2013 and was assistant to president of the
automobile dealership division of the Group and training manager of
B&O PLAY at Balanorm Beo (Beijing) Trading Development Limited.

QU JING

Aged 38, Ms. Qu graduated from the undergraduate programme in
fashion design and performance of the Beijing Institute of Fashion
Technology in 2001 and is the General Manager of the Group’s
Sparkle Roll Honor Club. Ms. Qu has been engaging in the sale of
Bentley vehicles for various years after graduation and later joined
the Group in June 2010. Prior positions at the Group include Head
of the sales department of the wine division, Beijing Sparkle Roll
Luxury World (Hua Mao) and Rolls-Royce Beijing of the Group. She
has extensive experience in cross-selling of various product lines of
the Group and handling VIP relations.
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CHENG BIN

Aged 48, Ms. Cheng graduated from the Kwantlen Polytechnic
University i n Canada i n 2008 with a Bachelor o f Business
Administration in Accounting. She also is the Chartered Professional
Accountant, Certified General Accountant (CPA,CGA). Ms. Cheng
currently is the assistant operating director and Head of the fine
wine division of the Group. She had served as auditor and financial
controller at BDO Canada and Canada JinBi International Limited*
since 2008. She joined the Group in March 2013 and held the
position as the Head of the watch and jewelry division and the Head
of the marketing and media division of the Group.

WEN Ql

Aged 43, Mr. Wen graduated from Training School of Beijing
Communist Party Committee with a college degree in 2005. He
is currently the General Manager of Bentley Tianjin, a subsidiary
of the Group. Mr. Wen joined Sparkle Roll Group in May 2011
and has since held several positions in the Group, including the
executive assistant of Beijing headquarter of the Group, deputy
manager and workshop director of branded automobile aftersales
service division of the Group, the deputy general manager and
sales manager of Bentley Tianjin, a subsidiary of the Group. During
the seven years since joining the Group, Mr. Wen has served in
various capacities and possesses professional background and
after-sales maintenance service management experience for
luxury automobiles and sales management experience for Bentley
automobiles.

* for identification purpose only
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE REPORT

With a mission to build a kingdom of luxury goods dealerships and
act as the leader to develop the PRC luxury goods market at its full
speed, the Group recognises that it is vital to integrate the principles
of sustainability into the business operations with an aim to achieve
corporate profitability, maximise positive returns to our employees
and shareholders, and promote the sustainable development in the
society.

The Group is pleased to publish our third environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) report (the “Report”) and communicate
the practices and initiatives of the Group’s ESG management with
our stakeholders. The Report has been prepared in accordance
with the “Comply or explain” Provisions of the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEx ESG Reporting Guide”). The scope
of the Report focuses on the Group’s core business operation —
the dealerships of ultra-luxury automobile with after-sale services
provision in Beijing and Tianjin and covers the period from 1 April
2018 to 31 March 2019 (the “Reporting Period”). The Report
has been reviewed and approved by the board of directors (the
“Board”).

The Group values your feedback and welcomes to receive your
opinions on the Report via email at info@hk970.com.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group is dedicated to maintaining open and constant
communication with our stakeholders through various channels
for sharing their opinions and suggestions in respect of the
corporate development, as well as properly addressing their needs,
expectations and/or concerns relevant to its business operations.

The table below indicated the major types of stakeholders
identified by the Group and the communication channels with the
stakeholders:

K ESHEREEMRMG

REEBHRBEBSE BN ERFHN
RBEBR UNEZREFHQARBRNESR
NiEE IR EERBHFEHEFKEEGHRN
HE - HER BT

TRINRAEECHBINFNENETERUR
BEFFHEBRTR

Types of stakeholder group Communication channels
BFEARER BRAN

Investors & Shareholders . Corporate website
wEERKRE o RNAEAEUL

° Annual General Meeting

e KRRBFARE®

° Annual and Interim Reports

s EHRTHEE

o Corporate announcements

° —J /\’-‘l:
Customers . Corporate website
2P o REPH

° Annual and Interim Reports

s  FHRTHEE

° Feedback from customers

s XEPREE
Employees ° Training and orientation
== e FHIIKRIEE

. Intranet and opinion box

s ABBLERME

. Regular meetings and performance review

s TEHEmLkRBRE

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #2#£ B A R A A

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 4

79



RIE - HERERRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Suppliers & Business Partners ° Procurement process
HER R EBEH s  REBRIZ

O Regular communication with business partners (e.g. email,
meetings, on-site visit etc.)

e HEEBBHETTHERDINER @@ BEHFHE)

Government Authorities and Regulators . Documented information submission
AT EBPT I B E s s RIRNHEH
° Forums, conferences and workshops
s WE FRNAAFE

Communities ° Corporate website
Fan . NGIEERS

. Community participation
s HEZH

Media . Corporate website
ee e RuEl4EuL
. Corporate announcements
o NGIVNCS
° Interviews and networking platforms

- BHRBHTA
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

To understand and identify the material ESG issues for the
Group and formulate the direction of the Report, the Group has
commissioned an independent consultant who carried out a
materiality assessment through an online questionnaire to determine
the ESG topics that greatly influenced the Group. The Group’s
stakeholders, including the Board, employees and business
partners etc., were invited to fill in an online questionnaire and rate
the importance of 27 ESG topics towards the Group’s business
operations and stakeholders themselves respectively. The collected
results were used to analyse the degree of the materiality of each
ESG topics and the materiality matrix plotted is presented below.
The topics fell in the upper right corner of the matrix were defined as
the topics that matter most to the Group’s business operation and
are concerned by our stakeholders.

BTBRERAEEIRE e RkERACEKXN
HERBEREN TR AEED LB
B ERERTAMEsAERRAEE TG -
NEESAEBBEATENRE  HERE
AR AEENBOE(BEESS  ES
REBEHLS) ESRFERSTGMASAETL D
PIMEAR A EEN XS ERFNERTH27
fIRE e RERAZENEEHEDLTE

FIREERANSMEERE g REREE
WMEZRERFESHEZMHEMSTRIT - 8
TNEERE LANZERTE AU ASERES
LERBERFOHERRBYNES -

Materiality Matrix

I
Medium Priority E E I& %E E High Priority
RERAER BB
g (25} 3@ ®
o o®
2 ®
3
< i o ® o
o u g oo
& ;4‘-; (14
& @ @ o
° ©
9 g
.g’ e
o [+
©
e O
Low P riority Medium Priority
REER RERR

Significance to the Group’s Business & Operation

HERKERBEREENHEEREN
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Social

. &
Environment e

RE Employment Operation
1. Air emission 9.  Labour rights 18. Customer satisfaction
1. ZERIEM 9. BIER 18. EPWMEE
2. Greenhouse gas emission 10. Labour-Management relations 19. Customer service quality &
2. RERBEHEMN 10. BEBEE complaints handling
3. Climate change 11. Employee retention 19. BFREESE RIRFEE
3. RIESE 11. H®HEEES 20. Customer health and safety
4. Energy efficiency 12. Diversity and equal opportunity |20. BEFR@ENLLTE
4. BRI EE 12. otk TFEHS 21. Marketing and product and
5. Water & effluents 13.  Non-discrimination service labelling compliance
5. KEREK 13, FEEAR 21. ZHRERUEBRBEESR
6. Use of materials 14. Occupational health and safety 22. Intellectual property
6. MEHMEMR 14, BERERLZE 22. MBERE
7. Waste management 15. Employee training 23. Customer privacy and data
7. EEYER 15. EEHII protection
8.  Environmental compliance 16. Employee development 23. BENBRERHMRE
8. IRMEH 16. EEERE 24. Responsible supply chain
17. Prevention of child labour & management
forced labour 24, BREMHERER
17, ZHEEBTRBFIST 25. Business ethics

25. BERBEE

26. Socio-economic compliance

26. HELKBEER

Community
itE
27. Community investment
27. HEIEE

From the results of materiality matrix, it was identified that our focus MEBBEMWEEARAUEL - RPN EEE
should be placed on the products and services responsibility, labour @ MREEE - B TER BEBES LEERS
rights, employee retention and employee training. The Group will 37 HE - AEEKTHRTIRE  +2@hES
review the existing approaches of ESG management regularly and EIE/MIRF ARG THENRE H2kE
devise the corresponding ESG strategies, policies and targets, as 458 « MEREBE  URERFENRELE
well as looking for opportunities for continuous improvements to  fEFHEHEAE

response to the expectations of its stakeholders.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

QUALITY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Group is committed to offering products with quality customer
services and after-sale services to our customers, by enhancing
the customer experience, better understanding and fulfilling
their personalised needs, in order to maintain good customer

relationships and gain their trust and loyalty.
Products responsibility

The Group is the authorised auto distributor of various ultra-luxury
automobiles brands, namely Bentley, Lamborghini and Rolls-
Royce. Being the top luxury car brands in the world, the brands are
committed to environmental protection and social responsibility.
Hence, the product quality is of strict quality assurance process
to safeguard the customer health and safety, and all products
should meet the local laws and regulations, including the Regulation
Concerning Management of Compulsory Product Certification ({58

HIMERBEEEETE)).

During the Reporting Period, a second appeal of civil litigation (First
Litigation)' was identified in Tianjin subsidiary regarding the quality
of a delivered product. This case was concluded and reached
a settlement with the plaintiff in December 2018. The Appeal
Judgment was revoked and the plaintiff’'s withdrawal of all claims in
the First Litigation was permitted by the First Intermediate People’s
Court of Tianjin City. The Group reviewed its impact on the financial
position, ordinary operation and quality assurance on delivered
products and services and confirmed that there was no significant
impacts on the Group. In order to prevent the recurrence of the
similar case, the Group requires customers in Tianjin need to sign a
“Pre-delivery Inspection Acknowledgement” before the completion
of sales transaction to ensure that the pre-delivery inspection
procedure for product quality checking is well-communicated with
the customers and properly executed.

" Please refer to the corporate announcement of litigation update dated 28
December 2018 for more details.

BEERRR®
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Customer services

The Group is dedicated to delivering customer-centric services
to our customers. Regarding to achieve this objective, the Group
has formulated a Sales Management Procedure with the required
services standards and manners for our frontline colleagues
and salesmen to follow in the sale lifecycle. For instance, the
Group requests our staff to receive customer calls and visits in a
polite, friendly and passionate manner, maintain the cleanliness
and comfort of the showrooms and after-sale services centres,
introduce the automotive products with various brands in details
with professional knowledge (e.g. automobile body dimensions and
structure, highlights of exterior and interior features and segment
comparison of different series), and answer the questions from our
customers correctly with business etiquette in order to leave an
impressive impression to our customers. Besides, to constantly care
for our customers and understand their existing and potential needs,
our staff carry out regular calls or interviews with our customers
after the deal and offer sincere greeting in special festivals such
as birthday and Lunar New Year, so that the Group can maintain
a good and close interaction with our existing customers, explore
potential new clients from our existing customers and establish the
branding reputation through our prominent customer services.

Apart from the sale of automotive, the Group also provides quality
auto after-sale services for the customers. Our after-sale services
mainly cover the automobile repair and maintenance, sales of auto
components and other related auto products. With the provision of
efficient technical diagnosis on automobile repair with tailor-made
maintenance plans and value-added services, the Group strives not
only to lead a great customer experience and maximise customer
values, but also to achieve customer satisfaction and customer
retention and hence strengthen the bond between the Group and
customers.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Customer complaint handling

The Group learns to take the customer feedback and complaints
as an opportunity to understand their needs and expectations in a
better way and to identify our gap and shortfalls of our customer
services, thus the Group can make continuous improvements in
our services and build a stronger and long-lasting relations with the
customers.

Upon the receipt of complaints from customers, whether through
the channels of customer hotline, emails or in person at showrooms
or after-sale services centres, the person-in-charge of the relevant
department will follow the established complaint management
procedure to verify and confirm the complaint issues, to offer
satisfactory solution(s) in a timely manner as well as tracking the
customer satisfaction on our performance of the problem resolution.
The records of the customer complaints are properly recorded
and served as one of the indicators for reviewing the existing sales
management process and determining areas of improvement for
continuously optimising our customer services and enhancing the
customer satisfaction.

Managing our suppliers

Building up close and long-term relationships with our suppliers
can strengthen the sustainable development of the Group
in the industry. The Group has a standardised procurement
management system in place to govern the supplier management
and procurement process. In order to select capable and reliable
suppliers for materials and equipment in the procurement process,
the Group will conduct thorough examinations on the qualifications
and competency of the potential suppliers, by the review of the
documented information including but not limited to business
register licenses, tax registration certificates, special production
licenses, product quality certificates, annual audit certificates,
product quality inspection reports. Suppliers who can fulfil our
requirements can become our qualified suppliers.
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With an aim to create fair and open competitions for suppliers, the
procurement department of the Group conducts market research
and price comparison with at least three or more quotations, in
order to optimise the purchasing cost and simultaneously to ensure
the product quality for our daily operation. For the automobile
components, the Group mainly purchases goods from the original
factories or fixed purchase outlets of the authorised brands to
guarantee the products quality and safety. The Group will assess
the suppliers’ performance upon their delivery of the products such
as the product quality, quality control, after-sale service and the
punctuality of delivery etc. The Group will discontinue the business
dealings with the suppliers who are with dissatisfactory products
quality and underperformance.

Likewise, to uphold the highest standard of business integrity in
our business dealings, our employees and our business partners
are strictly prohibited to offer or accept any benefits such as gifts,
commission and entertainment among each other in order to obtain
any personal advantages.

ACT WITH INTEGRITY

The success of the Group is built on the trust with our customers,
vendors, business partners and the community. Upholding the
moral of integrity is critical to gain their trusts and thus sustain our
long-term business growth. The Group is committed to standing
against any corruption practices such as bribery, fraud and money
laundering in our operations.

Anti-corruption

As stipulated in the staff handbook, employees are required to
adhere to the code of conduct and demonstrate sound moral and
business ethics at work, as well as complying with relevant national
laws and regulations such as the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and the Anti-monopoly Law of
the PRC. The Group is strictly prohibited our employees offer and/
or accept any benefits such as present, kickbacks and commissions
etc. In any event of unlawful acts performed by our employees,
they are subject to the disciplinary actions, including immediate
employment termination, after the inspection and confirmation of
such acts by the Group. During the Reporting Period, the Group was
not aware of any breaches of relevant laws and regulations relating
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
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Privacy protection

To protect intangible assets of the Group as well as the privacy of
our customers and our employees, the Group has strict internal
control for information collection and access, and has complied
with the relevant laws and regulations such as Law of the PRC on
the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests. For instance,
the Group only collects and uses the essential customer personal
information pursuant to the requirements of various brands for sale
transaction. A declaration of customer personal information privacy
statement must be signed with our customers accordingly to ensure
they have consent to the collection, usage, storage, transfer and
disclosure of personal information with their legitimate rights. The
member profiles with the collected customer information are only
reserved by authorised persons and stored in the system with multi-
layer password login to protect the security of customer information.
All our employees are strictly prohibited to transfer and/or disclose
the customer data to third parties. In addition, for the confidential
information of the Group (e.g. trade secrets, employee personal
data, business and sales data and intellectual properties etc.),
employees are required to follow the internal rules for confidential
information handling to prevent loss, misuse, leakage and/or
disclosure of such information outside the Group. Employees for
non-compliance with the rules are subject to disciplinary actions
including termination of employment contract.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
breaches of relevant laws and regulations relating to the privacy
matter and confidentiality.
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EMPLOYEE CARING

Our employees are the integral part of fostering the sustainable
business development and growth of the Group. In adherence to the
spirit of “Integrity, trustworthy, innovative and excellent”, the Group
strives to create a safe, motivating and inclusive workplace to our
employees, who can enjoy fair competition, free of discrimination,
career growth, personal development and mutual trust.

Employment practices

The Group has established a management system in formulating the
employee remuneration and benefits package in accordance with its
Labour Policy. Benefits to full-time employees include basic salary,
holidays (e.g. marriage leaves, maternity leaves, paternity leaves
and compassionate leaves etc.), rest periods, insurance coverage
(e.g. five social insurance schemes and one fund), overtime
compensation and allowances etc., which are complied with the
relevant national laws and regulations such as the Labour Law of the
PRC & the Labour Contract Law of the PRC and communicated in
our labour contract and staff handbook. The Group sets standard
working hours for employees and minimises overtime work for
our staff. In any event, overtime works are on a voluntary basis
and prior approval from the management must be sought. The
Group also provides breastfeeding breaks for female employees
in the workplace abided by the relevant laws and regulations for
protecting the well-being of female employees. In order to motivate
the employees and enhance their work passion, the Group also
conducts regular staff remuneration review and analysis to ensure
our employees are rewarded competitively with a balance of market
competitiveness, organisational business conditions and individual
performance. The bonus will be granted to the employees who have
good performance and achievement.

The Group upholds the principle of fairness and openness in
the recruitment, employee performance review and promotion,
transferral and dismissal process. The Group merely takes
candidate’s individual performance, experience, competency and
potentials as the only factors for consideration and decision-making,
and any gender discrimination is strictly prohibited. Likewise, the
individual employees who repeatedly violate the company rules and/
or are underperformed could result in the dismissal.
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In protecting of the human rights and freedom, the Group has
zero tolerance on the use of child labour and forced labour in our
workplace. Our human resources department will carry out identity,
qualifications and job reference checks to examine the age and job
eligibility of all applicants before the employment. All employees
sign the employment contract consensually and voluntarily with
the Group and they are free to leave the existing position upon the
required notice.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
breaches with relevant national labour laws and regulations relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare or the use of child and forced labour.

Training and development

The growth and success of the Group is underpinned by the strong
and talented workforce. The Group places emphasis on employee
training and career development opportunities to and nurture their
potentials to meet the evolving change of the business environment
and operational needs.

In order to maintain a reasonable and prospective career ladder for
talent retention, the Group prioritises the internal staff promotion
before external recruitment when there are job vacancies. In
addition, the Group has categorised the job position in different
grades and followed the pre-determined criteria and principles in
staff promotion, to ensure all the employees have fair and equal
opportunities for competition as well as placing the right person at
the right position for enhancing the staff morale and productivity.
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The Group offers an induction training for all new employees, by the
introduction of the corporate historical development, culture and
business goals, internal corporate rules and regulations, employee
welfare and benefits, code of conduct as well as relevant basic
knowledge on daily operation, so that the new staff can swiftly adapt
to the new working environment. Besides, the Group provides a
wide range of in-house training courses and programmes (e.g. legal
compliance and latest update of laws and regulations, services
operation systems of various auto brands, techniques of after-
sale automobile diagnosis, knowledge on automobile features and
functions, leadership and communication skills etc.) regularly for the
existing employees at different positions such as frontline salesmen,
after-sale services centre staff and managerial staff to ensure they
can attain new skills and sufficient knowledge in enhancing job
satisfaction and capability. The eligible employees are entitled to
sponsorship for attending specialised external training, with an
aim to acquire the latest professional knowledge and innovative
technique and tools related to the current job duties, and hence
strengthen the overall competitive edges of the Group in the industry
by knowledge sharing.

Occupational health and safety

The Group is committed to maintaining a safe working environment
for our employees. The Group has established a safety management
system in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations
(i.e. the Work Safety Law of the PRC and the Law of the PRC on
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases) to govern the
overall occupational health and safety execution and performance in
our workplace.
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The Group has formulated a series of safety operational procedures,
working guidelines and safety initiatives for our staff to follow in
daily operation, as well as providing suitable personal protective
equipment (“PPE”), in order to protect our employees from
occupational safety hazards and risks and avoid work-related
accidents or injuries. For workers engaged in specialised and high-
risk activities, they must attend corresponding training and certified
as a qualified person prior to the work operation. For the workers
who are in operation of paint spraying and panel beating in our after-
sale services centres, they are required to conduct occupational
health check-up at least once a year to monitor their health
conditions. The Group also provides additional subsidies to workers
whose work is at higher risk.

The Group offers regular occupational health and safety training
programmes, including the introduction of the safety management
system, legal requirements on occupational health and safety, the
use of PPE, working guidelines and precautionary steps on paint
spraying operation etc., to the employees in order to increase
the safety awareness among our employees as well as paying
full attention to the identified potential hazardous exposures
during the operational activities. In addition, the Group has
developed the emergency preparedness procedure with clearly
defined responsibility of different departments and personnel. The
emergency drills (e.g. chemical spillage drills and fire drills) are
arranged on a regular basis to equip our employees the skills on
emergency handling.
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Safety promotion on safety production

In supporting of the safety promotion activity in Beijing Economic
Technological Development Area, the Group’s Beijing stores and
after-sale services centres organised a safety production month in
June 2018. Apart from providing safety refresher training related
to safety management and increase the frequency of safety
inspections on identifying potential safety risks, the Group also
invited an external organisation to provide first-aid training to
our employees and carried out emergency drills for reviewing the
effectiveness of the existing emergency preparedness procedure.
The activity aims to promote the importance of safety at work,
cultivate a safe-oriented culture in our workplace and enhance the
safety consciousness of our employees.

REEENREHERE

AXFILFTEERMAZE RO LT 2HEED
AEEIE R RERREH LN =_F—/\F
NAMBLZEEEAR - KIERERL2EEN
ZEEEEYINE MR EER AR T2
WEEERI - NEBRBFEINEBAREER

EEEFOBERE - ZEBEERTLIELZS
MEZN  BEETESMREE ENXERIE
THEENLZZER

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with laws and regulations relating to occupational health
and safety.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group recognises the corporate responsibility in environmental
protection and is committed to minimising the adverse impacts
on the environment and utilising the resources in the responsible
manner. The Group has adopted different measures to ensure
the compliance with the applicable environmental laws and
regulations (e.g. The Environmental Protection Law of the PRC, the
Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC, the
Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC and The Law
on Prevention of Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid Waste of
the PRC etc.) and reduce the significant impacts of the emissions,
wastewater discharge and waste generation on the environment
arising from our operations. During the Reporting Period, the Group
was not aware of any breaches with relevant national environmental
laws and regulations.

Managing our emissions

Considering the business nature of the Group — the provision of
automobile dealership and after-sale services, including auto part
sales, auto repair and maintenance, the Group has appropriate
mitigation measures in place to manage the key environmental
aspects — air emissions and solid waste handling throughout our
operations.

Volatile organic compounds (“VOCs”) and the dusty exhausted gas
are the major types of the air emission generated in the process
paint spraying and the process of grinding and polishing of the
vehicle body respectively in after-sale services centres. To minimise
the odour and the paint mist emitted to the atmosphere by the
paint spraying, the works can only be carried out in a designated
compartment with suitably designed air treatment facilities such as
paint mist filtering facilities with activated carbon absorbers and
with ultra-violet photocatalytic oxidation. Regular maintenance on
the air treatment facilities are carried out to ensure the facilities are
operated in normal and efficient conditions. Similarly, the grinding
equipment is fitted with vacuum cleaner for dust suppression during
the process of grinding and polishing.
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REBEERDERFNINEENRARBENT
AFBER - NEERERT RS EhERETE
RRRBERER (Flan (hEARKXMBER
BREZER) (hEARAMBEARARZER A
FE) (R EAREMBECS R AE) K& (R
EARAMBEERREMSRRRENAE) F)
Kom D & EE A RBEDN - BEKBER S BE R Y
REERNEATE - RBREHR - AEEY
PREEE RBABEIZRTARER

EEHE

ERAEENEREE R TE TR
REERRY - BREAETHHE  TELER
RE  AEERBAENREEBABTEES
BREFHERRREAER—ERIER R EEER
YIBEIE

BREEBREAMEZERREERREH L
DRI TERRE 2 & B S EMM L BIEP
ELNTIEREBHNEL - RRERIERBE
BEHRHRKLRBENERRT - TIREER
EREBNETYEAEERANEREER
T A0 A A AR R B SRS RS
HRB BB R - ZREERESHETTERE
ERE - ARERRMGEAE LT A A R T &
17 - BBl - TERBEE EZRESR - AR
FEWEE N S0 e A2 o 4P IR EE

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #E# B AR A7

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 4

93



94

R - HENERRE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

To properly handle the disposal of both hazardous waste and non-
hazardous waste generated in automobile sale stores and after-sale
services centres, the Group has waste management procedures
in place in guiding our employees in waste sorting, labelling and
storage, in particular for those hazardous waste categorised under
the national laws such as waste lubricant oil, organic solvents,
paints and activated carbon. All the hazardous waste is properly
segregated and temporarily stored in a designated area without
mixing with other solid wastes. The waste is regularly consigned to
licensed waste collectors for treatment. To minimise the amount of
hazardous waste generated, the chemicals and organic solvents
will be recycled and reused in the vehicle maintenance and paint
spraying process as much as possible. For non-hazardous waste
such as domestic waste, paper and automobile parts, the recyclable
materials and items are properly sorted, reused as much as possible
in our operations before consigned to licensed waste collectors for
recycling, recovery and treatment.

Managing our resources use

The Group strives to maximise the resource efficiency in our
daily operation and hence the Group has established a green
operation management procedure in guiding our employees to use
resources responsibly, by reducing the resources, energy and water
consumption and proper controlling of the materials use to prevent
wastage.

Notices and signs are displayed in automobile sale stores and after-
sale services centres to remind employees of saving the energy,
water and paper use. For instance, lights and air-conditioners
should be switched off before leaving the workplace or when they
are not in use; doors and windows should be closed while air-
conditioning is on. Furthermore, recycling bins are placed in working
areas to segregate different types of recyclable materials such as
plastic, glass and aluminium cans for material recycling.
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Regulating the use of company vehicles is another means of energy
saving and carbon footprint reduction. Employees are required
to make applications at least one day before the vehicle use so
that the Administrative Department can have a better planning on
the transportation route based on the travel destinations and the
number of passengers to minimise unnecessary transportation, and
thus reduce the fuel consumption and carbon emission. The Group
also carries out regular maintenance for all the vehicles to ensure
they are functioned in the optimal condition and energy efficiency.

Practices on the reduction of resources consumption

RN BRI A= 5 — EENRE SUR D i E
Hrzis - REREEBEMAIEL — RN
B EBITERERIEITIE B A R B AR
BRI BRR BERITHENR
B TR A BREDE AR R BE R o AR E IR
PRAEEEETTEHHERE  URREERE
AR B BERL T SE 1 -

WD EIFHFENES

Apply the computer technology and electronic
means of internal communication to reduce
paper consumption

Think twice before printing. When printing is
necessary, preview carefully before printing to

- FABER M R EF; it
TREEBAR D ?&gg/ﬁf%

- TEDRI=8 - WAFRATED » 7E
FT ED A 4878 B8 DAR 2 4K 5k
RE

reduce paper wastage

- FREmTEIRFEN

Adopt double-sided printing and photocopying - =/ ﬁ@iﬂﬁﬂﬂj

Reuse single-sided papers

- BB EEEEREHERSE

Recycle and reuse envelopes for internal couriers XHEIR

Water 7K

— Encourage the staff to report the leakage of taps, EXJE) 8 T M A8 R 30 P9 R K
water pipes and toiles immediately to the relevant BETR » KB REDAEIRK
department T E K RESE N T

— Avoid running water for washing and rinsing R B2 5E

— Switch off the water tap during and after washing TEEF R &2 14 BRI/ BESR

hands

Other Materials Use
i bR

phosphate or phosphonates

- Use cleansing agents manufactured with no - %

- ERAEY

— Use reusable products (e.g. stationery with refills) AR A)MIE— K
instead of using single-use disposable items 1Y)

Turn off office appliance and equipment (e.g. computers E%‘ﬁﬁlf’ﬁi’ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ BNz
and printers) when leaving the workplace 85 (AN B B IR AT ED#%)

Use desk lamps to directly illuminate the work areas EFH*‘*)@‘E%; MR TIER
Switch off the lights and air-conditioning in meeting FRATEERATPHERERAR

rooms when not in use 5‘2?5

Use of natural light whenever possible to save energy BE(E FH B AN AR A e

use

Control the room temperature to energy-efficient level T‘“’F‘*ﬁllimn%_t BEKTE RIS ER

and manintain at 25 degrees Celsius K25

Clean the light fittings and dust filters of air-conditioners B2 E & 2= AN B R MR R

to maintain the optional good conditions EE AR

RE
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Environmental performance RIBRE

The environmental performance related to the Group’s operations  P¥REHRNRN » EAEFLSHBANIERERER
during the Reporting Period is shown in the table below: TRIER :

Sparkle Roll Group Limited™°*"
BREEARAT MY

Unit®™°e? 2018/19 2017/18

B e —B-N\/-hF =B+ /-N\¥
Types of Resources Use™°*?
R RER
Direct Energy™°**¥
EE%&;@(WE{M
- Petrol for mobile combustion Litre (“L") 101,714.87 63,327.74
—  BEmEsTh VAl

Giga Joule (“GJ”) 3,334.42 2,076.01
HEH
Intensity GJ per RMB (’000) sales 0.0012 0.00091
nE HEHEBARB T LHER
Indirect Energy
R IR
- Electricity Megawatt hour (“MWh”) 905.40 1,755.83
— &7 JK LR
GJ 3,259.45 6,320.98
H5EH
Total Energy GJ 6,593.87 8,396.99
#RER HEH
Intensity GJ per RMB ('000) sales 0.0025 0.0037
nE HEEBARBTLHESR
Water m® 2,185.97 1,999.50
U SR
Intensity m® per RMB ('000) sales 0.00082 0.00087
nE SNHARBARETLHESRE
Refrigerants kg 135.20 -
CIES] Fr
Lubricant Oil L 21,176.00 -
BENiwii 7t
9 6 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #2 % £ B4 & /A ) o
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Sparkle Roll Group Limited™>*"
EReEEAaRA T MEY

Unit™oe? 2018/19 2017/18
B MR —B-N/-hF —B-t/-N\%
Type of Waste
BEYER
Hazardous Waste Tonne 19.29 13.25
BEERED A
Intensity Tonne per RMB (’000) sales 0.0000072 0.0000058
mnE g ARETTHER
Non-hazardous Waste™**¢? Tonne 2.33 -
ﬁ%%,;.:{%(m}s) [@E
Intensity Tonne per RMB (’000) sales 0.00000087 -
wnE WEARET TIHESE
Type of Emissions
BRER
Air Emission (VOCs) Tonne 0.0051 -
REFM(EZEERLEY) TiA
GHG Emission
BEREHR
Direct Emission (Scope 1)M® Tonne of carbon dioxide equivalent 418.68 147.55
B (EE 1) Y (*tCO,e”)
WE—ELiRE 2
Indirect Emission (Scope 2)N*¢” tCO,e 943.07 1,828.87
R BEh (BB 2) T WS L E S
Total tCO,e 1,361.74 1,976.42
HE WS EE
Intensity tCO,e per RMB ('000) sales 0.00051 0.00086
mnE St REEBARET THER
Note 1: The environmental key performance indicators (KPIs) only cover the — Kiir1: BIBRRESNIEEESNEMELAT
four subsidiaries namely Beijing Mei He Zhen Yong Motors Trading Bt REEIRKTEEHBER AR - bR
Limited, Beijing De Te Motors Trading Limited, Tianjin Heng Ying Tai ERAEESBRAF  REEBEREE
Fu Trading Development Limited, Tianjin Xin Chang Tai Fu Trading SEBEBRAF REEEXREEFIERE
Development Limited. BE AR -
Note 2: The Group adjusted the unit of intensity to total sales and the 2017/18  Fiit2: AEBFAER T HEELAGEEHEL T

KPIs data are updated accordingly.

—+ N\ FRREREFRRIECEEE
#h e
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Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

The packaging material is not applicable to the Group as the Group
engaged in automobile dealership and provide after-sale services to
our customers within the reporting scope.

The conversion factors from volumetric units of petrol consumption
to energy units are in reference to CDP Technical note: Conversion of
fuel data to MWh in 2018. The energy values and energy intensity of
petrol consumption in 2017/18 are recalculated based on the actual
fuel consumption data.

The figure of non-hazardous waste only covers the two subsidiaries in
Tianjin. The non-hazardous waste generated by the two subsidiaries
in Beijing is collected by the building management company and the
data is not available.

The direct emission (Scope 1) covers the emission from the mobile
sources combustion. The calculation is referred to the published
emission factors from 2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse
Gas Inventories and the guidance worksheets of World Resources
Institute’s GHG Protocol Tool for Mobile Combustion.

The indirect emission (Scope 2) covers the emission from the
purchased electricity from the Power Company. The calculation
is based on the emission factors from 2015 Emission Factors for
purchased electricity within Mainland China, published by Climate
Change Info — Net.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group believes we have the social responsibility to give back

to the community where we operate. The Group encourages our

employees to actively take part in various voluntary works and

charitable activities to care about the underprivileged groups and

needy in the community, and promote “Love & Care” culture along

the Group.
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HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPls
BRARE  HEREARERE - REERBRENER

BRXFRE - 4t B REBHRERES
#5l

Explanation/Reference Section

BE/SEED

Aspect A: Environment

EBEA: BE

A1 Emissions

INE:3. L

Information on:
(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

ERERRESRREN - AARLBIONS  £F
REEEENMELSY

(@) HE:R

b)  EFHETABEALEORMER RN
BH o

Note:
7

Air emissions include NO,, SO,, and other pollutants
regulated under national laws and regulations.
BREREERELY RECHREMXERER
RARBIRE 0 TRY

Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane,
nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons
and sulphur hexafluoride.

BERBEE_GMK Pk SLER  SAERCE
AY - 2R RABIE

Hazardous wastes are those defined by national
regulations.

BEREMEAZROMATE -

Environmental Protection — Managing our emissions

RIBRE-EEHRY
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPls

Explanation/Reference Section

BRARE HERERABERI -REERBRENES e/ SZEH
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions Environmental Protection - Managing our emissions
BRENESAL data. BRERE-EERHERD

HmER A S - Environmental Protection - Environmental performance

RERE-RERE

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) Environmental Protection — Environmental performance
BRENIEEAL2 and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of BIEQRE -BIELR

production volume, per facility).

RERBAKNE AR E) R(NER)BE (A

ESBN  BERMHE) -
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) Environmental Protection - Environmental performance

BRENEEALS

and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FELREREENRE (UHHE) R

= oo

NEESEN  §BERM1E) -

(miEm) =& (m

-REXRR

REBRE

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) Environmental Protection — Environmental performance
BRENEEALL and where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of BIBRE-BIERE

production volume, per facility).

MESEZSEENAE (UNE) R(NER)BE (1

NEESBN - BERMEE) o
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and Environmental Protection - Managing our emissions
BREMIEEALS results achieved. BIERE-CEERY

AR EH R E R R PAERR o
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous Environmental Protection — Managing our emissions
BRENIEEALG wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results BERE-EEEIY

achieved.
HAEBEEREEEENNSZ  REELEMNE
ERFTERR -
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPls
BRARE HEREABERI - REERBRENES

Explanation/Reference Section

BB/ SEED

A2 Use of Resources Policies on efficient use of resources including
A2 ERER energy, water and other raw materials.
BREAER(BEER  KREMRME) 2B -

Note:
e

Resources may be used in production, in storage,
transportation, in buildings, electronic equipment, etc.

BERABNEE B  &% 87 ETRBZ-

Environmental Protection — Managing our resources use
RERE-ERERER

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type

BRENESRA21 (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in *000s)
and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

RERANNEER/AEEER(NE R &
REUUTETREGE) REE (MAGESE -
BRiEaE) o

Environmental Protection — Environmental performance
RERE-RARR

Environmental Protection — Environmental performance
RERE-RERR

Environmental Protection — Managing our resources use
RERE-ERERER

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit
HRENEEA2.2 of production volume, per facility).

BRKEREE (WABESEN BERGHE)
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
BRENEEA23 results achieved.

B RER RS RMEKR -
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
BEENEEA24 water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives

and results achieved.

ftSKEVE R AR AT B ERIAE - KRR RAR

Environmental Protection - Managing our resources use

BERE-ERERER

R RFGHR
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products Environmental Protection - Environmental performance
BRENEEA25 (in tonnes), and, if applicable, with reference to per BIERE-BIERE

unit produced.
A mABEMBNEE NEHE) R(WER)
BEEBMKEE-
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPls
BRARE HERERABERI -REERBRENES

Explanation/Reference Section

BB/ SEED

A3 The Environment

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact

Environmental Protection — Managing our emissions

and Natural on the environment and natural resources. RIBRE-TEERY

Resources BIETANBRERAREBENERTEZHE o Environmental Protection - Managing our resources use
A BERRAER RERE-ERBERER
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities Environmental Protection — Managing our emissions
BRENIEEASA on the environment and natural resources and the BERE-SEEIY

actions taken to manage them.
HEEBEDURERAAERNEATERD KR
EREWTENTD -

Environmental Protection - Managing our resources use
REGRE-ERERER

Aspect B: Social
E@EB. %8

B1 Employment
B1 Ef%

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

ERHMLRE AENEST IEEE RE ¥
FHE  Zlt  REGAREMEERBEHN -

@ BER:R

b) ETHEAABEAYEHENERRAN
EH -

Employee Caring - Employment practices
MEET - EREEM
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPls
BRARE HEREABERI - REERBRENES

Explanation/Reference Section

BB/ SEED

B2 Health and Safety
B2 BEHZ2

Information on:
(a)  the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

BERRELZ2TERERREREREBELLEEN
@ BXR:Rk

b) BTFHETABEATYENREBARZLAMNN
EHte

Employee Caring - Occupational health and safety
BMEET-BERRRZ2

B3 Development and
Training

B3 #R K

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description of
training activities.

FRRMEERTIEBRE CMBREREZHE - #
MEFNES -

Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may
include internal and external courses paid by the

employer.
PirEr : SRS EE - A REREEZNENAINIR
2o

Employee Caring - Training and development
HEBT-BIIRER

B4 Labour Standards

Information on:

Employee Caring - Employment practices

B4 £ %A . BMEET-EREN
(@)  the policies; and
(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BBRMIEET S ST -
@ BE: R
b) BIEBTABTEAZEORBZERAN
& -
B5 Supply Chain Policies on managing environmental and social risks Quality Products and Services - Managing our suppliers
Management of the supply chain. BEERRRE-CEMER
B5 tEHEEE ERHEE RERM SRR -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPls
BRARE HERERABERI - REERBRENES

Explanation/Reference Section

BB/ SEED

B6 Product Information on:
Responsibility

B6 ERET (a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods
of redress.

ERMRBERMRBE R ER
REEEA R AN :

@ BE: R

b  AFHEIAEEAREHABERRAND
B -

Quality Products and Services - Products responsibility
BEEMIRE-ERET

Quality Products and Services — Customer services

BEERLRE - EFRH%

Quality Products and Services — Customer complaint
handling
BEEMNIRE -EPRFERE

Act with Integrity — Privacy protection

AETE-LBRE

B7 Anti-corruption Information on:

Act with Integrity - Anti-corruption

B7 RES BETE-RES
(a)  the policies; and
(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
BEMILERE - 9 - BEFRLREN
@ BXR: R
b) BIFHBTABTEAZENRBZERAND
BH}o
B8 Community Policies on community engagement to understand Community Investment
Investment the needs of the communities where the issuer HEERE
B8 #EBRE operates and to ensure its activities take into

consideration the communities’ interests.
BANHNR2ARTREEMTEILRT
BEEEEEHEBME 2R -

ZMERER
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18 3 A% BEm R S
Independent Auditor’s Report

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{85 : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sparkle
Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 113 to 283, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2019, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of cash flows and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter
described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of our report,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2019,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
EETHERI115
KZFI2518

BEAKEERATZERR
(REFZEZMA L R A])

RESR

RZEM(ATEHBIERM) EEZEI13E
B3EFTEBEHARKEEBR AR EA
A REMBAR(AEI BEEE])2HGE0
BHRE  WGREMBRERER S —NF=
A=+—B2EaBiknmeE - BEEZH
LHFEZEAZARARE GARSRER
MIEBRAEREEEK - URERE T HRERM
o EEEIESHBRME -

BFIRE  BRARS [REEAMEE| —4
PRtV FIRM A e &I RAMBHRER
BEREGAMAS(EEEFMAE ) R
MBEBUBREENEEMATFHRR B
BR—_T-NF=A=1T—HNEEMHEIR
K BEEERNBEZALFENGEMEREA
REFERERE  WEERBEE ARG
BEREL RRE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As stated in Note 20(a) to the consolidated financial statements,
Bang & Olufsen A/S (“B&0O”), an entity with shares listed in Denmark,
ceased to be an associate of the Group since the date of deemed
disposal of investment in associate during the year ended 31 March
2018 (the “Cessation Date”) upon which the Group ceased the
application of equity method of accounting on its investment in
B&O. During the period between 1 April 2017 and the Cessation
Date, the Group recorded a share of loss of B&O as an associate
in the amount of approximately HK$12,779,000, and a gain on
deemed disposal of investment in an associate in the amount
of approximately HK$585,588,000 in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 (the “FY2018
consolidated financial statements”).

The predecessor auditor modified its opinion on the Group’s FY
2018 consolidated financial statements due to inability to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the Group’s share of
B&O’s results for the period from 1 April 2017 to the Cessation Date
and the gain on deemed disposal of B&O as included in the Group’s
FY2018 consolidated financial statements. Our audit opinion on
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019 is also modified because of the possible effect of this audit
scope limitation on the FY2018 consolidated financial statements
on the comparability of the related 2019 figures and 2018 figures in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 23 & EF R A
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. As described in
the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section above, we were unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about the share of results of
B&O and gain on deemed disposal of an associate. Accordingly,
we are unable to conclude whether or not the other information is
materially misstated with respect to these matters.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matter described in the “Basis
for Qualified Opinion” section of our report, we have determined
the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be

communicated in our report.

FHRANH thE
EEAHHMENEE - HLENBEH
R RAAFHzERN  ETREFEHER

R MR B 2 BRI RS -

BMEGREMEHRRCERETREEME
B BPISTHEMEREREMAEA ZEE
i o

ERFABRGEAUBHRERE - BANS T
EHMER - FHBARP EREMEHES
HESUBRRIBMEETZBETM TR
BRBERAT—H ' HEUTEEKNERME
o ERBMENITZ LIE - MR AELLE
&R B BRI - BMIBREZEE -
o LS RBEROERE |Fril - RMIEER
Eﬁﬁ“r‘ﬁﬁB&OZ%ZE&%Ef’EHjE—F'EJHﬁ%’D\ET
ZWEBSTEE REENEZRE - Bt - &
ME LG LR HENRARZESER
BHEANEREM o

FRRELER

PR B Z F IR IRIB R PIR B HE - H A
AR BEHRRCERRRERZEH - %F
SRR RPIFRERLR S W RE Mttt
AR RRETRE  IRMATERZESEHERE
HEBER - BRIFREERNEE| —FiMte
FHEIN  RPIEE N XA FE AR
tEH 2 MET BB AREREHR
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment on goodwill
Refer to Notes 4, 5 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group’s goodwill amounted to approximately HK$397,545,000
as at 31 March 2019. We focused on this area due to the size of
goodwill. Furthermore, the directors’ assessment of the value-in-use
calculation of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUSs”) involves
judgement and estimates about the future results of the businesses,
key assumptions including budgeted gross margins, discount rates
and growth rates applied to future cash flow forecast.

Our response:
Our audit procedures included, amongst others, the followings:

(i) Evaluating and checking the composition of the Group’s future
cash flow forecasts in the CGUs, and the process by which
they were drawn up, including testing the underlying value-in-
use calculations and comparing them to the latest approved
budgets;

(i)  Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions by
comparing the current year actual results with the forecast
figures of the current year included in the previous forecast,
by reference to future plans and by performing independent
market analysis; and

(iii)  Utilising our own valuation specialists’ work when considering
the appropriateness of the discount rates and long-term
growth rates.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B3 &EEF R A
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018 were audited by another auditor who
expressed a qualified opinion on those statements on 22 June
2018.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

HitEH

EEEREE_T/\F=ZA=+—RHILFE
ZEAMBmRIIAS —ZBE(R=_F—N\
FRA-ZT-BERRERRLARBEERE
R)BE% -

ESNGEMBRRAREZER

EZFAERBERBSAMASRO TN
s R EFE R BAGIZ RERERES
BYBHE  WSHEEVBHRRIELEEMR
TRk REBEERBREUR AV IERERM
BB NEES] - RS M ERER T FER
RERFE AR M BBz BARFHRRAL -

ERESAMBHRERE - BEARNEFEARN
it BERERERLLE 2SN  YEERBERT
BEAKBELLERMCFH  URERFEL
EREFEN  RIEEHER BEKEFR
HFILEEE  KPEEMBERZERTER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
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B AR S (F)
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE BB EBEZGENERRAEZ
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 5E )
STATEMENTS (Continued)

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit o 7 ##EIAZIERE 2 AILIEH] - LAREHE
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in B2 EZIZER  BEEES a%lﬁq
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an ERIEGlz BERIEERER -

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used o SHEZEMEASREZREEUR
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related e @t st MBI E S 2 AR -

disclosures made by the directors.

e  conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the e ﬁﬁ%}mﬁﬁ?iﬂ‘“%gﬁr%’%z BE M

going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit TE 4w - BIBATS 2 BZRE  RE
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists ELTFEEAEYE ESEEBELEZ
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt RENEBRERREZEHHIEREHEZ
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we ERATHEEE - WHRMARABEFEEEKR
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to THEEME - A NBEZEEIRE+F IR
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures BERAEHGAMERRTEERES
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures Bz@ExE - BREEBAHEEER TR @ 8
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are BEFTHRMOER - HFIN A IHE
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our REZZEEMRE B HLEMREZE
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may ZOREE o A AREHHIBERAIEE
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. B EEBETREEBEELE -

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the o B4R M BME 2 BEIHIR « &
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, BEAD  BEEEEL  URESH
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent BHRREAAARMBEAR S REMH -
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

) obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the o 3t SEECEENEB I 2 TKE
financial information of the entities or business activities within PER TS BEZEBXERSE 0 UEHER
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial SHBHERERER - RfIBaTIEE .
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision EERUHITEREZ - RPEEXEZ R

and performance of the group audit. We remain solely AEEIET -
responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lam Siu Fung
Practising Certificate Number: PO5308

Hong Kong, 28 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-_Z—NF=ZA=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-NEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5T TFE T T
Revenue Uk Z5 7 3,724,845 2,893,052
Cost of sales SHEE R A (3,159,908) (2,494,027)
Gross profit EF 564,937 399,025
Other income and net gains E A Rz 558 8 90,634 83,576
Selling and distribution costs $HE RIS (381,887) (295,534)
Administrative expenses THERA (150,633) (60,716)
Other expenses HithE M 9 - (12,976)
Operating profit KRR 9 123,051 113,375
Finance costs Bl & B AN 10 (40,956) (16,234)
Gain on deemed disposal RIELER — L QA
of investment in an associate 2B W= 20(a) - 585,588
Share of loss of an associate FEf —RBE & A E) R = (12,779)
Profit before income tax MRATS B AR R 82,095 669,950
Income tax Fris i 11 4,994 (2,834)
Profit for the year AEERR 87,089 667,116
Other comprehensive income, BREAHEMEEBA
net of tax
Items that may be reclassified BERENE D BEEEamk
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEH -
Exchange differences on translation & g5 5 S B SR &
of financial statements of foreign ZHEH Z%
operations (37,220) 68,425
Change in fair value of available- REANBERZAIHEE
for-sale investment recognised KEZ AR EE
during the year - 64,243
Share of other comprehensive B —RE=ERRZ
income of an associate Hip2mEUA = (5,270)
Reclassification adjustments EEESNENSE
for amounts transferred to LR
profit or loss:
Deemed disposal of investment RIEH SR —HEZ
in an associate RElZwE = (521)
Items that will not be reclassified BEHETEEHEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BamXZHE -
Change in fair value of equity RERERIEZ AR EFA
investments at fair value through Hib 2w A Z BEiE
other comprehensive income BEZRAREE
recognised during the year (768,022) -
. SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 123 £ B4 R 2 113
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FEREWARRSE (8)
Consolidated Statement Of Comprehensive Income (Continued)

BE-_Z-NF=A=+—RHIFE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\EFE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FABTT
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEEKA
for the year, net of tax HIBRFR 18 (805,242) 126,877
Total comprehensive income REZEZHEMALLLE
for the year (718,153) 793,993
Profit for the year attributable to: T 5| A X EGAFERF :
Owners of the Company KRATHER A 97,429 664,565
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR M 2 (10,340) 2,551
87,089 667,116
Total comprehensive income THALEAG
attributable to: ZHEUALEEE
Owners of the Company KATEE A (707,680) 791,326
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M 2 (10,473) 2,667
(718,153) 793,993
Earnings per share attributable AATEE AEL
to owners of the Company BRER
Basic and diluted EARREE HK2.0 cents HK14.9 cents
15 7Bl (Il
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AZZE—NFE=A=+—H Asat31 March 2019

2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 THET AT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - M2 Rk 16 242,273 92,527
Prepaid lease payments FENEEHRE 17 564,982 -
Goodwill B 18 397,545 206,171
Other intangible assets EmELEE 19 386,877 393
Available-for-sale investment At ERE 20(b) - 1,291,321
Financial assets at fair value through AR EFARMEE
other comprehensive income WAZ BB E 20(b) 426,187 =
Deposits paid for acquisition of H&Eﬁ—%ﬁmiﬁﬁﬁﬁj
a property holding company BEffziES - 135,802
Prepayment for property, plant ME #&gﬁ& S TR
and equipment RIA 3,596 -
Rental deposits paid to a related EN—R2@HIHeEke
party 21(b) 6,989 15,812
2,028,449 1,742,026
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 1,028,772 1,061,407
Trade receivables FE W E 558 23(a) 21,591 5,342
Deposits, prepayments and e BHEFER
other receivables ﬁmﬁgqﬁxﬁ 23(b) 237,462 269,995
Prepaid lease payments BRI EHIE 17 17,183 =
Amounts due from related parties & Uit R B 73,’*’}(1@ 21(c) 6,767 8,576
Investment in films KEEY 24 301,832 -
Investment in debt securities REBBE S 25 - 440,000
Loan receivables FEME X 26 - 127,376
Pledged deposits [REEEiER 27 106,354 91,357
Restricted bank balance SR HIRIT AR 27 - 5,304
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFHERE 27 185,241 155,650
1,905,202 2,165,007
Current liabilities REBAEE
Trade payables FENE 5B 29 80,881 14,501
Contract liabilities BHAE 30 235,034 -
Receipts in advance, accrued B RIE - ﬁé’f\?r%?ﬁ
charges and other payables N B e {5 5108 31 261,136 288,370
Amounts due to non-controlling JEST FEFER HE%’K
interests 21(a) 6,639 4,538
Amounts due to related parties eI B Ty 3R 21(c) - 2,424
Provision for taxation TIER S 5,605 5,386
Borrowings EE 32 620,051 567,652
1,209,346 882,871
Net current assets REBEEFRE 695,856 1,282,136
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERABHEE 2,724,305 3,024,162
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

AZZE—NFE=A=+—H Asat31 March 2019

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B E FET T
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Other payables H i < 5RIE 31 - 304
Borrowings B 32 253,830 -
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIBEE 33 97,281 678
351,111 982
Net assets EEFE 2,373,194 3,023,180
Equity =
Equity attributable to owners to RATERE AELER
the Company
Share capital A% 25 34 9,999 9,882
Reserves i 35 2,356,638 2,996,268
2,366,637 3,006,150
Non-controlling interests IEERE R 41 6,557 17,030
Total equity ERBE 2,373,194 3,023,180

The consolidated financial statements

on pages 113 to 283 were

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28

June 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Zheng Hao Jiang
BRIEST
Director

EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
BE-Z-1% BT \F
ZA=+-HLEE ZA=+-HLEEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bz FHET FET
Cash flows from operating activities BEEEvRERE
Profit before income tax BRETER AR 82,095 669,950
Adjustments for: AT RIBIEY B
Bank interest income RITH EHA (1,299) (1,216)
Gain on disposals of property, HEME BER
plant and equipment B G (2,054) (2,128)
Amortisation of other intangible assets HiETEERE 26,727 79
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BNRETESH 9 9,975 -
Depreciation of property, mE - BELRE
plant and equipment L& 9 26,891 21,995
Interest expenses FEHY 10 40,956 16,234
Write-down of inventories FEMR 9 8,356 6,238
Reversal of write-down of inventories BEFEMR 9 (7,947) -
Provision for litigation and claims FRRRERE 9 = 12,976
Gain on deemed disposal of investment RIELER —FEE AR
in an assoclate AW = (685,588)
Share of loss of an associate HME—FEHEAREE = 12,779
Operating cash flows before working BEEGREM LERE
capital changes mE 183,700 151,319
Increase in inventories FEEM (22,201) (62,732)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables FERE SE(Em),/mD (8,859) 1,601
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, e BEFEREMRE
prepayments and other receivables WEER D/ (80) 114,697 (70,473)
Decrease/(increase) in balances BB H SR/ (3510)
with related parties 6,899 (17,017)
Decrease in restricted bank balance SRBBTERR D 4,975 1,416
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables ERE 57N/ (D) 53,241 (7,934)
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEEM 232,436 -
(Decrease)/increase in receipts in advance, IR - EHEAR
accrued charges and other payables HiENAZBEORD),/Em (257,866) 100,088
Cash generated from operations IR I BARTE 4 307,022 96,268
Income tax paid BRFEH (1,311) (1,692)
Net cash generated from operating activities RELBEFERLER 305,711 94,576

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 7 3 &=
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

BE_T-NAF=ZA=1—HLHFE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
BE-Z-1% HE_Z-\F
SA=t-HLEE ZA=T—HILtEE
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B TET FHBIL
Cash flows from investing activities RETBRERE

Increase in pledged bank deposits BHEARITEZEM (19,487) (11,418)

Prepayment for property, plant and equipment ME  RERREBREFUE (3,819) =

Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME EBERRE (24,780) (17,889)

Proceeds from disposals of property, HENE  BELRE

plant and equipment Fri55a 8,548 7,596

Deposits paid for acquisition of WiE— R EERAR

a property holding company BEffzike = (111,111)
Proceeds from disposal of equity investment HERER ARG HE 97,112 =
Proceeds from disposal/(acquisition) of HEBKEAMENE/

debt securities (YeB2) 442,053 (440,000

Proceeds from disposal of loans receivables HERWERMBHE 122,113 =

Increase in loan receivables JEURE 2 = (123,309)

Acquisition of a property holding company WE—ENEERAT (618,554) =

Acquisition of subsidiaries WEE N B AR 44 (483,801) (1,150)

Interest received BUH & 1,299 1,216

Net cash used in investing activities REEDFALEFE (479,316) (696,065)
Cash flows from financing activities RETBRERE

Advances from non-controlling interests HEARHERESRT

of subsidiaries 2,309 2,960

New borrowings raised e s 3,630,838 2,231,457

Repayments of borrowings BEEE (3,299,062) (2,105,248)

Placing of shares =40 - 440,845

Repurchase of the Company’s own shares AR NN 2 (84,833)

Interest paid BEfIHE (40,956) (16,234)
Net cash generated from financing activites & EHFERLEE 208,296 553,780
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and Tﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬁ

cash equivalents B/ 0BD) B 34,691 (47,709)
Cash and cash equivalents FNzBeRBESEER

at beginning of year 155,650 192,103
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EX#FH % FE (5,100) 11,256
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year, ERVBSRASEEER

comprising cash at banks and in hand BERTRFERE 185,241 155,650
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

Attributable to owners of the Gompany

KAuERNER
Non-
Share Share  Capital ~ Special  Coniruted  Exchange Other ~ Statutory  Fairvalue  Retained controling Total
captdl  premium  reserve  resenve Spls  reseve  resenve  reseve  resenve eamings Total  interests equity
k& ROEE EARE KERE  HARR  NERE  ERBE  fRBE DiERE  REEN ai FAERES  EREE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKP000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Thn Tér  TAr  TEr  TEn  TEn  Thn  TEr  Th TR TR TEn  TEn
At 1 April 2017 NE-tEmA-A 8,282 1482243 3008 (368100 28844 (21409) 7401 12,697 - 2892714 1,773,994 13,833 1,787,827
Changes in equity in 2018 23 )\EERR
Profit for the year REEET - - - - - - - - - 664,565 664,565 2951 667,116
Other comprehensive income Ef2AKA
- Exchange diferences on transhation of  ~ AN EREIBERE
financil statements of JEHEE
foreign operations - - - - - 68309 - - - - 68309 16 6842
- Change infar value of ~RERELZ TR ERE
avalable-for-sale investment MEEY
recognised during the year - - - - - - - - MM - 624 - 6424
- Share of other comprehensive income. — 25— B2 A
of an associate Efp2ENA - - - - - - b - - - [N - b
- Reclassfication acjustments upon ~~ —RE/ELERN-FELAF
deemed disposal of investment in RERENIERR
an associate = = = = - (bo1g) 5365 = = = (521) = (621)
Total comprehensive income for the year  AEE2ERALE - - - - - 6243 8 - G443 664565 791326 2667 793993
Placing of shares RERR 1600 439,245 - - - - - - - - 440845 - 440845
Reduction of share premium AR EE - (500,000) - - 500,000 - - - - - - - -
Elimination of contributed surplus against  h&I ABBEHARF
accumulated losses of the Company 23158 - - - - (38819 - - - - 88818 - - -
Share of other reserve of an associate I —FEAQALNER - = - - - - (15) - - - (15) - (15)
Derecogniton of other eserves upon M EHE-BARTS
deemed disposa\ of an associate RIERAEMER - - - - - - (188) - - 188 - - -
Transfer to statutory resenve ERTERRR = = = = = = = 25 = (265 - - -
Non-contoling interests arising from B~ B ARE 48
acquistion of a subsidiary FiRiER - - - - - - - - - - - 530 530
31 March 2018 R=F-\E=f=1-H 9,882 1421488 3508 (36,810) 440,026 4,028 7,083 12,922 64243 1,042,580 3,006,150 17,080 3,023,180
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAREEARE
Fair value
Fairvalue ~ reserve
Teserve (non- Non-
Share Share  Capital ~ Special Confributed  Exchange Other ~ Statutory (ecycling)* recycling) ~ Retained controlling Total

capitl  premium  reseve  reseve  suplis  reseve  reseve  reseve  DAERE  ARERE  eamings Total  interests equity
W& ROEE EARE  RRRE  HARE  NERE  HERE  %ERE  (TRES  (FARE)  RERA & FBREE  ERE
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Thn  thn AR fAn TR A fhr fthn fhr fhn fh fhr Rt

At31 March 2018
Impact on infal application of HKFRS 9

9882 1,421,488 3508 (36810) 440026  4f028 7288 12022 6423 - 1042580 3006150 17,080 3,023,180

) ) ; . . . < Uy 62 . . - -

At Apr 2018 #-%-)\EmA-R 9882 1,421,488 3508 (36,8100 440026 41,028 1288 1292 - G443 1042580 3,006,150 17,000 3,023,180
Changes i equiy n 2019 “ENEERE
Proft for the year FERRA = 2 o - - - - - - R L LU L
Other comprehensive income Efg2EAA
- Bxchange diferences on -BERIHIH

translfion of financial satements FRIERER

of foreign operatons - - g = - (oo = - - - - o) (%) )
- Change nfair valug of equtyinvestments  ~ERRBZRAREA

atfar value trough ofher R2ERAZ

comprefinsiv income kg 0nERS

recognised during the year - - - - = o .

(168022 - 80

(168,022

Total comprehensive income forthe year ~ AEE2EWALE - - - - - (o8 - - (168022)  9T420  (T0mge0) (10473 (718,153
Transfer upon disposa HERDAETALf

of fnancilassets at farvalie through.~— 2ERAZ4BEE

other comprehensive income FER - - - - - - - - - 642 (642) - - -
Repurchase of shares EERf (563) - - - () - - - - - - (o485 - (4%
Aoquistton of subsiciares WEHEA 680 152,320 - - - - - - - - - 153,000 - 163,000
Transfer to statutory resenve ERTITRE - - - - - - - (11) - - il - - -
At31 March 2019 R-E-NE=f=1-R 9,999 1,573,808 3508 (36,810) 365,756 394 728 12,80 - (108,187) 1,130,484 2,366,637 6,557 2,373,194

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 23 & EF R A
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

GENERAL

Sparkle Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of
its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal place of business is
in Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are distributorships of luxury goods
and automobiles, provision of after-sales services, property
management services, catering services, property rental
services and film investments. The Group’s operations are
mainly based in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Malaysia.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
and ultimate holding company of the Company is Sparkle Roll
Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands.

The directors regard ultimate controlling party of the Company
to be Mr. Qi Jian Hong (“Mr. Qi”).

1.

—REHR

RBESBEARAR([AAT]) A —RHR
BREFMRZZERAR - Eal
Z= R A Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda * £
FTEEEMBATS ARRROES
BHARBERAR([HRAT]) L -

ARBREWMBAR (G [ REM]) 2
TEXBARNER  REAMKLERA
SREFEMMIERERS  EHE
‘IR - MEEERRY - ERRE - B
EXHERBREFRE -

E=ZRR ARAZHEEERQAER
REBRARRBHEREBRARAR - HR
RB R LR SREMAAL ©

EEZRNARRNRKER T REZI L
E(THEEE] -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) which in collective term include all individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements also include
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair value.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 5.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 23 & EF R A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE—

Z—NAF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1

April 2018

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first

time the following new standards, amendments and
interpretations issued by HKICPA, which are relevant to
and effective for the Group’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 2

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HK(FRIC)-Int 22

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
First-time adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

Amendments to HKAS 28,
Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Classification and Measurement of
Share-Based Payment Transactions
Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

RMNBE B B®RE

MBE®EER )

RAF]RIETE R K REE
B-R=ZZFE—N\FENA—BEX

(a)

[\

R ([ 5%

RAFE  AEEBHXERNLTH
BAR G AR EMZHETER

BT ke - AR ER -

{E&]

KRN E B 2 MR AR
WEARZETERE

BBUBRE %R
“T-MEFEE
“T-RFES
L EEE
BB BIRE %R
*EEZ@
2 EREH
2 FEYE
LN el
EL A )
BBIBIRE %R
EAeRH
BBUBREER|
£15%
BBUBRELER
R LA H

B (BB %
GEREZEE)
—REF 2%

S ]
F1R2ZBTA
B RAAESH
CE SR

L

AR BERERTZ
BN BN E
TR

RERFAN M

REEPEH . M
(BBM RS
E1552EE)
INER Z RERRE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2018 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
- Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, removing transition
provision exemptions relating to accounting periods
that had already passed and were therefore no longer
applicable.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the periods to which the
transition provision exemptions related have passed.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle-Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures, clarifying that a venture capital
organisation’s permissible election to measure its
associates or joint ventures at fair value is made
separately for each associate or joint venture.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group is not a venture
capital organisation.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 23 & EF R A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2018 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 - Classification
and Measurement of Share-Based Payment
Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-vesting
conditions on the measurement of cash-settled share-
based payments; share-based payment transactions with
a net settlement feature for withholding tax obligations;
and a modification to the terms and conditions of a
share-based payment that changes the classification of
the transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group does not have
any cash-settled share-based payment transaction
and has no share-based payment transaction with net
settlement features for withholding tax.

3. EMERAUBEREERN(TER
B HmEER L) )

(a)

RAHETRIETEBMBREE
A-R-ZF-NFOA-BEX
(%)

BB RO E 25> 15T —
HR G BRI XE N5

8

BRAERIFTREE MR B IR Y
RefEUBRNRERNRZFE
MFE  RBHIREEEEFRE
BRBZUBRNRERNHRRS
UEEXZERNHECEEEES
Rt 4 H AR D R EBE A BRI
R 2 IERT 2 @FTRIEME

AR E N BB S EE AR BE
BN R X5 RERMHAEFR
REBRZARD SERMRR
5 IR B RS H RSB RE

N

B2 48R
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together
all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: (1) classification and measurement; (2)
impairment; and (3) hedge accounting. The adoption
of HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018 has resulted in changes
in accounting policies of the Group and the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), where the
amount of change in fair value attributable to change
in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9
retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities. However, it
eliminates the previous HKAS 39 categories for financial
assets of held-to-maturity financial assets, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
adoption of HKFRS 9 has no material impact on the
Group’s accounting policies related to financial liabilities
and derivative financial instruments. The impact of
HKFRS 9 on the Group’s classification and measurement
of financial assets is set out below.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #2 % & @ 4 R 2
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade receivables
(that the trade receivables do not contain a significant
financing component in accordance with HKFRS 15),
an entity shall, at initial recognition, measure a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs. A financial asset
is classified as: (i) financial assets at amortised cost
(“amortised costs”); (ii) financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”);
or (iii) FVTPL. The classification of financial assets
under HKFRS 9 is generally based on two criteria: (i)
the business model under which the financial asset is
managed and (ii) its contractual cash flow characteristics
(the “solely payments of principal and interest” criterion,
also known as “SPPI criterion”). Under HKFRS 9,
embedded derivative is no longer required to be
separated from a host financial asset. Instead, the hybrid
financial instrument is assessed as a whole for the
classification.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets
both of the following conditions and it has not been
designated as at FVTPL:

° It is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

° The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that meet the SPPI
criterion.

A debt investment is measured at FVTOCI if it meets
both of the following conditions and it has not been
designated as at FVTPL:

° It is held within a business model whose objective is
to be achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

° The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that meet the SPPI
criterion.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. All other
financial assets not classified at amortised cost or
FVTOCI as described above are classified as FVTPL.
This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial
recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements
to be measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial

instruments (Continued)

The following accounting policies would be applied to the
Group’s financial assets as follows:

FVTPL

Amortised cost

FVTOCI (equity
instruments)

FVTPL is subsequently measured
at fair value. Changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost
are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method.
Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
on derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.

Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income are measured at fair value.
Dividend income is recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

As of 1 April 2018, certain listed equity investments were
reclassified from available-for-sale financial assets at fair
value to financial assets at FVTOCI. The Group intends
to hold these equity investments for long term strategic
purposes. Under HKFRS 9, the Group has designated
these equity investments at the date of initial application
as measured at FVTOCI. As a result, financial assets with
a fair value of HK$1,291,321,000 was reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets at fair value to FVTOCI
on 1 April 2018.

As at 1 April 2018, the opening balance of available-
for-sale financial assets reserve of HK$64,243,000 was
transferred to fair value reserve (non-recycling).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. RHEBYBREEN(FR

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B &R EZEER |) (2)
(Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1 (@) FHHEE KB EBMEHREE

April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

The following table summarises the original measurement
categories under HKAS 39 and the new measurement
categories under HKFRS 9 for each class of the Group’s
financial assets as at 1 April 2018:

Al-R=F2-N\FHNA-—HEX

/435
\/wf“ﬁ/

BB BHREERAEIN - BT
R(#&E)

E@ TANDEREE (B)

TRBEAEBNR T N\FMOA
—HBRBESREERBE LS E
5 39 5 R B St BRI RRIBEEE
BTG E LR F ISR BRI -

Carrying amount Carrying amount

Original classification New classification as at 1 April 2018  as at 1 April 2018

Financial assets under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9

REFAE REFBHE

ERE30% HEEBEH

REFASTEA REFERBRE R=B-N\F RZZ-N\f

SREE EIENEEER BRI EORMHER mA—-AMEEE MA—-AMEREE

HK$'000 HK$'000

AT THT

Listed equity investments Available-for-sale (at fair value)  FVTOCI 1,291,321 1,291,321

LR E AHHE (RR A4 E) BAREGAEMEERA
Deposits paid for acquisition of a Loans and receivables Amortised cost 135,802 135,802
property holding company

KE-HnEERARENZERE  ERRERTE B K

Rental deposits paid to a Loans and receivables Amortised cost 15,812 15,812

related party

[RAD Ry R REYEE B K

Trade receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 5,342 5,342
[EWE 7508 BRI BSER A

Other receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 150,841 150,841
EthEE B REWGIE BHRK

Amounts due from related parties  Loans and receivables Amortised cost 1,729 1,729
[ B RENE BSRR A

Investment in debt securities Loans and receivables Amortised cost 440,000 440,000
RERBES B R R BSRR A

Loan receivables Loans and receivables Amortised cost 127,376 127,376
EMES R RENHE Bk A

Pledged deposits Loans and receivables Amortised cost 91,357 91,357
BEAER B RENHE BESRR A

Restricted bank balance Loans and receivables Amortised cost 5,304 5,304
RIRFIRITHER B R R B A

Cash at banks and in hand Loans and receivables Amortised cost 155,650 155,650
FIRFERS R RENFE BHRK
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the Group’s
impairment model by replacing the HKAS 39 “incurred
loss model” to the “expected credit losses (“ECLSs”)
model”. HKFRS 9 requires the Group to recognise ECL
for trade receivables and financial assets at amortised
costs earlier than HKAS 39. Cash and cash equivalents
are subject to ECL model but the impairment is
immaterial for the current period.

Under HKFRS 9, the loss allowances are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these
are the ECLs that result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date; or (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the assets’ original effective interest
rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-month ECLs. The 12-month ECLs are the portion
of the lifetime ECLs that results from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. However, when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since origination,
the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs. When
determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1 (a)
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days
past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held);

or (2) the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

Presentation of ECLs
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at

amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1 (a)
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impact of the ECL model
Impairment of trade receivables

As mentioned above, the Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measure ECLs which recognises
lifetime ECLs for all trade receivables. To measure the
ECLs, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. No additional impairment for trade receivables
as at 1 April 2018 is recognised as the amount of
additional impairment measured under the ECLs model is
immaterial.

Impairment of other receivables

Other financial assets at amortised cost of the Group
include other receivables, investment in debt securities
and loan receivables. Applying the ECLs model, no
additional impairment as at 1 April 2018 was recognised
as the amount of the impairment measured under the
ECLs model is immaterial.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 7% @ 4 [ 2 &)
ANNUAL REPORT 2019 4

RAEBMEREER(ER
B HmEER L) 2

R RIET R BREE
A-REZ2-NFHA-B4EX
(&)

BB BHREERFEIN - BT
R(#&)

BREEERRAMZE

JEWE 53R 5 1E

 AREBRAEEY
BHRELENEIFHIOEAERY
EEER  U4XMBRKE SR
REEFERNEREERSSE -
RETERMEREER  ZFREE
HHRACREED EERR 2
&ﬂﬁﬁ%%‘( e RZE—N\FM
- BB LU E 5 R R
%E?I\/JEHE - ARERAEEEER
A EZRINBESRL TERX -

AN £ SF

H 1t fEW SR 8 B (E

AEBIRE KA EN RS E
BERFREMBWGIAE - REER
EFMEWER - REMABBEE
EREAR  R-T-N\FHA—
B EERREINAE - FRIRTEH
EEBEREAFEZRESRL N
EXe



P e

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impact of the ECL model (Continued)

Transition

The Group has applied the transitional provision in HKFRS
9 such that HKFRS 9 was generally adopted without
restating comparative information. The reclassifications
and the adjustments arising from the new ECLs rules
are therefore not reflected in the statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2018, but are recognised in
the statement of financial position on 1 April 2018. This
means that differences in the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities resulting from the adoption
of HKFRS 9 are recognised in reserves as at 1 April 2018.
Accordingly, the information presented for 2018 does not
reflect the requirements of HKFRS 9 but rather those of
HKAS 39.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. RHEBUMBREEAN(FR

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B EZER |) (&)
(Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1 (a) BREAHFET REBITEBMBREE

April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impact of the ECL model (Continued)

Transition (Continued)

The following assessments have been made on the basis
of the facts and circumstances that existed at the date of
initial application of HKFRS 9 (the “DIA”):

° The determination of the business model within
which a financial asset is held;

° The designation and revocation of previous designations
of certain financial assets and financial liabilities as
measured at FVTPL; and

° The designation of certain investments in equity
investments not held for trading as at FVTOCI.

If an investment in a debt investment had low credit risk
at the DIA, the Group has assumed that the credit risk on
the asset had not increased significantly since its initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction Contracts,
HKAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations. HKFRS
15 has established a five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at the amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
to a customer.

HKFRS 15 introduces a five-step model when
recognising revenue:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 83: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

The standard requires entities to exercise judgement,
taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and
circumstances when applying each step of the model to
contracts with their customers.

3. EMERBUBEREERN(TER
B HmEER ) 2

(a)

R RIET B BT BRERE
A-REZ2-NFHA-B4EX

(%)

BB BKIRE B E15% - KEE
FErZWERE B K EER
F155 2 55T

BRMBHELEF1SRANES
SRIEAFREREALD  BES
APERFE 18 m R AR RE - B
BB HREERF1FE R — A
RN UEtEREEFPEHZ
Wzt o IRIZBBH B REERE 15
5% WA SR RIRE B
EHANBRRATFEEERRR
B2 R o

BRI BERE LR FE 15RO HERUL
@5 AREFREN

T BEEPHAH
FH2: BAIAHNENRE

FR3: EEXHE

T4 KRHIBEEIEBHE
MAEME

FH6: ESHBHORTENKR
R et

BN BRERITEXE - REM
AR B FREE PRI A8 Z BT
BHREERIER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

RAEBMEREER(ER
B HmEER ) )

(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(a)

R RIETEBMBEREE
A-R-ZF-NFOA-BER
(%)

BB BHEERE159 - KEF

and amendments to HKFRS 15 (Continued) Fa#z s REEYNHEREER
E15 821557 (E)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the cumulative
effect method without practical expedients. The Group
has recognised the cumulative effect of initially applying
HKFRS 15 as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings at the date of initial application (that
is, 1 April 2018). As a result, the financial information
presented for 2018 has not been restated.

The following tables summarised the impact of adopting
HKFRS 15 on the opening and closing balances of the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2019.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED %t @ 5 [R A &
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

RAEBMEREER(ER
B HmEER ) 2

RAHERIETERMBHREE
B-RZFE-NFOA-BER

435 )
\//‘\15\ /

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1 (a)
April 2018 (Continueqd)

BB BHEERE159 - KEF

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

and amendments to HKFRS 15 (Continued) FEarzWmREBIFHEER
B1552155] ()
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial HBEEHMBEMRRRZ2EE .

position:

Amounts reported
in accordance

Hypothetical
amounts under

with HKFRS 15 HKAS 18
RIEE B BIEEAEET
HEERE 155 AERIZE 1857
ERZEHE FHzBEReHE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FABIT
Liabilities - opening balances £ & — ¥4
Current liabilities REEE
Contract liabilities aBHAR 195,479 -
Receipts in advance, accrued TEUKIE - EETE
charges and other payables Ko E b {5 FRIE = 195,479
Liabilities - closing balances & 1& - HiR&&
Current liabilities REBEE
Contract liabilities EHEE 235,034 -
Receipts in advance, accrued TEWGRIE - BT E M
charges and other payables N £ fth B A~ ZRO0E = 235,034

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2B B R A7
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. RHEBYBREEN(FR

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B2 |) (&)
(Continued)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1 (@) BRI ST EBMBERESE
April 2018 (Continued) Al-AR-ZE—N\FHA-—HBHEX
(%)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers BB BHREERE15% —KEE
and amendments to HKFRS 15 (Continued) FEEaH 2 Wi REBHBFHEER
E15 52 165T (F)
The directors consider that the application of HKFRS RNAREERE AR BMEHR
15 does not have a material impact on the timing and EYERI 51550 WA B N BR AN 1B A
amounts of revenue recognised for contracts with HEREHERRP A LW SR
customers in the respective reporting periods upon its ZEHERSHETESATE  RE
initial adoption because the directors are of the view that BREERE  AEBZHABRTE
the Group’s inputs are expected to be proportionate, Hers A mHEE2RBAEE Y
in material aspect, to the progress in satisfying the —RENBIMEERITIRESE R
performance obligation in rendering the goods or BRISH B (E 2 #EERCLE B -

services with reference to the Group’s typical contracts.

1 42 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #2# £ @ A R A 7]
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1

April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and amendments to HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Details of the new significant accounting policies and the
nature of the changes to previous accounting policies in
relation to the Group’s various goods and services are

set out below:

Nature of the goods or services,
satisfaction of performance

RAEBHMEREER(ER
B HmEER L) )

(a) BRAEHT RBEFTEEHEREE
B-R=2-N\FOB—-—HB4&EX
(%)

BB BKIRE B E15H - KEE
FErZWERE B HIFEER
F155 55T (&)

BRAREESRE mRIRFBHIFR]

BEASBR LAY RS BEN
EHUHEFBHIMT

Nature of change in accounting

Note  Product/service obligations and payment terms policy and impact on 1 April 2018
EnSRBHE - “E-\EMA-HEFHRN
wE  ER/RE 3 DG ST 2PMERYE
(a) Sales of Customer obtains control of the automobiles and  HKFRS 15 did not result in significant impact on
automobiles revenue is recognised. Factors to determine when  the Group’s accounting policies. However, upon

the customers obtain control of automobiles include
issuance of registration documents (applicable to
certain jurisdictions), full payments have been made,
and the goods have been delivered to and accepted by
the customers.

There is generally only one performance obligation.

There are no right of return, discounts, rebates,
refunds, price concessions, incentive, penalties, or
similar terms in the sales order.

BHRHERERNS - RERFAKER
AENEHERZAEREE TN (BRARKLAEE
gR) BEZENRILA

(a) HERE EFE

B% -

—REF-BRORK -

BEATERTEELE 7 B &5 BRE
B BB SBIRE

BEERNGEEFIRER

the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group has to make
reclassification from receipts in advance, accrued
charges and other payables to contract liabilities since
under HKFRS 15, a contract liability is recognised when
a customer pays consideration, or is contractually
required to pay consideration and the amount is already
due, before the Group recognises the related revenue.

BEMBREENE 5 FHAEAEHBRLBERY
g RM FRERMBHEENE 155K - A5EA
FBYRE - Bt ERRALENRRENIBAREH
8 RARBEANBASENF 158  ERP XA
REFZAORTNRELALECHER  aHERE
EASERD AR AR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_T—

NF=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1

April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and amendments to HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Nature of the goods or services,
satisfaction of performance

RAEBMEREER(ER
B HmEER L) 2

(a) BRAFETRIET BB BREE
B-R=ZFE-NFOA-BER

(%&)

BB BHEERE15H - KEF

FErZWERE B HIFEER
F155 55T (&)

Nature of change in accounting

Note  Product/service obligations and payment terms policy and impact on 1 April 2018
EmARHEE - ZE-\FMA-HEHBRN
Wi ER/BRE ERBNEER AR 2HMERYE
(b) Sales of other Revenue from the sale of goods represents the net  Right of return
merchandised invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for ~ Under HKAS 18, revenue for these contracts was
goods returns, trade discounts and value added tax and is  recognised when a reasonable estimate of the returns

)  HEEHAR

recognised at the point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the goods.

HERMNEECES R BRRRE  TENKE
B ERMNREERRRE D RRNELEE A EE
BIEPHAE (—RELEERRNE)BR -
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could be made, provided that all other revenue
recognition criteria are met. If a reasonable estimate
could not be made, such revenue would be deferred
until the return period lapsed or a reasonable estimate
could be made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

NEF=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1

April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and amendments to HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Note  Product/service

Nature of the goods or services,
satisfaction of performance
obligations and payment terms

RAEBHMEREER(ER
B HmEER L) )

(a) BRAFETRIET BB BREE
B-R=ZFE-NFOA-BER

(%)

BB BKIRE B E15H - KEE
FErZWERE B HIFEER
F155 55T (&)

Nature of change in accounting
policy and impact on 1 April 2018

EmTRENE “E-\ENA-HEHHEN
W Em/BE ERBENEARIAKR BENERYE
(b) Sales of other Right of return Under HKFRS 15, right of return gives rise to variable
merchandised Some contracts for the sale of other merchandised  consideration. The variable consideration is estimated

goods (continued)

(o) BEAER(F)

goods through e-shop provide customers with a right
of return. The right of return gives rise to variable
consideration.

RER
ETERRLAREELERNANERIE,P—]
RRE - RABEELUEAE-

at contract inception and constrained until the
associated uncertainty is subsequently resolved.

The application of the constraint on variable
consideration increases the amount of revenue that will
be deferred. In addition, a refund liability and a right to
recover returned goods assets are recognised.

The management assessed the impact on 1 April 2018

is immaterial.

*Eﬁé%ﬁﬁ%iﬁiﬁﬁw%wsﬁ REBEFIERE:
""""" ERERSNRBRG R EZEBTH

Eﬂl%ﬁtféﬁmm °

HUEREBERARHENETRESE - beoh THR
EREERROREEREAEE -

EREFER - \FENA-ANFELTEA -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_T—

NF=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1

April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and amendments to HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Note  Product/service

Wi ER/ BB

Nature of the goods or services,
satisfaction of performance
obligations and payment terms
EmARHEE -
ERBNEER AT

RAEBMEREER(ER
B HmEER ) )

(a) BREAFET RIS BB BREE
B-RZFE-NFOA-BER

(%)

BB BKIRE B E15% - KEE
FErZWERE B K EER
F155 55T (&)

Nature of change in accounting
policy and impact on 1 April 2018
ZE-\FOA-HEHBRN
2HMERYE

(©) Provision of after-

sales services

Revenue arising from maintenance services is
recognised over time as the customers simultaneously
received and consume the benefit of the Group’s
performance. This is generally only one performance
obligation.

BERBELZRAHEERD  RAEPABRRY
RRAEBAOFELOTS - —BTE RE—HA
HEf -

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED %t @ 5 [R A &
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HKFRS 15 did not result in significant impact on the
Group’s accounting policies. Upon the adoption of
HKFRS 15, the Group should make a reclassification
from trade and other receivables to contract assets if
there is any satisfied performance obligation but where
the entity does not have an unconditional right to
consideration.

However, as the Group has unconditional right to
consideration for all satisfied performance obligation as
at 1 April 2018, no contract asset was recognised.
BAMBREENE SR EHARBNGHRRES
BEXTE - REMBBHBRELENE165% - WL
EMEERENEAEERY & —EREHENKRRA
B AEEEBENE ZFERALERFEENHE
EENEE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1

April 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and amendments to HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Note  Product/service

Wi ER/ BB

Nature of the goods or services,
satisfaction of performance
obligations and payment terms
EmARHEE -

ERBOEER AR

RAEBMEREER(ER
B HmEER ) 2

(a) BREAFET RIS BB BREE
A-REZ2-NFHA-B4EX
(%)

BB BHEERE159 - KEF

FErZWERE B K EER
F155 55T (&)

Nature of change in accounting
policy and impact on 1 April 2018
ZE-N\EMA-BEHBRN
FEMERY

(d) Provision of
catering services

The provision of catering services for which the services
are rendered over time when the related services have
been rendered to the customers. Payment is made
upon the completion of catering services.

RAFFREZARBEE - AREEREGARRSE - 1
BRI TR IEL AR -

HKFRS 15 did not result in significant impact on the
Group’s accounting policies.

This segment is newly acquired during the year ended
31 March 2019, and hence, there is no impact on 1
April 2018.
EANBREENE SRUEHAREN SHRRES
BAYE

ANBRRBE_T-NF=A=1T-RLFEHE
A Bl -F-\FNA-RLTEYE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2018 (Continueqd)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and amendments to HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Nature of the goods or services,
satisfaction of performance

RAEBMEREER(ER
B HmEER ) )

(a) BHEHFR LEITEBUBREE
Bl —-R=ZZF—N\FNA—BEX
(%)

BB BKIRE B E15% - KEE
FErZWERE B K EER
F155 55T (&)

Nature of change in accounting

Note  Product/service obligations and payment terms policy and impact on 1 April 2018
EmARHEE - ZE-\FOA-HEHBRN
Wi ER/BE ERBNEER AT 2HMERYE
(e) Provision of property  The Group enters into a contract with the property owners ~ HKFRS 15 did not result in significant impact on the

management services

(6) RN EER

and performs more than one performance obligation.

Revenue arising from property management services
is recognised over time as the property owners and
customers simultaneously receive and consume the
benefit of the Group’s performances. Payment is made
quarterly upon the completion of services.

AEBENRRTTUANTETRERRNEL -

DEEERBEL NERERER  BANEEER

EFRERRE AR EBRAMELOTE - RRHE
T RERAEHAH -

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on

identification of performance obligations; application of

principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property;

and transition requirements.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ¥ @A R A
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Group’s accounting policies.

This segment is newly acquired during the year ended
31 March 2019, hence, there is no impact on 1 April
2018.

ERMBRS RS SRYBHAKANEHRREL

ADBRRBEE_T-NF=A=T-RLFEHE
ARl $-F-\ENA-ALETE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
April 2018 (Continueqd)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and amendments to HKFRS 15 (Continued)

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group had
not previously adopted HKFRS 15 and took up the
clarifications in this, its first, year.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

The interpretation provides guidance on determining
the date of the transaction for determining an exchange
rate to use for transactions that involve advance
consideration paid or received in a foreign currency and
the recognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability. The interpretation specifies that the date of the
transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part thereof) is the date on which
the entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt
of advance consideration.

The adoption of this interpretation has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group has not paid or
received advance consideration in a foreign currency.

3. EMERBUBEREERN(TER
B HmEER ) 2

(a)

RANETR] RIEFTEBUBREE
B-RZFE-NFOA-BER

435 )
\//‘iE! /

BB BKIRE B E15% - KEE
FErZWERE B K EER
F155 55T (&)

FH AN 5 [ 4 AT R R AN B B B 7
HEEREASHET B INRAFE R
MZERE  BUIRAZEER I E
HARM BT ENTE -

BB (BRI BHERBEEEE) -
BREF229F - IMEX G RBNAE

% e S INMA] R EETE A S BAS
B A HWEIFBEN K ENR ZHE
RMEERXHBH - AR AR
FREBEESGFERABREME
3l - ZBiEH - RETE A KER
HREE  FXHRA(RE B
D) FTAMEXMERNR S H B
REBE RER R KETEM
BEANFEKEELIERARE
ZB e

F 1A 7 55 [ 3 48 DA SIS S A< s M B
BNRE SRR SRELEY
KB RRERTE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued and are potentially relevant to the Group’s
operations but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group.

HKFRS 16 Leases'
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material®
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business’
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation'

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business Combinations'
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes'
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs'

HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and HKAS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

Effective for transactions that occur on or after 1 January
2020

The amendments were originally intended to be effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The effective
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of
the amendments continue to be permitted.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #2 % % M 5 [& A &
ANNUAL REPORT 2019 %3

3. EMERBUBEREERN(TER
B HmEER L) 2

(b)

B HEME R RERFETRE
BN HRELER

AT R EARESERENE
M IE AR E MR B ERT R
BT RE R - KB A
KRB RIER -

FRUBREENE 0 RE
BE(ERAHALRE FRHEEN
ZE8)-REZNH Tt
ERGHENZ1NREE  EAMRE
SR ERIE ST 2]
FRUBREENEIH BT EBHRE’

BEURGLENZ 0N 2B AARENRN
m%?ﬁ:y‘ﬁ\

BROENESE T RNBEAARAE
NEIH R GE

BAMRRLEN-T-1F BAMERELY
ECT-LERANERYE BB
$Bad
E%Mﬁﬁ¢$% P-1f  BRGHENF 2%
“E-LEEEMEENE 2B AR
%@%%ﬁiﬁw LI BRI ERE
“R-LEREMERNE 2B RERA
%%%?ﬁiﬁw 105k REZEABELT
BRGHEAZBYE LT AREBAAZA

HEREAEE'
R-ZB—NF— A ARZRRABRHF
R
R-ZB_TF— A HARZRRABZF
R

RZTZTF—A—HHIZBEEZR
SER
ZEBITRER-_T—tF—A—H=%
Z &R HAM AR - £MBHRETE
BB o S RTHEERE ; FFIRATE
o



P E e

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 Leases and related interpretations, introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee
to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16,
a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset
and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on
the lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments of
the lease liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of cash
flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability
are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments
and also includes payments to be made in optional
periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
an option to extend the lease, or to exercise an option
to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is
significantly different from the lessee accounting for
leases that are classified as operating leases under the
predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

3. EMERAUBEREERN(TER
B HmEER L) )

(b)

B MBI RERMF T, EIEE
BRMBHREER (&)

BEMBHERRFE165 —HE

BRMBHRELENF1RMALNE
BEFRRE LG ERE1757E
ENAMERE - Hol ABE—#AEA
SETEEER - YREABRAR
HE@12@AMMAHERREE
RAE  BRIFNEEERRKEERSE
ERERR - RRME - RIEFE
s mEERFE165E - ABEAR
ERERAEEE(RREBEER
HREEEE) RMEEAE (RKRE
BEEXNBEERIR) - Bt - 7%
HAREREAEEENEREE
BENE  AESEERENRS
BRDBR/AREE D MFSED
YRRERERAZS o fEHN - £
REEELRHERBEVSRBER
RETE - AERETAREEEN
R MEREAEAS RS E R
TR EREAEE R ITREER
RIEHEMNBR TREZEREA
TEL VTSR = b & 5t BRI 75 )% B
HMAGEBELR - REEAR
RBEREANNE B ERIE175%
DEREEHENEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

The Group expects the adoption of the standards
using the modified retrospective approach where the
cumulative effects of initially applying HKFRS 16 is
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained earnings and comparative figures are not
restated. Lease expenses in profit or loss are replaced by
depreciation and interest expenses. Adoption of the new
standard will be incurred higher expenses in the early
years of lease terms, diminishing over the lease terms
and will result lower expenses in the later part of the lease
terms when comparing to HKAS 17.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$643,692,000 (Note 37(b)). Of these commitments,
no commitment relates to short-term leases which will be
recognised on a straight-line basis as expense in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued)

For the remaining lease commitments, the Group expects
to recognise right-of-use assets and a corresponding
liability of approximately HK$567,000,000 on 1 April
2019. Overall net assets will not be materially changed,
and net current assets will be HK$100,051,000 lower
due to the presentation of a portion of the liabilities as
a current liability. In addition, the application of new
requirements may result in changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

The Group expected that net profit after tax will decrease
by approximately HK$11,724,000 for the year ending 31
March 2020 as a result of adopting the new rules.

Operating cash flows will increase and financing cash
flows decrease by approximately HK$85,887,000 as
repayment of the principal portion of the lease liabilities
will be classified as cash flows from financing activities.

Date of adoption by the Group

It is mandatory for financial years commencing on or after
1 April 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to
adopt the standard before its effective date. The Group
will continue to assess the full impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 16.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS
12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how to
reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income
taxes.

Under the interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The entity shall
also assume the tax authority will examine amounts that
it has a right to examine and have full knowledge of all
related information when making those examinations. If
the entity determines it is probable that the tax authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the entity should
measure current and deferred tax in line with its tax
filings. If the entity determines it is not probable, the
uncertainty in the determination of tax is reflected using
either the “most likely amount” or the “expected value”
approach, whichever better predicts the resolution of the
uncertainty.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 - Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured at
amortised cost or at FVTOCI if specified conditions are
met — instead of at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28 - Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to long-
term interests (“LTI”) in associates or joint ventures
which form part of the net investment in the associates or
joint ventures and stipulates that HKFRS 9 is applied to
these LTI before the impairment losses guidance within
HKAS 28.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKFRS 3 which clarifies that when a
joint operator of a business obtains control over a joint
operation, this is a business combination achieved in
stages and the previously held equity interest should
therefore be remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKAS 12 which clarify that all income tax
consequences of dividends are recognised consistently
with the transactions that generated the distributable
profits, either in profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include
amendments to HKAS 23 which clarify that a borrowing
made specifically to obtain a qualifying asset which
remains outstanding after the related qualifying asset
is ready for its intended use or sale would become part
of the funds an entity borrows generally and therefore
included in the general pool.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to
be recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets
to its associate or joint venture. When the transaction
involves a business the gain or loss is recognised in full,
conversely when the transaction involves assets that do
not constitute a business the gain or loss is recognised
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in
the joint venture or associate.

Except for HKFRS 16, the Group is not yet in a position
to state whether these new pronouncements will result in
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies
and financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements are summarised
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated.

4.1 Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition
or up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(a2 maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_T—

NE=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Contingent consideration balances arising from business
combinations whose acquisition dates preceded 1
January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group first applied HKFRS
3 (2008)) have been accounted for in accordance with the
transition requirements in the standard. Such balances
are not adjusted upon first application of the standard.
Subsequent revisions to estimates of such consideration
are treated as adjustments to the cost of these business
combinations and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group'’s interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
the subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as
would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.1

4.2

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_T—

NF=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.2

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity owners of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position depending
on the nature of the liability.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4, FESHBEBE 2

4.3 Associates 4.3 B AT

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment. Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in profit or loss,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.3 Associates (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when significant influence is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

NFE=A=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.4

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
HK$ at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations, are
translated into HK$ at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:
Buildings Remaining lease terms
of property
Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years
The assets’ estimated residual values, depreciation
methods and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance
are charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.6

Intangible assets

(i)

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities exceeds the aggregate of the fair value
of consideration paid, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated
to each of the relevant cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable
amount, and whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.6

Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the
other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However,
the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce
the individual asset’s carrying amount to below
its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable)
or its value in use (if determinable), whichever is
the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.6

Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible asset with finite useful lives is
amortised from the date it is available for use and its
estimated useful life is as follows:

Trademark 10 years

Leasing contracts Remaining lease terms
Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Prepaid lease payments are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Cost mainly represents consideration paid for the
rights to use the land from the date the respective
rights were granted. Amortisation of land use rights
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period
of rights.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied

from 1 April 2018)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

NEF=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

FVTOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Debt
investments at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective
interest rate method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied

from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets
held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be
classified at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, as described
above, debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL on
initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

NEF=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVTOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in
fair value, dividends and interest income are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on trade
receivables, financial assets measured at amortised
cost and debt investments measured at FVTOCI. The
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs
that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_T—

NF=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables and contract assets using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-month ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FTESTHEME 2

4.7 Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied 47 @RI E(B=ZE—N\EWMA—H

from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days
past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or
due.

(2) the financial asset is more than 90 days past

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non-credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially measured at
fair value and financial liabilities at amortised costs are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly attributable
costs incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied

from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is recognised in
profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset
or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FTESTHEME 2

4.7 Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied 47 @RI E(B=ZE—N\EWMA—H

from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to
a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at their fair
value on the date the financial liability or part thereof is
extinguished. If the fair value of the equity instruments
issued cannot be reliably measured, the equity
instruments are measured to reflect the fair value of the
financial liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised in
profit or loss for the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied

until 31 March 2018)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but
has elected not to restate comparative information.
Accordingly, the comparative financial information
provided continues to be accounted for in accordance
with the Group’s previous accounting policy.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Financial assets are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase
or sale of a financial asset under a contract whose
terms require delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FTESHBERUE®)

4.8 Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied 48 E@MIB(ZE—N\E=F=+—

until 31 March 2018) (Continued)

Investment in debt and equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries and
associates, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction price unless
it is determined that the fair value at initial recognition
differs from the transaction price and that fair value is
evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except
where indicated otherwise below. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on
their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of
each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

Debt securities that the Group has the positive ability and
intention to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated
at amortised cost less impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied

until 31 March 2018) (Continued)

Investment in debt and equity securities (Continued)

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of
the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale investments. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted price in an active
market for an identical instrument and whose fair value
cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised in
the statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses. Dividend income from equity securities and
interest income from debt securities calculated using
the effective interest method are recognised in profit or
loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of debt securities are also
recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised
or derecognised on the date the Group commits
to purchase or sell the investments or they expire
respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

NFE=A=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied

until 31 March 2018) (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise principally through the
provision of goods and services to customers (trade
debtors), and also incorporate other types of contractual
monetary asset. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate and transaction cost.

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-
for-sale investments are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_T—

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied

until 31 March 2018) (Continued)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities

carried at cost are not reversed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4, FESHBEBE 2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018) (Continued)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

- For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018) (Continued)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

- For available-for-sale investments, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The amount
of the cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or
loss is the difference between the acquisition cost
(net of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018) (Continued)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

- Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
debtors included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade debtors directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_T—

NF=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied

until 31 March 2018) (Continued)

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
accrued charges and other payables, amounts due
to related parties and non-controlling interests and
borrowings.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8

4.9

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018) (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the
reporting period.

Other financial liabilities

These include trade and other payables, accrued charges
and amounts due to subsidiaries, related parties and
non-controlling interests and are recognised initially at
their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of automobiles, watches and
jewelleries included in the inventories are determined
using the first-in, first-out method while the other
inventories with different nature are determined using the
weighted average basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. For the purpose of cash flows
presentation, cash and cash equivalents include bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.11 Leases (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Operating lease charges as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are
measured and presented according to the nature of
the assets. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on the straight-
line method over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use the assets
held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the time pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rental are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.12 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

4.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_T—

NFE=A=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.14 Revenue recognition (Accounting policies applied

from 1 April 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control
of the goods or service is transferred over time if the
Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.14 Revenue recognition (Accounting policies applied

from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer
for more than one year, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amounts receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts where the period
between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in
HKFRS 15.

Sales of automobile

Revenue arising from the sales of automobile is
recognised when the customer obtains control of the
automobile. Factors to determine when the customers
obtain control of automobile include issuance of
registration document, full payments have been made
and the goods have been delivered to and accepted by
the customers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4, FESHBEBE 2

4.14 Revenue recognition (Accounting policies applied 414 REBRB(BZZE—N\FEWMBE—H

from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Sales of other merchandised goods

Revenue arising from the sales of other merchandised
goods represents the net invoiced value of goods sold,
after allowances for returns, trade discounts and value
added tax and is recognised at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods.

Services income

Revenue arising from the services is recognised over time
as these service are provided.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable.

Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

EEANSHRE)(F)
HERME G
HEHE MR mATEL R B AIEMER

RE - BHITMMEEREHIHE
EmMBERFE - WRNEEZHIE

BEEEFPRER BERRE
B o
R A

Rl 75 BT 72 A 0 M A PR 4 AR 75 ) B
Fﬁﬁﬁggfu °©

BEHEELHHETKA

REHE 2 RIHS WA RESH
BMEMBASEY BERGRE
R EMAHEMERREEFRMR
B MR E B ERTE LS 2 FaR
AIBRIN - B 2 HERBAEBRER
hER AR E F SRR 2 A
REB S -

SRS EHES 2 SR NE

RN -

FIE LA

B AR EERFI BOEIER AL
BIFER °

KREHRA

KB LETHREZBRBWARKEZ
PREK B HER

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 3£ BB R A

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 4

193



194

Cypi e IR

(%)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_T—

NF=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.15 Revenue recognition (Accounting policies applied

until 31 March 2018)

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received and receivable for the sale of goods, rendering
of services and the use by others of the Group’s assets
yielding interest and dividends, net of returns and
discounts. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised as follows:

Sale of goods is recognised upon transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to customer.
This is usually taken as the time when the goods are
delivered and the customer has accepted the goods.

Services income is recognised when services are
rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on the straight-line method
over the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ¥ @A R A

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 4

415 WERRB(R =

4. FEETBERBE @)

—N\NE=A
=t+—-BAEANEREX)

W BEHEE M - RERBIAKR
HiALERAASBEERSEHNE
MEBEZEWEEUKREARE
(HURGRE RATH0) o BRRL BN 2=
BRI aERmASRE - B s KA
(Ln@EfA) ger] =T E - AR T 5
BRI

EmHEREREZ TZRAR KR

CI#FRER T X PRHER - UIER—
REGSERRNREFEAER
2B o

ARISHLA TIRER A AR TS S ERR,

FEWARRE R A BAIRE R
IR ©

REHE 2 RIHES WALHER
&= AR A B AR IR s R TR
B0 H it B ERE BB 1 30 R R fiE
REEEEMES 2 MR BB
%°ﬁ&2ﬂﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁ
R EWAR EF I SRR 2 AR ED
noﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%iZ@ﬁ%%
MEERBUNA o

KB LETREZBRBWARKEZ
AR B RR SRR ©



CYpi S e IR

(%)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

NEF=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.16

4.17

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on those assets is deducted from borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

- other intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not

there is any indication impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.17 Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. cash
generating unit (“CGU”)).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the CGU to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the CGU (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4, FESTBEREE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.17 Impairment of other assets (Continued) 417 HtEERE (&)
- Reversals of impairment losses — REFEEED

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an REE(TBEERE)mMS
impairment loss is reversed if there has been fii %5 FB DATEE JE P U [B] & 58 2
a favourable change in the estimates used to HErBBEEERN 2 &1
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment FegHEEREBEBIEED -
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. R 2R ERE T A (e -
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to Fres (8] 2 5 {8 85 18 LA (R 7% 48
the asset’s carrying amount that would have TFEEWERRREEEM
been determined had no impairment loss been [EEE2EEREBEAR -
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment P (Bl 2 5 (B &5 18 1 iR 82
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in Bl FEART AR °

which the reversals are recognised.

4.18 Employee benefits 4.18 EEREH

(a) BIKiEF

(a) Retirement benefits

18 BIR K48 I35 18 57 5K
AR -

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

AEBRBRGMERTRESE
2GR RITBEARERSZHE
RERFCRFIMERESRIK
wAEE([REEtE )2
BERMFE—HEBEEE -
HKRERRBEEAHEZE
DR -

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Retirement benefits (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
which operate in Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as employees render services during
the year. The Group’s obligations under these plans
are limited to the fixed-percentage contributions
payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ¥ @A R A

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 4

4.

TEE

FTBURMEE (2)

4.18 EETA (&)

(a

(b)

BIREF ()

REBEDEA ML E 2 I
BRRAZEBAZNELT
B &M 2 REKSE
g EMBARARBR
BASFEFELEERET
BRA—EBNLZ K

HRRNEERFARERE
REBSRABR B
AEBERZEAHEETZE
ERREMNZEER DL H#

=5
N

FEHESER

BREEERZEZFBNEE
AEARER - ARAIHE
BREEHEHRIEAMEHR
REMAIZEFRZGTA
EVEH R

FERFAFAREBR (BB RS
R R IR AR B )T T i

=7
s ©



CYpi S e IR

(%)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-
based compensation plans for remuneration of
its employees. All employee services received
in exchange for the grant of any share-based
compensation are measured at their fair values.
These are indirectly determined by reference to
the equity instruments awarded. Their value is
appraised at the grant date and excludes the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period
if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the
compensation qualifies for recognition as asset,
with a corresponding increase in the share option
reserve in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the
expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of equity instruments that are
expected to vest. Estimates are subsequently
revised, if there is any indication that the number
of equity instruments expected to vest differs from
previous estimates.

NE=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2019
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Share-based employee compensation
(Continued)

At the time when the share options have exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve is transferred to share premium. After
vesting date, when the vested share options have
forfeited or still have not been exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve is transferred to contribute
surplus.

4.19 Income taxes

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

NE=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.19 Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_T—

NE=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.19 Income taxes (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.19 Income taxes (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

the same taxable entity; or

different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

NEF=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

4.

FTESTHEME 2

4.19 FriE% (&)

A REEHBEERNEEZHES
FZIR - WER TS - AERE
EHBEEESEANEEAETITE
%J«\A$Hﬂﬁlﬁf§?‘%ﬁ%’$ﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁ
& W EFEA T 215
T AAUD E'J}R§E$HH&5EL$R
EHEE :

7

- FAEBEEENAR: &%
EitsmFRELELE X
RKSERZEEMNSEZE

& 3k

- EEHRBEEMAE: E&
BEMBELNARR KRB
HREAB A T E R —TBRKR
FISHiAR

- TRZERHRERE M
ELEREERERE
ARBERLEREARES
REENREHIREE
A LAY 3 2 {8 R SR A
B RFEERERA
HRBEEMBEAND
HMIRAE  KFEFER
ZEEMBEZARE

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 23 % B A R A A

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 4

203



204

B A5 SRR AL

(#)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.20 Segment reporting

4.21

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

() A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(@) has control or joint control over the Group;

(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.21 Related parties (Continued)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(@)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to

the others).

(o) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(c) Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third

entity.

(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

(f)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by

a person identified in (i).

(@) A person identifies in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

(h) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the

parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.21 Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(o) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(c) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5,

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(a) Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the CGUs to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the directors to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGUs and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value.

(b) Impairment of other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any indication that other non-
financial assets with definite lives may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the assets. In assessing whether
there is any indication that other non-financial assets
may be impaired, the Group considers indications from
both internal and external sources of information such
as evidence of obsolescence or decline in economic
performance of the assets, changes in market conditions,
economic environment and customers’ tastes. These
assessments are subjective and require management’s
judgements and estimations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. BEfREeir {4t R ¥ E =)
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The loss allowances for trade and other receivables
are based on assumptions about risk of default and
ECLs rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

Provision for inventories

The management reviews the inventories at the end
of each reporting period, and makes allowance for
impairment of obsolete, slow-moving and impaired items.
The management estimates the net realisable value
for such inventories based primarily on the expected
future market conditions and the estimated selling price.
The Group makes allowance for impairment if the net
realisable value is below the carrying amount.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and other jurisdictions in which the
Group operates. Significant management judgement
is required in interpreting the relevant tax rules and
regulations and determining the amount of the provision
for income taxes and the timing of payment of related
taxes. There could have transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain in
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ¥ @A R A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

NEF=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. RSt {Lit R Y =)
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Valuation of financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are revalued with reference
to the valuation performed by independent professional
qualified valuers at the end of each reporting period.
Such valuations are based on certain assumptions, which
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. Any increase or decrease in the
valuations would affect the Group’s profit or loss in future
years.

Amortisation on other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are amortised on a straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives. The Group
reviews annually the useful life of these assets and
their residual values, if any. The amortisation expenses
for future periods are adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimation.

Contingent considerations of acquisitions

The Group has business combinations involving
post-acquisition performance-based contingent
considerations. The Group recognises the fair value of
those contingent considerations for acquisitions at the
respective acquisition dates and at end of reporting
period. These fair value measurements require estimation
of post-acquisition performance of the acquired business
and judgement on time value of money. Remeasurements
of contingent considerations at their fair values resulting
from events or factors emerging after the acquisition date
would affect the Group’s profit or loss in future years.

(f)

(9)

(h)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_T—

NE=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with internal reporting provided to executive directors of the
Company who are responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments.

The executive directors have identified the following reportable
operating segments:

()  Auto dealership — this segment includes distribution of
branded automobiles, namely Bentley, Lamborghini and
Rolls-Royce and provision of related after-sales services;

(i) Non-auto dealership — this segment includes distribution
of branded watches, namely Richard Mille, DeWitt,
Parmigiani, DeLaCour and Buben & Zorweg, distribution
of branded jewelleries, namely Boucheron and Royal
Asscher, distribution of certain brands of fine wines,
audio equipment, menswear apparels and accessories,
and cigars and smoker’s accessories.

(i)  Others — this segment includes provision of property
management services, catering services and property
rental services; and film investments.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the product and service lines requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches. Inter-segment
transactions, if any, are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar transaction.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2019 45

WE‘B?&%E@I ﬁ(ZF‘wﬁzi ©

HTEE DA TR 285
#

) REIH-MIEFEREERN
RO E A2 I 85 Hr 2 i 2 B8 R AR 1 4R
FAE R AR -

iy EAEDHE -—ZPIBBEBHER
¥ Richard Mille ~ DeWitt -
Parmigiani * DelLaCour & Buben &
Zorweg % EF & - X2 Boucheron
NRoyal Asscher& e « KBS
TmEzEE  SERE BEK
P DA B2 55 i 2 A BB o

(i) Hv— o EEREMESER
% %aﬁﬁﬁ%&%%ﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁ% B IA
MEZKE -

R & EmKIRGRIIAZEIRMEH

7‘7‘%7(5/% BWEELELMIDOHAE
° DR S (WA ) I2ERBUX

%H&HW\a‘B/\iZ%T%HﬁEE °



P e

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEWER (=)
2019
—Z-hE
Auto Non-auto
dealership dealership Others Total
AEDH FREDH Hity |t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AR TER TET TER
Revenue from external customers  RESMNBEP 2 Wiz 3,307,716 320,315 96,814 3,724,845
Other income and net gains =N s 44,683 17,993 3,379 66,055
Reportable segment revenue EE e 3,352,399 338,308 100,193 3,790,900
Reportable segment results AREDMES 231,500 (37,485) 50,465 244,480
Amortisation of other intangible HihEEESH
assets - (79) (26,648) (26,727)
Amortisation of prepaid lease BRREFIASE
payments (7,539) - - (7,539)
Operating lease payments in respect TSR T 7 K4 E A
of rented premises (40,215) (15,028) (31,679) (86,922)
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #1% - R R R ETE
equipment (13,385) (3,219) (1,352) (17,956)
Write-down of inventories FE MR - (8,356) - (8,356)
Reversal of write-down of REFEMH
inventories - 7,947 - 7,947
Reportable segment assets AREDBEE 1,679,272 610,730 919,831 3,209,833
Financial assets BAREGAEMEZERBAZ
at FVTOCI ) SREE 426,187
Deposits, prepayments and other &% - BAFZBREM
receivables RN RIE 28,066
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFRRE 22,454
Other corporate assets: HMARBE :
- financial assets - SREE 42,529
- non-financial assets —FeREE 204,582
Consolidated total assets BEBEE 3,933,651
Additions to non-current segment  FRREIERB D HEE
assets during the year 554,133 1,467 613,429 1,169,029
Unallocated AOE 175,828
1,344,857
Reportable segment liabilities ARENDEE 301,173 80,156 190,999 572,328
Borrowings e 873,881
Other corporate liabilities: HttREEfE
- financial liabilities -SREE 10,175
- non-financial liabilities —FLRAaRE 104,073
Consolidated total liabilities GRBAR 1,560,457
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. TEER®E
2018
—T-N\F
Auto Non-auto
dealership dealership Others Total
B FRENH Hity A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T BT FBT FET
Revenue from external customers R EINDEP 2 Iz 2,569,576 323,476 - 2,893,052
Other income and net gains Hi A Rz 558 58,330 5,762 - 64,092
Reportable segment revenue A E D BRE 2,627,906 329,238 - 2,957,144
Reportable segment results ARE D HEE 160,225 (24,415) - 135,810
Amortisation of other intangible Hitn @B
asset - (79) - (79)
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #1% - R R R ETE
equipment (18,192 (2,561) - (20,753)
Write-down of inventories FEMR - (6,238) - (6,238)
Operating lease payments in respect 18 E1EF 7 L& BEHIE
of rented premises (42,788) (41,850) - (84,638)
Reportable segment assets ARESBEE 1,244,383 589,569 = 1,833,952
Available-for-sale investment AHHERE 1,291,321
Investment in debt securities REEBES 440,000
Loan receivables EWER 127,376
Deposits, prepayments and other 184 - BHZUB R E M
receivables JE Wz B 198,011
Cash at banks and in hand BITRFHERS 7,421
Other corporate assets: H AR EE
- financial assets —EREE 4172
- non-financial assets —FEHEE 4,780
Consolidated total assets GEBEE 3,907,033
Additions to non-current segment  FRREFERE D P
assets during the year BE 13,976 2,067 - 16,043
Unallocated Ao 1,846
17,889
Reportable segment liabilities AREHDEE 263,667 42 587 - 306,254
Borrowings TE 567,652
Other corporate liabilities: HiARIAE:
- financial liabilities -SRARE 3,812
- non-financial liabilities -FemaR 6,135
Consolidated total liabilities BAHER 883,853
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

A reconciliation between the reportable segment results and
the Group’s profit before income tax is a as follows:

NE=A=+—HILHFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

6. DEER (&)

A] SR 0 BP SR AR B AN SR B 2 B P S B A

AR

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

BE-_Z—-h#&F HE_ZT—N\F

=A=1+t—HULEFE =—A=+—RHLFE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

Reportable segment results Al RE D S 244,480 135,810

Bank interest income RITF B WA 1,299 1,216
Income from investments, debt RE  BEIENEREZRZ

securities and loan receivables A 9,588 13,835

Unallocated corporate income KDBEARUWA 13,692 4,433

Unallocated corporate expenses AARAFFEX (146,008) (41,919)

Share of loss of an associate DME—HEBE AR ZEE = (12,779)

Gain on deemed disposal of RIELER—RHBE AR 2

investment in an associate RE W= - 585,588

Finance costs BMEKAE (40,956) (16,234)

Profit before income tax R P15 750 A ) 82,095 669,950

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 3£ B B R A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Major customer

During the reporting period, there is no customer with
transactions exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue.

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers
and (i) the Group’s non-current assets other than financial
instruments (“specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of customers is based on the location at
which the goods were delivered or the services were provided.
The geographical location of goodwill, other intangible assets
and investment in an associate is based on the entities’ area
of operation while that of other non-current assets is based on
the physical location of the assets. Management determines
that the Group is domiciled in Mainland China and Hong Kong,
which are the Group’s principal operating locations.

The geographical analysis of revenue from external customers
and specified non-current assets are as follows:

Revenue from external

RBERAR BEERZFZXH5BBA
SEYE 2 10% °

TREIARE()AEERBEIELEFH
Wt » R()AKEFRBDEE (ERMTE
BN (EEHRBEE ) IBUENE
o BPHMEUENEREMR MK
RUERGOME -BE  HUBETLEE
LR —FHBE QB 2 RENIEGET)
ERNERNEZiE  MEMIFRDE
ENKEEMEENEENERME
EEEETASELNTEAMKREE
(R AAEENT2LLHE) -

KEINBEFPO WG RIEEFRDEE
B DTN T

Specified non-current

customers assets

RENBEFHK G EEFRBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—2-nf T \F  ZB-AF TR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THTL TET FAT
Mainland China and Hong Kong B A& B 3,717,389 2,823,731 1,591,363 298,698
Malaysia Bk n 7,456 69,321 314 393
3,724,845 2,893,052 1,591,677 299,091
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

(%)

REVENUE 7. W=
The Group’s principal activities are sale of automobiles and REB 2 F B ERE R EMME R
other merchandised goods and provision of automobile EURREREHBERIRG - Hin3
related after-sales services. Other businesses mainly represent BEEOERHEVEETERY 28R
income from provision of property management services, ERMERERE ZWA
catering services and property rental services.
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by RERPAEHZWHIEEBERHIRG
major product or service lines is as follows: 4RE| D Z BRI -
2019 2018
—E-NF —\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FAETT
Revenue from contracts with Y= %H\FE\,Z'JZHK = (BEYH
customers within the scope of RERRAIE 15 RRERN) -
HKFRS 15:
Recognised at point in time B (BT B AR
Sales of automobiles AEHE 3,193,687 2,469,539
Sales of other merchandised goods HibmmiEE 320,315 323,476
Recognised over time BEF [T AR
Provision of after-sales services REERIRE 114,029 100,037
Provision of property management  se ¥ EE B RS
services 18,652 -
Provision of catering services REERIRTS 14,832 -
Revenue recognised according to RIS E R R
other accounting standards: 3,661,515 2,893,052
Provision of property rental services  se ¥ E B E RS 63,330 -
Total st 3,724,845 2,893,052
Details of recognition of amount of revenue from the contract RSN BBEREZSE L BEH AN
liabilities are set out in Note 30. 30 o
SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #2345 2
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

(%)
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8. OTHER INCOME AND NET GAINS 8. HWARWz=FHE

2019 2018

—E-NE —N\F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

F#& T FHETT

Bank interest income |ITHEHA 1,299 1,216
Income from investments, debt "E - EiSEsMERER

securities and loan receivables ZWA 9,588 13,835

Bonus from suppliers HIERE 4 T 2 @8k - 10,045

Gain on disposals of property, plant & - #e5 KR E 2R

and equipment 2,054 2,128
Income from advertising, exhibitions E4 - BE R E M ARFSWA

and other services 33,721 7,820

Income from insurance brokerage R LA 40,164 44,893

Management fee income EEEWA 218 1,135

Administrative fee income ITHEWA = 618

Others Hith 3,590 1,886

90,634 83,576
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
HEZZ—NF=A=1+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019
9. OPERATING PROFIT 0. REEHER
This is arrived at after charging/(crediting): IR AR (G A) LATRIER -
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\EF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FHEIT
Amortisation of other intangible  Fft 8712 & 2 # i
assets 19 26,727 79
Amortisation of prepaid lease BT E SR
payments 17 9,975 -
Auditors’ remuneration Z ERRD N &
— Audit services — BT ARTS 1,500 1,300
— Non-audit services — IEE T ARTE 997 510
Cost of inventories recognised R AR Z1FEKA
as expense, including B 3,136,494 2,287,412
— Write-down of inventories — FEMUR 8,356 6,238
— Reversal of write-down of — B B 17 E WU
inventories (7,947) -
Depreciation of property, plant — #)% - #B REE 2IHE
and equipment 16 26,891 21,995
Exchange differences, net PE W F A= RE 1,009 904
Operating lease payments in HEEFZ
respect of rented premises* BT E A ¢ 95,832 98,025
Employee benefit expenses EBERBINFAY 13 65,310 44,426
Provision for litigation and FARREREE
claims 45 - 12,976

Operating lease payments in respect of rented premises
have been recognised in the amounts of approximately
HK$23,107,000, HK$63,821,000 and HK$8,904,000 (2018:
HKS$Nil, HK$82,516,000 and HK$15,509,000) in cost of sales,
selling and distribution costs and administrative expenses
respectively.

FRAHEME 2 KEHEFREE A RN
HEMA - HERRIERARITHRE N
t# 7R 4923,107,0007% 7T - 63,821,000
BT 8,904,0008B (=T —/\F : &
7 7T 82,516,000% 7T & 15,509,000
BIT) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BLE A
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT T
Interest on bank borrowings RITEERE 25,182 14,187
Interest on other loans HEaERF LS 15,774 2,047
40,956 16,234

11. INCOME TAX 11. 88

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to
income tax at the rate of 25% except that a subsidiary is
entitled to tax exemption for the years ended 31 March 2018

EBFNERIDIBIEARFE 2 (5T EF
i i M AR B E16.5% (=& — )\ 4F -
16.5%) sT et -

AEBZHBEAMKEB QB REHRE
25% TS - E—HH B AR A
EBHREBMEE—_T-—\FR=ZT—A

and 2019. FZA=1T—BILFEZHE -
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Current tax PN P
- Hong Kong profits tax —EBBMNEB
Charge for the year FARZ M 77 1,146
— Income tax of other jurisdictions —E bRl AR TS
Charge for the year FALT N 1,629 1,046
Under-provision in prior years BEFEREBEIR = 794
Total current tax ANERR A IE A %E 1,706 2,986
Deferred tax EFEFLIE (6,700) (152)
(4,994) 2,834

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 23 & EF R A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #2 %%

1. INCOME TAX (Continued) 1. FiEBi2)
Reconciliation between income tax and accounting profit at HEANEAEMEHRES a2 ¥
applicable tax rates: iR
2019 2018
—E-NF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE T FHETT
Profit before income tax & BT 15 75 B i ) 82,095 669,950
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates & Bl ARE R 2 )% A sk B 18
applicable to profit or loss in the HRE AR E 2 TR
respective jurisdictions 14,513 126,256
Effect of tax exemption granted to a —RIMi B A Bl EEFIIBRA R
subsidiary 2 E (43,035) (85,273)
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARBRS 2 HBEE (1,212) (96,774)
Tax effect of non-deductible PAEHZ H 2 B2
expenses 19,544 5,254
Tax effect of unused tax losses not %EE%PJZ*@J%EIEEETE
recognised 2T E 5,235 3,861
Tax effect of temporary differences RERAZERE=R
not recognised BB = 213
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses & BAERER 2 HIEEHRE
previously not recognised 2B (39) (900)
Tax effect of utilisation of deductible ) F @ KFER
temporary differences previously ZA TR ERE
not recognised 2R E = (597)
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR = 794
(4,994) 2,834

SEBERA
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Year ended 31 March 2019

12

BE-—ZE-hNF=A=1+—HLEE

Retirement
benefit
Directors’ Salariesand  Discretionary scheme
fees allowances bonuses contribution Total
BIRER
Ezhe ek HERAL eI &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TEL TEL TEL TR TEL
Executive Directors: HOTES:
Zheng Hao Jiang (Chairman and BT (£ FE&THAH)
Chief Executive Officer) 1,980 60 - 45 2,085
Zhao Xiaodong (Deputy HIR(GIERREE
Chairman and Chief Operating ~ #%, » R=E—\E
Officer, appointed with effect /LA = REZ()
from 3 September 2018) 944 35 - 24 1,003
Zhu Lei XE 840 - - - 840
Cheung Man Kit (retired with EXAR-E-N\E
effect from 31 August 2018) NA=T—BEfE) 350 - - 8 358
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Gao Yu 1S 240 - - - 240
Qi Jian Wei BRE 240 - - - 240
Tang Sung Wai (retired with = (RZE-N\F
effect from 31 August 2018) NA=ZT—BRfE) 100 - - - 100
Independent non-executive BUFHTES :
Directors:
Choy Sze Chung, Jojo ZBE 240 - - - 240
Lam Kwok Cheong MEE 240 - - - 240
Lee Thomas Kang Bor FHER 240 - - - 240
5,414 95 - 17 5,586
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

NEF=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

12. EEME &)

Year ended 31 March 2018 HEZZT—N\F=A=+—RHLEFE
Retirement
benefit
Directors’ Salaries and Discretionary scheme
fees allowances bonuses contribution Total
RARTEA
£k Hé g B st Bl A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT THET THET TET T
Executive Directors: WITES
Zheng Hao Jiang (Chairman and ~ ZBy&)T (F[E 3%

Chief Executive Officer) 1TBUE) 1,980 15 - 25 2,020
Tong Kai Lap (resigned with %E&Q(E’é%fﬁ—/\ﬁ

effect from 1 January 2018) 11 ABHE) 135 1,39 510 14 2,054
Cheung Man Kit (appointed with FXA(M=F—tF

effect from 15 December T=ATRRERE)

2017) 248 - - 6 254
Zhu Lei xE 840 - - - 840
Non-executive Directors: 3F¥ﬂﬁ§$ :

Zhang Si Jian (resigned with REE(R-F—LF

effect from 15 December T=7 ﬂi HEHE)

2017) 169 - - - 169
Gao Yu =Y 240 - - - 240
Qi Jian Wei 2ERE 240 - - - 240
Tang Sung Wai (appointed with HEE(M-T-N\F

effect from 1 January 2018) ~A-REZE) 60 - - = 60
Independent non-executive BUFATES

Directors:

Choy Sze Chung, Jojo 2ER 240 - - - 240
Lam Kwok Cheong WEl & 240 - - - 240
Lee Thomas Kang Bor FEK 240 - - - 240

4,632 1,410 510 45 6,597
During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2019, no RBE_ZE-—NFR=ZFE-—NLF=A

emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement
under which a director has waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments.

=t—HLEFER- K;‘%lﬂﬂ?ﬁiﬁﬂf{ﬁ
EEXNMEAERIMARSE B RN
AREEHE 2 BRI ERBERZHIE -
MEESRECMNLZHREXRENE
EBE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

13. EERABX

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FETT
Employee costs, including directors’ EEKA - BREEEME
emoluments 53,573 34,410
Contributions to retirement benefits R REFIFTE] 5%
scheme 11,737 10,016
Total employee costs EE R MR 65,310 44,426
(a) Five highest paid individuals (a) BfuUKREHAL
EASEERMNESHFALHR @ HH

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2018: three) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 12 above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2018: two)
individuals during the year were as follows:

=R(ZF—N\F: =) BER
AEE REZMEER EXHE
12WE - FARNERKRU(ZF
— N\ WD) ALzBemT

2019 2018

—2-nE e

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE&T FAIT

Salaries and other benefits Fre MEMEF 1,767 2,076
Retirement benefit scheme RRTEFET S 5K

contributions 36 72

1,803 2,148

The emoluments payable to the non-director highest paid BRTHFESESHFATZHEN

individuals fell within the following bands: TSR -

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-NEF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FETT

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 87T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 BT E

1,500,000 7 7T 1 2

2 2
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

14.

15.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid, declared or proposed by the Company
in respect of the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2019.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$97,429,000 (2018: approximately HK$664,565,000) by
the weighted average of 4,839,037,294 (2018: 4,445,894,981)
ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31 March 2019.

Diluted earnings per share are the same as basic earnings per
share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in
existence during the years.

14. K2

RRABVERBE T \FR_F
—NF=A=+—HIFERRT T
SEFEMRSR -

15. EREF

EREARADEABBEE_T—NF
=A=1T—BLEFEARRAEE AEWL
& ) #997,429,0008 7L ( =& — J\4F ¢
#9664,565,000% 7T ) b A B 21T AR
INHEE 15 $04,839,037,294 % (=T — )\
4 4,445,894,981 f%) 5t & o

HRFRATEZEEETL B - REK
BERNEGREARZMAER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y13 -~ SR EE
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
G- HER
EF B B A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
TAET TBT FABT FET
At 1 April 2017 R-ZE—t&WA—-H
Cost B%N - 249,315 30,527 279,842
Accumulated depreciation and ZAMERRE
impairment - (173,404) (15,083) (188,487)
Net carrying amount R4 - 75,911 15,444 91,355
Year ended 31 March 2018 BE-E-\E
ZA=T-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FIREFE - 75,911 15,444 91,355
Exchange differences R - 8,595 1,453 10,048
Additions NE - 11,432 6,457 17,889
Disposals HE - (1,921) (2,849) (4,770)
Depreciation e - (18,349) (3,646) (21,995)
Closing net carrying amount FRIEEEE - 75,668 16,859 92,527
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April R-ZB-NE=A=t—H
2018 R=—Z-N\EMA-A
Cost AR - 229,697 31,102 260,799
Accumulated depreciation and ZEMERAE
impairment - (154,029) (14,243) (168,272)
Net carrying amount BREHE - 75,668 16,859 92,527
Z Z 4 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 123 & @A [R A .
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. Y% - BN RE 2

(Continued)
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
B £ER
25 #f nE att
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TER TER TET TR
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-F-NF
ZA=T-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FOREFE - 75,668 16,859 92,527
Exchange differences EXER 3,249 16,345 (820) 18,774
Additions RE 130,657 24,542 238 155,437
Business combination At - 8,920 - 8,920
Disposals i - - (6,494) (6,494)
Depreciation e (2,193) (22,765) (1,933) (26,891)
131,713 102,710 7,850 242,273
At 31 March 2019 R-ZZB-hE=R=t-H
Cost A 133,962 271,074 19,753 424,789
Accumulated depreciation and ZaERAE
impairment (2,249) (168,364) (11,903) (182,516)
131,713 102,710 7,850 242,273
As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s buildings were pledged as RZE—NF=BA=+—H KEHE
securities for the Group’s borrowing facilities (2018: HK$Nil) FEARNEB 7 EERE 2 R F LA
(Note 32). TR (ZE—N\F : THm) (fzE32) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. AHHAERE

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) under medium-lease and the movements in their
net book value are analysed as follows:

AEER L3 A2 s AR IR
MERTEARLMBE(THE]) 27BN
REBEFR - RRREFEIESH D
T

2019

—E-AE

HK$’000

FHET

Opening net book value FHRE F 5 =
Addition NE 575,915
Amortisation B8y (9,975)
Exchange alignments HE 58 B 16,225
Closing book value FaR 7 REE 582,165

Amortisation expense has been charged to “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

As at 31 March 2019, the land use right were pledged as
securities for the Group’s borrowings (2018: HK$Nil) (Note
32).

Prepaid lease payments related to land use rights are analysed
for reporting purposes as:

BIHERASREEEBAREKZ [T
ER]A-

NR-ZEBE—-HNE=A=+—8  tHFEA
EFURPEAAEBZEEZER (=
T—N\F : TF L) (H5E32) °

EtMmEREEECANEENERZ
HBAZEMEAMET

2019
—F-NF
HK$’000
TET

FRBEE
MENEE

Non-current assets
Current assets
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

18. GOODWILL 18.

The net carrying amount of goodwill is analysed as follows:

]

BB ZREFEOMMAT

2019 2018

—ZE-hF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TAET

At beginning of year R EH] 580,679 580,679

Business combinations X550t 191,374 _

At end of year RER 772,053 580,679
Accumulated impairment 2EHRE

At beginning and end of year RE R EFR (374,508) (374,508)

Net carrying amount AR F 5 397,545 206,171

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the CGUs

TEERBRCELABN BB ZREE

is as follows: (1N
2019 2018
—E-NE —E—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET +E T
Auto dealership TE D 206,171 206,171
Property management services YIS IRTE 189,087 -
Catering services BRRE 2,287 -
397,545 206,171

For the purpose of the goodwill impairment test, the directors
determined the recoverable amounts of the CGUs from value-
in-use calculations with reference to the business valuations
performed by management and an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers where applicable using the
income approach, i.e. pre-tax cash flow projections from
formally approved budgets covering a detailed five-year
budget plan.

REBRENATS  EFNH2EER
BRBIEXAERMGEMT(WER)
MAACE (BN IE AL /ETRES 2 BAT
RenERACREFEZIRLFREES
) L EBEEREREETEE
EREELEMUMANEIEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

18. GOODWILL (Continued) 18.

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are:

[k JC)

FEREEAE ZBARERAT

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT—)\F
Re: Auto dealership BR REDH
Growth rate after five-year period hFEHR ZIERE 0% 0%
Discount rate AhIE & 16% 15%
2019
=Z2—NF
Re: Property management services B8 WESERK
Growth rate after five-year period T FEHEZIERE 3%
Discount rate AR3R & 15%
2019
—Z-hF
Re: Catering services 58 BE8RE
Growth rate after five-year period AFHE ZIERE 3%
Discount rate Ah3R = 12%

The key assumptions have been determined based on past
performance and its expectations for the market’s share
after taking into consideration published market forecast and
research. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the CGUs.

Apart from the considerations described in determining the
value in use of the CGUs above, the Group’s management is
not currently aware of any other possible changes that would
necessitate changes in its key estimates. The recoverable
amount of the CGUs exceeded the respective carrying amount
of those units, and therefore no impairment is required.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED i3 &EEF R A
ANNUAL REPORT 2019 45§
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HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

19. Htt B EE

Lease
Trademark contracts Total
[ HEEH &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET FAET
At 1 April 2017 R-Z—t&WA—H
Gross carrying amount REET 33,163 - 33,163
Accumulated amortisation and S EERRE
impairment (32,691) - (32,691)
Net carrying amount IREFE 472 - 472
Year ended 31 March 2018 BEZ-Z-\F=A=1t—-HILEFE
Opening net carrying amount FEYREFE 472 - 472
Amortisation B (79) - (79)
Closing net carrying amount FRERZE 393 - 393
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R=-ZE—-N\&E=A=+—-H
R-Z-N\ENA—-H
Gross carrying amount R4 33,163 - 33,163
Accumulated amortisation and R EEHRRE
impairment (32,770) - (32,770)
Net carrying amount REFE 393 - 393
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-Z-NFZA=t-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FREFE 393 - 393
Business combinations E avi - 413,211 413,211
Amortisation B (79) (26,648) (26,727)
Closing net carrying amount FRIREEH 314 386,563 386,877
At 31 March 2019 R-Z-NF=ZA=+-H
Gross carrying amount RE&T 33,163 413,211 446,374
Accumulated amortisation and S EERRE
impairment (32,849) (26,648) (59,497)
Net carrying amount BREF R 314 386,563 386,877
_ SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #2345 2 Z 29
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HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

20. INVESTMENT IN AND ASSOCIATE, 20. A—RBE AR Z2IRE ~ A

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT AND HERENSREE
FINANCIAL ASSETS
(a) Investment in an associate (a) R—REBEZEARZKRE

Particulars of the associate up to the date of deemed
disposal during the year ended 31 March 2018 were as

RBE_T-/\F=A=+—HI
FEBERIFHERRBERTZ

follows: HIFT
Percentage
of effective
Place/country of interest
incorporation and Issued and held by the
Name kind of legal entity paid-up capital Company Principal activities
AR ER ERITRER NCIiES:
218 RERERER BlELx BREZEIH FEER
Bang & Olufsen  Denmark, limited Danish Krone 15.09% Design, manufacture, market
A/S (“B&0O”) liability company 431,974,780 and sale of branded audio
and visual consumer
electronics products
Bang & Olufsen A% ERETL A 431,974,780 15.09%  &&T - B - HERHE RIS
A/S([B&O]) FHER A ZSHEETEM

The Group lost significant influence over B&O during
the year ended 31 March 2018 due to a change of
circumstances including the resignation on 1 January
2018 by Mr. Tong Kai Lap as chairman and director of the
Company and the consequential loss of representation
by the Group in the board of directors of B&O, together
with the Group not having the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of B&O. As the
result, B&O ceased to be an associate of the Group on 1
January 2018 in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standard 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures (“HKAS 28”). Accordingly, the investment in
B&O at the date when significant influence was lost was
recognised at fair value and this amount was regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of available-for-sale
investment (Note 20(b)).

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 23 &EEH R A

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 45§

rEBREBEE-_E—N\F=A=+—8
LEFERBRZCRELBIOME AT
27 BEBERNEER=ZZT—NF—
A—B#EARARREFERESE  BEHA
EEAERBIOEFEMRERFEL - M
EAREESERE N2 EBIO M I KL
ERE o Hilt - RIBBEAGFERF 28
FREERRIREERAI2RE (B
2T EAE285%]) BZE—N\F—A
—H#E BROTHAAEEEE AT o
Hit - RBROWEEEREE AT E
NEBRANEBREZESEREE AT
HEEREVIERREH AR E (M
20(b)) °



Cyp e IR

(%)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

NEF=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

20. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE,
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT AND
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

Investment in an associate (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s
results included its share of B&O'’s results for the nine
months ended 30 November 2017 and any significant
events or transactions for the period from 1 December
2017 to the date of loss of significant influence with
reference to B&0O’s most recently available and published
financial information (which were drawn up to 30
November 2017). The Group has taken advantage of the
provision contained in HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted
to include the attributable share of associates’ results
based on accounts drawn up to a non-coterminous
period end where the difference must be no greater than
three months.

Immediately after the loss of significant influence over
B&O,
the entire interest in B&O, with a resulting gain of
approximately HK$585,588,000 on deemed disposal of
investment in the associate recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 March 2018.

it was accounted for as a deemed disposal of

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

20. R— B E

[NEZRE -~ AH

HERERERMEE &)

(a)

R—EBERRZRE (&)

@S EBOHEE T~ —
A=+REREHTEREFIEH

BER REZ-FT-NE=A
S+—BLEE  AEEZ2ES
R (EBROBE Tt E+—

A=tHALNERAZEERB-F
—tF+-A-—BHRBEXEFTAY
EHBEHLHRBEENENERS
HERP - AEBECRABBF B S
R F 285BI - Rk - B
BERTRT AR E QR N REE B H
(BEZEETFEB=A) KB
HEZ RS NT 2 XE

EPEREEBROMERFE N
H BRI A5 1E L & B&O B 2 2B
&= BEURIEL &R E QR
& U %5 49585,588,000 8 TR E &=
—E-\F=ZRA=F+—HLFER

BERER ©

TRIIRBERAR EFERER

information of the associate up to the date of deemed Ve &= B AR B AR
disposal during the prior year:

2018
—N\F
HK$'000
TAT
Revenue g 2,871,301
Loss for the period HRNEE (84,683)
Other comprehensive income HE2mEIKIA (34,922)
Total comprehensive income 2ERAEE (119,605)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

20. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE, 20. A—EBE AR ZIRE » At
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT AND HEREREMEE #)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Available-for-sale investment/financial assets at (b) FHEHERE RDABEFAHM
FVTOCI ZEHBAZEREE
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
Listed equity securities, at fair ETIRAES  BARE
value, classified as financial DEEE AR BEFAEM
assets at FVTOCI (2018: EERAZERMEE(ZE
Available-for-sale investment) —N\F : AIEHERE) 426,187 1,291,321

The balance represented the investment in B&O which
is a listed entity in Denmark. The fair value was based
on quoted market price as at 31 March 2018 and 2019.
The equity investment was irrevocably designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

21. BALANCES WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS AND RELATED PARTIES

(a) Balances with non-controlling interests

The amounts due to non-controlling interests are
unsecured, interest-free, and repayable on demand.

(b) Rental deposits paid to a related party

The Group entered into several agreements with Mr.
Qi, a substantial shareholder of the Company, for
leasing of properties as office premises, warehouse and
showrooms in Mainland China to the Group. The rental
deposits paid to Mr. Qi have been recognised as non-
current assets as at 31 March 2019.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 1%t & @ 4 [ 2 &)
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(b) BN—BEBEESESRE
AREBENARZ EBRRE LA
MEAEBBAES TAURTEANH
ZEENRDIE RERERER L
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

21. BALANCES WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS AND RELATED PARTIES
(Continued)

21. ERIFIZMRIE R R TS  SRR ()

(c) Balances with related parties (c) EERAMEA Z&t
tRRReE LREFAE LRBEEEH
EEERAT KEERAT KLEFRAT
Mr.Qi  (“BJSRGB”)  (“BJHYDY”)  (“BJFBTS”) Total
TREFAE LEBBRES
TRBREE REBRAT LBERARF
EEERAA (MEREF (txB#E
it ([&BEZ) K% aml) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx THT T THT T
(Notes (i) (Notes (ii)) (Notes (i)
(PzE() (BEE (i) (PzE(i))
At 31 March 2019 RZE-n4%=R
=+-H 6,767 - - - 6,767
At 31 March 2018 RIE-N\F
EFET—H 6,847 - 1,111 618 8,576
Maximum balance outstanding HENTHELEE
during the year ended: LERAERER
- 31 March 2019 -“Z-1F
=A=t-"H 6,847 - 1,111 618
- 31 March 2018 —-—Z-\&
=ZA=t-H 20,979 521 1,111 618
Notes: B A

(i) The amount due from Mr. Qi, resulting from prepaid rental
expenses for leasing of properties as office premises,
warehouse and showrooms in Mainland China to the Group,
is unsecured, interest-free and will be utilised through
setting off future rental expenses payable to Mr. Qi within
one year.

(i) The amounts due from BJHYDY and BJFBTS (both
companies controlled by Mr. Qi), were unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

(i)  The amounts due to related parties were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

() SAAEEEEETARFEA
WZMEERLE  RERRE
Bz HeRmERELEEL
FAREEN - 2B RSB BRE
HR—FRENEEEZARRHE
SR TABA -

() AN RETAZ R REEA
B (MR R EERS 2 AF) 2
HEARER  RARARER
g -

(i)  FENRARE D 2 SRR EEA - &
ERAMERERE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

22. INVENTORIES 22. 78

2019 2018
—ZE-hF —ZET-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FABIT
Raw materials and consumables R #E B R fh 39,275 36,959
Merchandised goods GG 989,497 1,024,448
1,028,772 1,061,407
As at 31 March 2019, merchandised goods of (i) approximately R-B-—NAF=A=+— E' () B

HK$407,536,000 (2018: HK$484,121,000) have been pledged #)407,536,00078 T( = & — N\ #:

to secure the loan facilities (Note 32) and (ii) approximately
HK$NIl (2018:HK$16,975,000) have been frozen as a reserve
under a litigation claim as further detailed in Note 45.

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

(a) Trade receivables

Trade receivables represent rental receivable from
tenants, and sales from customers. The Group’s trading
terms with its retail customers are mainly receipts in
advance from customers or cash on delivery, except
for certain transactions with creditworthy customers
where the credit period is extendable up to 3 months,
whereas the trading terms with wholesale customers
are generally one to two months. In addition, the Group
generally provides a credit term of two to three months
to automobile manufacturers for the in-warranty after-
sales services. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding trade receivables and has a credit
control policy to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by the management.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 %= E AR A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a) Trade receivables (Continued)

An ageing analysis of trade receivables at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice dates, is as

23. EREZREURZRE » EH
FIEREMEWRRRIE &)

(a)

FE & 5 R0 ()

ERNTE A NS 5 RIERE
IR R AT

follows:
2019 2018
o —E N\
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
0 — 30 days 0£30H 21,591 5,075
31 - 120 days 31&120H - 267
21,591 5,342

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables
that are not individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

AEBARERASER REERE
ZEWE BFIRZFRE DT

2019 2018

—ZE-AF —ET-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T T

Neither past due nor impaired ABHINARBE 21,591 5,342

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired related to certain customers from whom there
was no recent history of default.

REEATARREZ BUYE 5 5KIR T
BREAETIORLEENCR T
=15
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND DEPOSITS, 23. BWEZREURES - AH
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER I R H At FE WK ()
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b) Deposits, prepayments and other receivables (b) 2% - FEHFEREERSE
2019 2018
—ZE-NF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Deposits e 44,266 20,418
Prepayments TESI A 46,313 45,025
Other receivables H fth e W I8 130,577 150,841
Value-added tax recoverable A] Y Bl R (B A 16,306 53,711
237,462 269,995
24. INVESTMENT IN FILMS 24. REEF
2019 2018
—E-nF —ET)\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T
Investment in films, at FVTPL KREEY » MAAETABR 301,832 -
The amount represents investment projects with certain ZeBENE THRAEEE Y 2 &EQ
production house for co-production of films. The investments A2 EIER c ZIWESTHBEHZER
are governed by the relevant agreements whereby the Group is BBl NEBAHREAZESEY
entitled to benefits generated from the distribution of these films. BEITELE ZHES -
Fair value is determined by applying the income approach, AAENERAMREE S RELRIES Y
using the discounted cash flow method, based on the Bt BT AERIAEET - HE
estimated distribution income of the films. The valuation takes EZEEEIMAESNTEEAUW A R EMET
account of expected income generated from the box offices HEIMARIR - BRI RE mimisndmitE &
receipts and other derivative income streams. The discount RTTR/ELAZ o

rates have been adjusted for the marketability and current
market conditions.

Significant unobservable inputs are as follows: BEATAEREASFENT
2019
ZE-—NF
Ranging from
Average returns 15 [B] 3 = NF 118% to 188%
Discount rates BLIR K 16%

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED % @A R A
ANNUAL REPORT 2019 45§




P E e

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

24. INVESTMENT IN FILMS (Continued)

The Group acquired the investments through the acquisition
of Cheer Summit Investment Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Cheer Summit Group”). Pursuant to the sale
and purchase agreement, the Group conditionally agreed
to purchase and the vendor conditionally agreed to sell the
entire equity interests of the Cheer Summit Group at an initial
consideration of issue of 340,000,000 shares of the Company
and the contingent consideration, in which the Company will
issue the convertible bonds with reference to a formula as
stipulated in the sale and purchase agreement, in the event
that the financial performance of the Cheer Summit Group
meets the designated targets within the three years ending
31 December 2021 in any reporting period since the date of
acquisition (i.e. 17 January 2019). As at the date of acquisition,
the fair value of the contingent consideration was assessed
to be minimal, based on the budgeted profit after tax of the
Cheer Summit Group, probability of issuance of the convertible
bonds and fair value of the convertible bonds. The fair value of
the contingent consideration payable remained unchanged as
at 31 March 2019.

24.

KREES (&)

AEEFBRBRSREERARREL
WEA AR (AE I XeE®])BAKE -
BEEEHZ  ~A&BEKRERAEZEEE
MELFERERELERSEE 22
Az % - F116 KB & B 17 340,000,000 A%
RARIKRG MRS EBZHBE
HAWEESHA—E—AEF—A++
H)ERRBE-_TE=-—F+=-A=+—
B 1E = 85 E AR RS AR E RS
EERRE  ASAREBAEARAKLREER
ERHEMIBAARZETIRRES - B
WHEBH  REXSEEZBERTBIR
wm A - BITAIRMRES 2 T AL R AR
BEHFZAAE IAREBZAREW
T EEBRTEN - R=FE—NLF=A
=+—B BENZIRREZAAEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

25.

26.

INVESTMENT IN DEBT SECURITIES

The Group’s investment in debt securities represented unlisted
senior notes (the “Senior Notes”) issued by Shanghai Huaxin
Group (Hong Kong) Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability. Details of the Senior Notes are set
out in the announcements by the Company on 4 December
2017 and 2 March 2018.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group disposed of
the Senior Notes in the principal amount of HK$440,000,000
to an independent third party at a total consideration of
HK$447,260,000 in which HK$7,260,000 was included in the
income from debt securities. The direct costs attributable to
the disposal of Senior Notes of approximately HK$5,720,000
have been charged to other expenses in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Details of the disposal
of the Senior Notes are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 31 May 2018.

25. REBHKES

AEENEBESFRER LEEEEE
(BR)BRAR (—HEREBEMAKLE
BRAR)BTNFLTEERE((EBE
RED FHEERBNFBRENAR
AR-ZE—tHF+-_AMBE-_Z—N
F=ZA-BTIENRMm -

REBEE_ZT—NLF=ZA=+—HBLHF
g - REBLAAR (B 447,260,000/ JTA)
BN E =5 HEARN$ 5 A440,000,00078
ToZ B - HA 7,260,000 A
EREFBA - HEBLZREGHERE
AN 4)5,720,000 8L E 5T ALRE 2 E W
AREKZEMER - HEBEZEZF
BHINARARBRHAE-ZT—\FAHA
=+—BZRAM -

LOAN RECEIVABLES 26. BWER
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Loans to independent third BEEMERETE™
oA — 1B S
parties through internet B R =T RUER
finance platform - 86,420
Other loans receivable H e I E 3K - 40,956
- 127,376
Notes: s
()  Amounts represented loans to independent third parties i) SRABAE Y 2 RRE A R B4

which were facilitated through the internet finance platform of
independent financial services companies and were unsecured.
The principal of these loans (with maturity due within 60 days) and
the related interest (bearing 6.00% or 6.80% per annum) were
insured by an independent insurance company based in Mainland
China. The loans were fully settled during the year ended 31 March
2019.

(if) The loans were made to independent third party and were
unsecured, bearing interest rate at 7.36% per annum and
repayable within one year. The loans were fully settled during the
year ended 31 March 2019.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED i3 &EEF R A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

27. PLEDGED DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED BANK 27. BiE#EE - SR4IBTES

28.

BALANCE AND CASH AT BANKS AND IN
HAND

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. As at 31 March 2019, the deposits bore
interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 2.00% per annum (2018:
ranging from 0.01% to 2.00% per annum) which are close to
the market interest rates.

The Group’s deposits have been pledged to secure loan
facilities granted to the Group (Note 32), which will be released
upon the settlement of the relevant borrowings.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a restricted deposit held
at a bank in Mainland China as a reserve under a litigation
claim, details of which are set out in Note 45. The litigation
claim was fully settled and the restricted deposit was released
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

As at 31 March 2019, the cash at banks and in hand, restricted
bank balance and pledged deposits of the Group which are
dominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and held in Mainland China
were HK$266,636,000 (2018: HK$176,855,000). RMB is
not a freely convertible currency. Under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
foreign currencies through banks that are authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

28.

URBITRFERE

IRITHE S ZF B TYiRE HIRITFRAE
NEEHE R NE=ZA=1+—
B FRAFEFENF0.01% E2.00%
(ZE2E—NF: FFEN F001%E
2.00%) T2 - BRILTHFIER o

AEBzERE TEN  SAKEER
B E SR EEER(HES2)  FRERN
BB RAE B1RARRR -

N_B—-NE=A=+—0 X&£ER
R R IR 1T B M X R 7 R IE AR
MEBERZFEES  BAEFBIHNRME
45 c FFARBMRE TE2MR - MZRHTF
BFREBEE—_TE—hNhF=_A=+—HILF
EREME -

RZZ-AE=F=1+—H A&EEH
RITRFHERS  XRHBITEHRRE
EIHRTFR(BHUAARBTEERFE AN
#5)5266,636,0008 70 ( —Z— \4F :
176,855,000/ 7C) - AR HAEK
REBHME o RIEF A2 INEE
KGR AETE - SERMESERT
NEEE ER R L EINE TS 2R
T8 AR EE S IR BN -

Hitt RS REBEH
RUA BB A A R

TRAXKERELIPDAELEE (BIRER
SRR EY) 2FE - REEBAE
RRTREGHRUKBARESRELH
HRAEESERERERIBRBRE
ABARREREMNALE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

28. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

28. Htt R REER (#)

(Continued)
Amounts
due to non-
controlling
interests Borrowings Total
B IEER
BHFE HE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET
(Note 21(a)) (Note 32)
(Hi#E21(a) (F5E32)
At 1 April 2018 RZE-N\EMA—-H 4,538 567,652 572,190
Changes from financing cash flows: FEEEFEZEH
Advances from non-controlling interests G PGEEEEE St
of subsidiaries 2,309 - 2,309
Proceeds from new borrowings e EE s REHIE - 3,630,838 3,630,838
Repayment of borrowings BEREE - (3,299,062) (3,299,062)
Interest paid ERFIE = (40,956) (40,956)
Total changes from financing cash ~ BEEZ 52 &8 #4
flows 2,309 290,820 293,129
Exchange adjustments ERAEE (208) (25,547) (25,755)
Other change: Hitn2s
Interest expenses FEEY - 40,956 40,956
At 31 March 2019 R-E-NE=A=1+—H 6,639 873,881 880,520
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

28. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

HuBREeREER )

(Continued)
Amounts
due to non-
controlling
interests Borrowings Total
B IEER
BERFE - Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
THET THET THET
(Note 21(a)) (Note 32)
(BzE21(a)) (F#E32)
At 1 April 2017 R-ZE—tFWA—H 1,578 396,377 397,955
Changes from financing cash flows: Eﬂﬁﬁ%;ﬁitﬁiﬁ] :
Advances from non-controlling interests K8 2 F13EE Rk 25
of subsidiaries 2,960 - 2,960
Proceeds from new borrowings g &Zﬁﬁ%?}( - 2,231,457 2,231,457
Repayment of borrowings 1%‘5;'_'11 g - (2,105,248) (2,105,248)
Interest paid BAFIE - (16,234) (16,234)
Total changes from financing cash ~BEZE £ 28545
flows 2,960 109,975 112,935
Exchange adjustments ERAR - 45,066 45,066
Other change: Hitt 2 g
Interest expenses BRI - 16,234 16,234
At 31 March 2018 R=-E-NF=A=+—-H 4,538 567,652 572,190
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

29. TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables based on

29. EREZFIE

ERNBERAHZRNESREARREN

the invoice dates as at the end of the reporting period: KBRS -
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
0 — 30 days 0£30H 71,917 10,194
31 - 60 days 31£60H - 462
61 — 90 days 61 %90 H - 2,290
Over 90 days BB 90 H 8,964 1,555
80,881 14,501
30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. S ERE
31 March 2019 1 April 2018 31 March 2018
“EZ-hE “2-N\% “E-N\%
=A=t-H mA—H =A=+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
T FHET FAT
Contract liabilities arising from  E4£7&HNEE
Sales of goods EmHE 235,034 195,479 -
Movements in contract liabilities EHEBEEF
2019
—E-NEF
HK$’000
FE T
At 1 April REA—H 195,479
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of HHERFE AT AREL]
recognising revenue during the year that ZERNEE
was included in the contract liabilities at the ZWREBEHEHAERD
beginning of the year (195,479)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of HAFEWE mEERIBERES LA EEM
receipts in advance of sales of goods 235,034
235,034

The contract liabilities are related to the advance

considerations received from the customers
automobiles, revenue from which is recog

BMAERNTHHERRKEERZ
BWARE  RBEBRATFRXNAEEK
BARERERZ W HRE -

for sales of
nised when

the performance obligation is satisfied by delivering the

automobiles to the customers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

NEF=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

31. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE, ACCRUED . FEWFERE - ESTERREAME
CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES 'f‘j',TAIE
2019 2018
—E-AF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Current portion mEER D
Receipts in advance from customers JEU & B 5R18 21,089 195,479
Accrued charges and other payables [fE&T % F K H fih &~ 28 240,047 92,891
261,136 288,370
Non-current portion: ERENE
Other payables HAh e FRIR = 304
32. BORROWINGS 32. £E&
2019 2018
—E-hF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET 5T
Current BNHA
Bank loans RITER 143,041 362,308
Other loans HMEX 477,010 205,344
620,051 567,652
Non-current JEBNER
Bank loans RITER 253,830 -
Total #Et 873,881 567,652
Effective interest rates per annum in BB E R ENF -
range of:
— fixed rate borrowings —EREE 5.35% to 8.50%  1.00% to 8.50%
— variable rate borrowings — 2 EEE 4.79% t0 5.26% 2.16% t0 5.22%
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ANNUAL REPORT 2019 4



244

B F5 AR MY EE (F8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_T—

32. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The borrowings are substantially denominated in RMB.

(if) As at 31 March 2018 and 2019, certain inventories (Note 22) and
bank deposits (Note 27) were pledged to secure the loan facilities

granted to the Group.

(i)  As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s certain property, plant and
equipment (Note 16) and prepaid lease payments (Note 17) were
pledged to secure the loan facilities granted to the Group.

(iv)  Borrowings were secured by corporate guarantees executed by
the Company and certain subsidiaries during the years ended 31

March 2018 and 2019.

(V) Borrowings were secured by guarantees executed by a controlling
shareholder of the Company and his spouse during the year ended

31 March 2019.

33. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method at rates of taxation applicable when

the temporary differences are expected to reverse.

The movement in deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position during the years

ended 31 March 2018 and 2019 is as follows:

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 %= E AR A
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32. BE &)

33.

PEE

(0

(i

(ii)

EEETENARKEEE -

R \EFEER_FE-—NF=A=+—
A ZTEE (KHE22) RETER(H
FH27) PR LERE T ASENE
KEE o

—hE=ZA=+—8  AEEH
%?%% Hees Kk (HE16) RIAL
HEFIR(HIRE17) T AR AREUR T
AEEHWERERE -

ivy REBEE=ZZT-—N\EFEER=ZF—LF=A
=t+—HLEFE  BEUAAREET
MiB AR B M EERIERER

V) REBEE=-ZE—HAFE=A=+—HBHLHF
& BETYARAA aEARAR SR & H B
B 2 ERIERIER -

EAEBIIE

RERIBTIREBEEEE - FHBEHAED

TRHEEN 2 BERNE e ERE

HitH o

Z—-NF=A

BIEFER iﬁ/\ﬁﬁkﬂﬁiﬁi * T

RRERIR B B2 EFHMT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

33. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

33. IEEBIE (&)

Temporary
difference on Business

inventories combination Total

RE2
ERER ST &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBL BT FET
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—tFMHA—H 830 - 830
Credited to profit or loss SFABRR (152) = (152)

At 31 March 2018 and 1 April R=—Z—N\E=A=+—H

2018 F=—ZE-—N\EMA—H 678 - 678
Business combination EBE6t - 103,303 103,303
Credited to profit or loss STABERRE (38) (6,662) (6,700)
At 31 March 2019 R-ZE—-hAF=H=+—H 640 96,641 97,281

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses of approximately HK$114,489,000
(2018: HK$87,963,000) as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses arising
in Mainland China of approximately HK$4,905,000 (2018:
HK$4,998,000) will be expired if they are not utilised to set off
against the taxable profits within five years from the year in
which they arose under the current tax legislation in Mainland
China. The tax losses arising in Hong Kong do not expire under
current tax legislation.

Deferred tax liabilities have not been established for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain subsidiaries because the Company controls
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it is not probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future. Such unremitted earnings associated with investments
in subsidiaries totalled approximately HK$1,077,728,000 as at
31 March 2019 (2018: HK$1,055,234,000).

NEE W ARF R T IE BB RERELTH
T8 & E #9114,489,0008 (=T — )\
% : 87,963,000/87T) - AEMABIEGNA
BEENERETAIREESERRERD
A AR S T B R 2 B B & 18 o W R
A EE A 2 5 TE 5 18 49 4,905,000 78 7T
—Z—)\4F : 4,998,000/8 7T ) REALF
SR A F ARBIE R EAHIBITHE
FALAE S PE AR B s Al - BIEZ T IE S 1B 1
& o REBFEEZTHEEBETER
BIRITREEM °

ERNARRIEFETHBEARZERE
R MEREZEZE AR AR
REE - A ELZ S B A R RBER
BFEMZEBENFELEEHBAE -
R-ZT—-hAEFE=A=+—080 BExZH
BRAARIKEEACRBARAENEG X4
#1,077,728,0007% L ( = T — /\ F
1,055,234,000587T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. |7
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
EEREA ¢
HK$'000
THT
Authorised: EERAE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018,
1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019

FREE0.002 8T 2 Ti@k
RoF—tFmA—A -
—EZ-N\F=A=+—8H "

“T-\FMA-BEK
—E-AF=A=+—H 250,000,000,000 500,000
2019 2018
“E-RE -\
Number of
shares HK$'000  Number of shares HK$'000
RHEE ThR S TATL
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: BETRERLER
At beginning of year RE] 4,941,237,447 9,882  4,141,237,447 8,282
Placing of shares (Note (i) RERRD (M) - - 800,000,000 1,600
Share repurchases (Note (ii) WRIA R (FEE (i) (281,552,000) (563) - -
Issue of consideration shares upon REE—HHBARRET
acquisition of a subsidiary (Note (i) B (2 i) 340,000,000 680 - -
At end of year REFR 4,999,685 447 0,999  4941237,447 9,882
Notes: Bt -
() In October 2017, the Company entered into a placing agreement () R-ZF—tFTH A2RE-BRE

REBFIZE E W8 - UIRE— IR
Aid {8 0.5681 /& 7L AL & 800,000,000
HERERK - RZE—tF+—AEREK
AL RTReD ©

with a placing agent to place 800,000,000 new ordinary shares
at the placing price of HK$0.5681 under general mandate. The
placing of new shares was completed in November 2017.

REBE_Z-—N\EF=A=+—RHILFE
FRA B TR AR D FE AT A 77 [ 43R A B
NERRERET

All new shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2018 rank
pari passu in all respects with the existing shares.

24( SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 23 & EF R A -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

34.

35.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) The Company repurchased 281,552,000 of its shares on the
Stock Exchange for a total consideration of HK$84,833,000
during the year ended 31 March 2019. The share repurchases
resulted in the decrease of the issued share capital of HK$563,000
and contributed surplus of HK$84,270,000.

(i) During the year, the Company issued 340,000,000 ordinary
shares to vendor for acquisition of equity interest in Cheer Summit
Investment Limited (Note 24). The fair value of the consideration
shares is determined based on the closing share price of HK$0.45
on the date of acquisition.

RESERVES

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of
shares at a price in excess of their par value per share. The
application of the share premium account is governed by
Section 40 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve arose from waiver of interest on convertible
notes by a shareholder of the Company in prior years.

Special reserve

Special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares of the subsidiaries
at the date on which they were acquired by the Company and
the nominal amount of the shares issued for the acquisition
under a group reorganisation in prior years.

34. BA& (&)
fizE: (48)

iy MREBE-_ZT-NAF=ZA=+—HILHF
[E - RRRILA#ER(E84,833,0008 TR
B 22 AT % [0 B 281,552,000 AR AR 17 ° AR
B8 B BB #17IAR 4> 563,000 8
TC RN BRI 84,270,000 7T °

(i) AW ANRFME T ETT 340,000,000
P& AR R R IR E B IR A B AR HE
(Kf=E24) « REBRHOH QA ETIRER
Uiz B H D U (B 0.45 /B TTEEE °

35. &
BRo=E
R HBEERBATREEY BREE
TRIGFAEL 2 W1E - RIKEE
BEERE—NN—FEATELI0EE
8 o

e

RBEFE  BEAREBIALARE—F
BRBLABBER N EESE

B
AEBZBRIREREARRKRBENE L
AR E BRERD CEERNBES

EETEBEARBWRBMET RN
EEMWEZZ5
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

35. RESERVES (Continued)

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus of the Group arose from (a) the
Company’s transfers of certain amounts of share premium
balance to the contributed surplus account, following the
approvals obtained from the Company’s shareholders, (b)
transfer from share option reverse due to forfeiture or lapse
of share options, and (c) dividends paid out in prior years and
share repurchases.

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences

arising from the translation of the financial statements of

foreign operations.

Other reserve

Other reserve mainly represents:

i) the differences between the considerations and (a) the
carrying amount of the partial interests in subsidiaries
disposed of; and (b) the carrying amount of the non-

controlling interests acquired; and

ii) share of other comprehensive income and other reserves
of an associate.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED %t @ 5 R A &

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 4
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

35.

36.

RESERVES (Continued)

Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve represents appropriations of profits retained
by the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. In accordance with
the respective articles of association of the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries, they are required to appropriate amount not
less than 10% of their profits after income tax to statutory
reserve each year, until the reserve balance reaches 50% of its
registered capital. Such a reserve may be used to reduce any
losses incurred or for capitalisation as paid-up capital.

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

Fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the
fair value of equity investment designated at FVTOCI under
HKFRS 9 that are held at the end of the reporting period.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a special
general meeting of the Company held on 7 October 2002 for
the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees. The Scheme was expired on 6 October
2012.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an annual
general meeting of the Company held on 20 August 2012, the
Company’s new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”)
was adopted and the Scheme was terminated.

Under the New Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company may, at its discretion, grant options to eligible
employees, including executive directors, suppliers,
customers, advisers or consultants and joint venture partners
or business alliances of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
to subscribe for shares in the Company.

35.

36.

EREIED)
SEE R

AEREBIEAR R ENE QR RE S
Mz DB » RBARQ B EHEQFZ
BZABERMAR  ZFERRASER
HERFIB B &SN T DR 10% D EEIA
TR EERBREREEEMELRZ
50% /3 b o it P B IR PTE £ 2
ERERABETERER -

AREREB(FTER)

AR EFBERERREHRAFA MR
BEEVHEREENLIOREE/EAAR
Bt AEMEEBAZBERERAE
ZRFTEEFE

IR AEREESHE

Apmz B (TZEH8 ) TR
ARBR-_ZBE-_F+ALBEETZR
RBRIARE LBGE L BRBRRS
HIZAMRRTEERAERERR
B - ZABER _T——Ft+AXAE
i o

BEARGTR-_ZE——FNA-_+HE
TZRERBFAS LABZLERE
R ARRIE M ERER & ([ st
Bl MZFEEEKRILE -

RIEFETE - ARREETSARERE
BREETAREREER  BREAQRNE
EAMBRRCHITES  HER &
B BRSERAANRE EBHREH
B UREARARLD -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

36. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE 36. URMEAEEREERHE 2

COMPENSATION (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholder or independent
non-executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must
be approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of options.
Options may be exercised from the date of grant of the share
option to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company
and will not be less than the highest of the closing price of
the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, the
average closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the options or the nominal value of the shares.

The New Scheme shall remain valid and effective for a period
of ten years commencing from 20 August 2012, being the date
on which the scheme was deemed to take effect in accordance
with the terms.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options other than by issuing the
Company’s ordinary shares.

There was no share option outstanding under the New Scheme
as at 31 March 2018 and 2019.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 23 & EF R A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 7. REHERE
(a) Group as lessor (a) AEBEERBBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the total future RE{EEIR  BIE TR REES L
minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable BRIz RRKERSERENT ¢

operating leases is as follows:

2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FATT
Within one year —F R 96,518 20
In the second to fifth years inclusive S _FEXFHE (B1E
HEME) 195,621 -
After fifth year FEEMN 91,181 -
383,320 20
(b) Group as lessee (b) AEBEEHEHEA
At the end of the reporting period, the total future REE R - NEERE A6
minimum lease payments payable by the Group under KEHE RN  RREEBEFKIE
non-cancellable operating leases, including operating 47 (B FE MY 5 39(b) AT 52 [m) RE Bt
lease commitment to related parties as disclosed in Note AER 2 EHERIE) AT
39(b), are as follows:
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE T T
Within one year —F R 100,051 85,343
In the second to fifth years inclusive & _FZF R F
(BREEEME) 266,175 218,607
After fifth year FEEMNE 277,466 23,713
643,692 327,663
~ SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #2% &£ B4 [ 2 251
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019
37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 37. KELEBEERE»)
(Continued)

(b)

Group as lessee (Continued)

The Group leases a number of buildings, office premises,

(b) AEBEEREBEAE)

AEEREELHEHERZ @R

bonded warehouses, showrooms and staff quarters FPWAE - REEE - BREKE
under operating leases. The leases run for an initial ITiS% %ﬁf%ﬂ*%%ﬁ—éﬂ—:i
period of one to twelve years (2018: one to eleven years). T—N\F: —F+—F)-
The actual payments in respect of certain operating T4 **WE’E\Z,J" NE TJBZJ:?%F)T
leases are calculated at the higher of the minimum M EAIERIBEREZSEEHE
commitments as noted in the table above and the B hEEzeB(URSE
amounts determined based on a percentage of the sales B EHE

of the related retail shops.

38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

38. EARIE
2019 2018
S —EN%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT T

Contracted but not provided for
in respect of

— Acquisition of a property holding

company

— Purchase of property, plant

and equipment

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED %t @ 5 R A &

ERIKEREE

— B —EY R A

- 669,136
—BEME - HaE RaE

- 400

- 669,536
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

(%)

39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

39. FAME TR

During the year, except as disclosed elsewhere in these FAN - BRRALEA SRR EMID FTH
financial statements, the Group also had the following BTEIN - REE D R T ET N5
significant transactions with related parties: EARS
(a) Related party transactions (a) EBEHAZRXS
2019 2018
—E-h#F —N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET T
Rental expense to Mr. Qi (Note (i) YRFEREEZHSREE
L0 27,567 63,814
Salaries paid to Mr. Qi (Note (i)) TR FEEEZ
o (MEEG) 280 =
Management fee income from RE—EEB AR 2
a related company (Note (i) BEEBUA (FFEEG)) 218 1,135
Administrative fee income from KE BB AR 2
a related company (Note (i) 1TERB WA (I3 ) = 613
Marketing fees to a related company {7 —E@H# AT 2
EIHER 1,965 -
Rental income from a related company & 5 — & @5t A 7 2
HeBA 372 -
Purchases of goods from a related A — &l B 5 A &)
company (Note (i)) e (M EE () = 121
Purchases of goods from ) — A E QR B E M
an associate - 99,906
Notes: FisE

(i) These related party transactions constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(ii) The above related party transactions are conducted in the
ordinary course of business with reference to the terms
mutually agreed between the parties.

The Group defines directors of the Company as key
management personnel and their remunerations are set
out in Note 12.

During the year, the Group acquired buildings
and prepaid lease payments of approximately
HK$130,657,000 and HK$575,915,000 respectively by
way of acquisition of a property holding company from

Mr. Qi.

(i) ;Z%ﬁa 7 R 5B RER Pl E R
ER S (FEER LEMARRE14AE) -

() sz%mﬂa%iﬁ% EP
RBRTHE HHE BT 2 IE7E

AEBREARAEFTRIBEEEA
CREZ B E 12

)ﬂ]]u

EW P AEB RS AW - RHYE

ERARA AN RBART RENHEE
FKIF# 130,657,000 % 7T K 575,915,000
BT ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

39. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitment to related parties

(b)

At the end of the reporting period, the total future
minimum lease payments payable by the Group to Mr. Qi

39. B EINE &)

BT E 2 RE R E AR

RBEMR - AEBERET AR
REHERMNERE 2 RKREH

under non-cancellable operating leases were as follows: BB EY T
2019 2018
—2-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TAT
Within one year —F R 27,377 66,370
In the second to fifth years inclusive HF_FZ2FRhF
(BREEEME) 71,618 188,593
98,995 254,963
40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. TEWE X AFE
SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 March R-E—NE=A=+T—HZFEWSB
2019. DR ZBEWT -
Percentage of
Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up held by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
ADF
HMRT/ A%/ BRTRA/ fEERER
KEAR AR BFREEREER FERAER BhEx Bl TEXBREEHE
Carnaby Group Limited British Virgin Islands (BVI"), ~ Ordinary share  United States Dollar 100%"  Investment holding, BVI
limited liability company (US$") 1
ABRLES BRAA 2R 137 100%* REZR  ZBEXES
Cheer Summit Investment Limited BV, limited liability company ~ Ordinary share US$1 100%  Investment holding, BVI
KEREARAA ABRLES BRAA LR 137 100% RERR ZERLEHE

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #2# %=E AR A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

40. FEMBLABFE &)

Percentage of
Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up held by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
AR
AL/ ALsE/ BRARA/ e RnER
KEAR AN BRREEERER FERAER BhEx ARl TEXBREENH
San Sparkle Culture Investment Limited BV, limited liability company ~ Ordinary share US$1 100% Investment holding, BVI
BERF U RARR AR ZBRABE ARAA Bl 157 100% RERHK ZERTHS
San Sparkle Pictures Industries Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$10,000 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Development Limited liability company
BERATRERERARAA EE BRAT EER 10,0007 100% REBK BE
Sparkle Roll (Denmark) Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$10,000 100%"  Investment holding, Hong Kong
liahility company
BR(AR)BRAT &% BRAT Bk 10,000 B 100%" REBR - FE
Sparkle Roll (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HKS$1 100% Trading of branded jewelleries and
liability company provision of management service,
Hong Kong
B (BR)BRAT EE BRAT EER 187 100% ZKHEEAURRRERRE - &5
Sparkle Roll Cigars Holding Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share US$3,000,000 50.1% Trading of cigars and smoker's
liability company accessories, Hong Kong
BREMARER A &% ARAH LR 3,000,000% 50.1% SHRESEAES &k
Sparkle Roll Global Asset Management BV, limited liability company  Ordinary share US$1 100%  Investment holding, BVI
Limited (formerly known as
Sparkle Roll Fine Wine Limited)
RARREEERARAT ABRNES BRAA Lk 157 100% RERR ZERLHE
(NRRREREXERAR)
Sparkle Roll Global Motors Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary share HK$151,050,000 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
Holding Limited company
BB ERRARAT &% BRAT EER 151,050,004 100% &ERK Bk

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 EBAE R A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

40. FEM B LA TFE &)

Percentage of
Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up held by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
AR
AL/ ALeE/ BRARA/ e RpER
KEAR AN BEREEREER FERAER BhEx ARl TEXBREEMH
Sparkle Roll International Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$100 100% Trading of branded watches and audio,
Distributions Limited liability company equipment, Hong Kong
BRERREARAA BE BRAF R 10077 100% ERFEREERHES B
Sparkle Roll Retail Net Malaysia, limited Ordinary share US$1 100% Trading of merchandised goods,
Development Limited liahility company Malaysia
BATEMRIRARLT BREE - ARAT Bk 1%7 100% BRES SAEE
Sparkle Roll Watch & Jewelry Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$1 100% Trading of branded watches and
liability company branded jewelleries, Hong Kong
BREERERRAA EE BRAT Bl 1T 100% LEFERARAERS B
Balanorm Beo (Beijing) Trading Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB50,000,000 100% Sales and distribution of audio
Development Limited liability company and visual consumer electronics
products, Mainland China
EEER (IR EHERARLA RERY EREAR ElER AR 50,000,007 100% HERREYEHESTEM:
HER
Boao Economic and Trade Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB50,000,000 100% Provision of exhibition and consultancy
Development Limited liability company services, Mainland China
AREERRERAA hEM  BRAELA EWER AR¥50,000,0007 100% RERERZARE PHAL
Beijing De Te Motors Trading Limited Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB101,400,000 100% Trading of automobiles and related
liability company parts and accessories and provision
of after-sales services, Mainland
China
IrERAERFERAT hEMY BRAAAR BYEA AR 101,400,007 100% AEREBTHREEES U RRM
ERRE - PERM
Sparkle Roll Ding Sheng (Beijing) Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Sales and distribution of merchandised
Trading Development Limited" liability company goods, Mainland China
BkeE(tR) B 7ERERAT hEMY BRAAAR BER AR%10,000,0007 100% HERKERR  PEAM

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ¥ @A R A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. FEMB L RFE @)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Percentage of
Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up held by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
AQF
AL/ AL/ BRARA/ e ERER
KEAR AR BEREEREER FERAER BhEx ARl TEXBREENE
Beijing Mei He Zhen Yong Motors Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB194,800,000 100% Trading of automobiles and related
Trading Limited liability company parts and accessories and provision
of after-sales services, Mainland
China
IREAEKEESARDA hER  AREELR BYER AR 194,800,000 100% [EREBSAEREHEHHUREHL
R PERM
Beijing San Sparkle Pictures Industries ~ Mainland Chin, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,950,000 100%  Provision of corporate management
Development Limited (formerly known  liability company and consultancy services, Mainland
as Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin Gai Nian China

Business Management Limited)'
IR R REF R RARAT RN AREFAR BYER AR 49,950,0007C 100% RECFERRZARE  RERM
(MR RERT LR ERARAR)

Beijing Sparkle Roll Fu Sheng Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB5,000,000 51% Sales and distribution of apparel and
Trading Company Limited" liability company accessories, Mainland China

IRk REESER AR hER  AREELR BYER AR%5,000,0007T b1% HERRERKRELS  2END

Beijing Sparkle Roll Motors Insurance Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Provision of insurance agency services,
Agency Limited liability company Mainland China

FrRERRERRRBERAR hERY EREALR ElER AR% 10,000,007 100% RERBRERS - EAD

Beijing Wenfu Hengye Technology Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB626,314,300 100%  Property holding, Mainland China
Development Co., Limited liability company

FRREEMBERERAR RERY EREAAR ElER AR¥626,314,3007 100% WxERK - PERL

Jiao Zhi Zhuang Chen (Beijing) Trading ~ Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,700,000 100%  Provision of public relation and
Development Limited (formerly known  liahility company marketing services, Mainland China

as Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin Jing Jie
Public Relation Planning Limited)"

BamR (R BERRARAR hER  BRELA BhER AR 49,700,000 100% RENBRERDIARS - PEAY
(M RERGIRR ABREBRAR)

_ SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #2HEE AR A | Z 5 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

40. FEM B LA TFE &)

Percentage of
Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up held by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
AR
G L Y BRARA/ frEERER
KEAR AR BFREEREER FERAER BhEx ARl TEXBREENE
Lu'Yi Ya Shi (Beijing) Trading Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB44,900,000 100% Sales of merchandised goods,
Development Limited liability company Mainland China
REREF (PR BEERARLA hERY EREALR ElER ARE 44,900,007 100% #HEXR  PERH
Quan Tian Property Management Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Provision of property management and
Services Limited liability company tenancy and sub-tenancy services,
Mainland China
FRERNEERRBERAT hEmY ERAAAR BER AR 10,000,007 100% RENFERRRMERERERRS
mE R
San Sparkle (Beijing) International Culture - Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB49,300,000 100% Trading of artwork and provision of
Development Limited (formerly known  liahility company culture and art exchange activities
as Beiling Xiang Fang Business services, Mainland China
Management Limited)'
BRER (PR BB ERARAA  TEMD - AREERA EWER AR 49,300,000 100% EffREANRRHXERTER
(AR RBHEXERARLA) % REMD
Sparkle Roll Oriental (Beijing) Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB40,000,000 100% Trading of branded watches, branded
Trading Development Limited" liability company jewelleries and fine wines and
provision of consultancy services,
Mainland China
BER7 (1) BHERARLA hERY EREALR ElER AR 40,000,007 100% ERF&  ARRERAEESUR
RAAARY - REAY
Tianjin Heng Ying Tai Fu Trading Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB38,700,000 100% Trading of automobiles and related
Development Limited liability company parts and accessories and provision
of after-sales services, Mainland
China
REERRERFERERAA RERY EREALR ElER AR38,700,0007¢ 100% AEREETHREEES N RRH

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ¥ @A R A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. FEMB L RFE @)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Percentage of
Place/country of effective
incorporation/ interest
establishment and Class of Issued/paid-up held by the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity capital held capital Company place of operations
AR
AL/ AL/ BRARA/ e ERER
KEAR AR BEREEREER FERAER BhEx ARl TEXBREENE
Tianjin Xin Chang Tai Fu Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB45,000,000 100% Trading of automobiles and related
Trading Development Limited" liability company parts and accessories and provision
of after-sales services, Mainland
China
RREERERFERERAT hEmY BRAAAR BER AR 45,000,007 100% AERBETHREAESNRREH
ERE - PERM
Richmile (Shanghai) Commerce & Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB10,000,000 100% Trading of branded watches and
Trading Limited" liability company branded jewelleries and provision
of consultancy services, Mainland
China
WE (L) BERRAR hEmY EREAAR AR AR 10,000,007 100% ERFHERAMKEE S RRHES
R wERM
Yang Pu Quan Tian Commercial Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB28,000,000 100% Provision of property management and
Brand Network Services liability company tenancy and sub-tenancy services,
Shares Limited' Mainland China
FREAAZnRBERERNERAR PERY BRAA ElWER AR 28,000,0007% 100% RENFERREERERES -
mE R
Zongauan Youjingge Catering Mainland China, limited Paid-up capital RMB7,000,000 100% Provision of catering services, Mainland
Culture Development Limited" liability company China
IRERERBERERERAA  PEMY ERELLT BYER AR%7,0000007T 100% REEHEHE PAAD
. SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 EBAE R A 7 Z 59

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 4



260

B 75 ¥ & Y

(#&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE—

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

41.

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

i The English names of these subsidiaries established in Mainland
China represent management’s best effort at translating the
Chinese names of these subsidiaries as no official English names
have been registered.

Directly held by the Company

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of year.

SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

There are no subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
interests as at 31 March 2018 and 2019.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 12 # £ @ A R A 7]
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40. FEM B LA TFE &)

41.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 42. ¢ iEMEER A AEITE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of AEEREEXEBBETPERERT
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations. The B AmAXSEEAR ZF2RER
financial risks included market risk (including currency risk, BEMEAR(BEEERAR - FIEER
interest rate risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity LIRERR) - EERR KR ERR
risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s TREREERASEANRE  LHE
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of EEeEHSIEF - EESHER CERE
directors. The overall objectives in managing financial risks BEREREEZRT SRR ZERT -
focus on securing the Group’s short to medium term cash BRASEFRHEZRE RS -

flows by minimising its exposure to financial markets.

It is not the Group’s policy to engage in the trading of financial ABREENESSRMIANIEAEE
instruments for speculative purposes. R o
42.1 Categories of financial instruments 421 €@TEEH
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of EHSRTARBKEHRZETS
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period BT :

are as follows:

2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
Financial assets tRMEE
At fair value: BARE :
Available-for-sale investment AHEEERE - 1,291,321
Financial assets at FVTOCI BARBEFAEMER
WAZ EREE 426,187 =
Investment in films BB 301,832 -
At amortised cost: RSP
Investment in debt securities KEEGES - 440,000
Loans receivables FEUE K = 127,376
Deposits paid for acquisition of W e — Al W 2 AR
a property holding company REIENZEE = 135,802
Rental deposits paid to B — R
a related party Heke 6,989 15,812
Trade receivables FEUE 5 5IE 21,591 5,342
Other receivables H b & W 5IB 130,577 150,841
Amounts due from related parties e U B B 5 TR = 1,729
Pledged deposits [ EPER Y 106,354 91,357
Restricted bank balance SRR AISRTT 4S8R - 5,304
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFRES 185,241 155,650
. SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #3 % 58 2 261
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 42. ¢ miE T B R A AR HEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) ()

il

42.1 Categories of financial instruments (Continued) 421 @I EERI(Z)

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE T FATT
Financial liabilities EHEE
Financial liabilities measured A SHR NGB Z
at amortised cost: TRAE
Trade payables BB S 3IE 80,881 14,501
Accrued charges and other EEtE B K EAM
payables FES R IR 240,047 93,195
Amounts due to non-controlling FET FEVE R i 25 SR
interests 6,639 4,538
Amounts due to related parties JE < A B 7 SR 08 - 2,424
Borrowings BEE 873,881 567,652

42.2 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and Malaysia with most of the transactions denominated
and settled in HK$, DKK, EUR, CHF, RMB and USS$.
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk primarily
arises from certain financial instruments including equity
investment, trade and other receivables, rental deposits
paid to a related party, amounts due from related parties,
cash at banks and in hand, trade and other payables
and borrowings which are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities, including DKK, EUR, CHF, RMB and US$. During
both years, the Group did not have foreign currency
hedging policy but management continuously monitors
foreign exchange exposure.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B3 &EEF R A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

42.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and
financial liabilities, translated into HK$ at the prevailing

2 cRERBEERAIAETE

=)

42.2 HNESEBR (&)

PONEHEZERMEERSRAR
RBERRREFRTERESE

closing rates at the end of the reporting period, are as JT  IREFWOT -
follows:
2019 2018
ZE-NF —N\EF
Financial Financial Net Financial Financial Net
assets liabilities exposure assets liabilities exposure
SREE THMEHE EAERFEE 2SREE 2RBE ERFEHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T THET FTHET FAET T TABT
DKK 25 A 428,202 - 428,202 1,291,321 - 1,291,321
EUR BT 934 (1,166) (232) 24 (3,775) (8,751)
CHF ¥ ORRB 471 - 471 510 - 510
RMB AR 13,788 (148,832) (135,044) 40,970 - 40,970
Us$ ETT 5,831 (501) 5,330 14,842 — 14,842
Sensitive analysis B 5 HF

As US$ is pegged to HK$, the Group does not expect
any significant movement in the HK$/US$ exchange rate.
No sensitivity analysis in respect of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities denominated in US$ is
disclosed as in the opinion of directors of the Company,
such sensitivity analysis does not give additional value in
view of insignificant movement in the US$/HK$ exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group’s results for the years and retained profits
in regards to a 5% (2018: 5%) appreciation in HK$
against DKK, EUR, CHF and RMB respectively. The 5%
is the rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s best assessment of the possible change
in foreign exchange rates.

MAETTEETTHE - Bt - AEEE
BT HETER T GHREMNEAE
B HRARREERA  ERETH
BLERRHERRZEHEN - A%
BAXTIEZEMEEREMABELZ
FREDM AL E|IBHREIMEE - AL
BREABERESN -

TR AN R B E R 2 EE R AR
BaME BT ERE BT it
EBRAREDRIFHES%(—F— \F :
5%) ZBURE - 5% AT EEEAERE
SRR A ﬁﬁi&:‘:ﬂéﬁﬁzmﬁ C WRE
B EHINEE R B RS 2 ZIEMbET -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE-_T—

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 42,

NF=ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

42.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

% @ﬂﬂﬁfﬁaﬂ&’ REFTE

2/

42.2 SRR (2)

Sensitive analysis (Continued) BREZH ()
2019 2018
—E-hF —T\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FATT
DKK FH25 5% BA (21,410) (64,566)
EUR BT 2 145
CHF B R RR (20) (26)
RMB AR 6,752 (2,049)

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period
has been determined based on the assumed percentage
changes in foreign currency exchange rates taking place
at the beginning of the financial years and held constant
throughout the year.

A 5% depreciation in HK$ against DKK, EUR, CHF and
RMB would have the same magnitude on the Group’s
results for the year and retained profits but of opposite
effect.

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the
year depending on the volume of overseas transactions.
Nevertheless, the analysis above is considered to be
representative of the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ¥ @A R A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 42. ¢ RiElMEEB R AAEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (&)

42.3 Interest rate risk 42.3 FIZ=mE

AEBEZMERRTERARITH
K EE27) REE (FIFE32) « &
SEYEEREMITETRGNY
MREFEEE - AREBEFHRITE
RN EELERTE - FRITFER
ZHNRBERAS TS HLEBALD -
AR R B S 6 BT B IR N R mL e 2 B

policy to manage the interest rate risk. ®e

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
deposits (Note 27) and borrowings (Note 32). The Group
has not used any derivative contracts in order to hedge
its exposure to interest rate risk. The Group does not
anticipate significant impact to bank deposits because
the interest rates of bank deposits are not expected to
change significantly. The Group has not formulated a

The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by AKBEZHRFREEEBER -

management is set out in below: WEFIEAT -
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
Amount Amount
k| G-
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHTT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEEE
Borrowings BEe 826,399 439,998
Variable rate borrowings: FEMEE
Borrowings BEe 47,482 127,654

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
for variable rate borrowings at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the stipulated
changes taking place at the beginning of the financial
year and held constant throughout the reporting period.
A 50 basis points increase or decrease is used which
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

THBRE ST RIFREARFR
BEMNBReRENEZRARMERTE -
DT TR IRENE BB EFE
P E - WHERERSHAES
P& o BAB0ER LT T IRRE
TERENENEENKRES) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

42.3 Interest rate risk (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit after taxation for the year ended 31 March 2019
would decrease/increase by approximately HK$178,000
(2018: HK$479,000).

42.4 Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as available-for-sale
investment as at 31 March 2018 and financial assets at
FVTOCI as at 31 March 2019.

The management would manage its exposure arising
from the investment by closely monitoring the
performance of the respective equity investments and
market conditions.

At 31 March 2019, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 5% in the market price of this listed equity
securities, with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group’s fair value
reserve (other components of consolidated equity)
by approximately HK$21,309,000 (31 March 2018:
HK$64,566,000).

42.5 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risks
are primarily attributable to trade and other receivables,
amounts due from related parties, pledged deposits,
restricted bank balances and cash at banks and in hand.
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 %= E AR A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 42. ﬁ ﬂﬂ[@*f@& REFTE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (#&)

42.5 Credit risk (Continued) 425 EERK(Z)

The management of the Group considers pledged
deposits, restricted bank balances and cash at banks
and in hand that are deposited with state-owned banks
or financial institutions with high credit rating to be low
credit risk financial assets. In addition, trade receivables
in connection with bills settled through payment
platforms such as Unionpay, Alipay or WeChat Pay are
also with high credit rating and no past due history.
The management of the Group considers these assets
are short-term in nature and the probability of default
is negligible on the basis of high-credit-rating issuers
as at 31 March 2019. In respect of rental receivables,
sufficient rental deposits from tenants are held to cover
potential exposure to credit risk. Further, evaluations
are made for the customers with reference to their
repayment history and financial strength, as well as the
economic environment in which the customer operates.
Accordingly, no loss allowance was recognised as at 31
March 2019.

The Group has credit risk on amounts due from related
parties as at 31 March 2019. The management of
the Group has made periodic assessments as well
as individual assessment on recoverability based on
historical settlement records and adjusts for forward-
looking information. In view of the strong financial
capability of these related parties and considered the
future prospects of the industry in which these related
parties operate, the management of the Group does not
consider there is a risk of default and does not expect
any losses from non-performance by these related
parties, and accordingly, no impairment was recognised
in respect of the amounts due from related parties.

AEBERERRTFHNEETR
ReNBEERITHSHEENDIE
ER - ZRBIRITAERA RIRTT
EAFEResREEERRERE
EE o BEAN - BUEBINIREE - XN E
FHEXNEINTFEEENRE
ERNEKRESFIATAESEE
AR R B EE - AEEER
ERB/ZEEERRRPEE MIRE
BITAR_ZE-NF=A=1+—H
K= 5 B RF AR R H) AT RE1E IR K
ERHERKERE  EABHH
HFHESRENEREENEER
@ o AN AEBTRE2ERERZ
BRELRMBES - UREFH
EEI’JZ“%i&iRﬁﬁVFﬁuHE Ilit
REERAE -
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B 15 B R 5 e W B B 75 SRR o K
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 42. ¢ miE T B R A AR HEE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

42.5

42.6

Credit risk (Continued)

In determining the ECL for other receivables, the
management of the Group has taken into account
the historical default experience and forward-looking
information, as appropriate, and concluded that
credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding other
receivables is insignificant. The management of the
Group has assessed that other receivables have not had
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and risk of default is insignificant, and therefore, no
impairment has been recognised.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and its
financing obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group’s objective is to maintain an
appropriate level of liquid assets and committed lines of
funding to meet its liability requirements in the short and
longer term.

The Group manages the liquidity needs on a consolidated
basis by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing
payments for long term financial liabilities as well as
forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day to day
business.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for the non-derivative financial liabilities at
the end of the reporting period. When the creditor has
a choice of when the liability is settled, the liability is
included on the basis of the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Where the settlement of
the liability is in instalments, each instalment is allocated
to the earliest period in which the Group is committed to

pay.

The analysis is based on the undiscounted cash flows of
the financial liabilities.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 23 &EEH R A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 42. ¢ i EER A AEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (=)

42.6 FTEIMERE ()
42.6 Liquidity risk (Continued) o Niald

Total Less than
contractual  one year or
Carrying undiscounted repayable One year
amount cash flow  on demand or above
BHRER PR-FH
RHEE HeREAR REXREE —FHuE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
TR TR TR TAT
At 31 March 2019 RZB-n¥
=ZA=t-H
Non-derivative financial FTESBMIA
instruments:
Trade payables EREZRE 80,881 80,881 80,881 -
Accrued charges and other EstER R Et A FE
payables 240,047 240,047 240,047 -
Amounts due to non-controlling JEfJEiERERFE
interests 6,639 6,639 6,639 -
Borrowings B8 873,881 932,924 635,984 296,940
1,201,448 1,260,491 963,551 296,940
At 31 March 2018 RZZ-N\¥
=R=t-H
Non-derivative financial FTESRIE
instruments:
Trade payables BB 550 14,501 14,501 14,501 =
Accrued charges and other e B R R H R 508
payables 93,195 93,195 92,891 304
Amounts due to non-controlling e IR R R T A
interests 4,538 4,538 4,538 -
Amounts due to related parties FEfI BARE /7 500R 2,424 2,424 2,424 -
Borrowings EE 567,652 572,002 572,002 -
682,310 686,660 686,356 304
. SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED #2345 2 269

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 4



B ¥ AR My EE ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 42. ¢ miE T B R A AR HEE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

42.7 Fair value measurements

(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” categorises
fair value measurements into a three-level hierarchy.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

/435 )
(#5/

il

42,7 RREFE

()

BAAETBZEZMTA

DN EZR

EFRUBHRELNF13H A
REFEIREAREFELZ
EMOR=TAZH - REM
BREMERBAERS A
ERMNEBEENELNATS

A -

o FMEHE: AFE-K
BAEEZRR
BIAEREELBER
FAERAEERMISTH
RARREAE

o FMEE: AFE=H
BAEFEZAAE
BIE & A I BET
WARME —RBAE
BES2HAEBELTE
ATABRZHE - T
ABRsBABRYE
MIZRBRIERE 28
AfE

o  FE=ZMHHE: EATA
BERBBFERHAE

U222 RE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

-4 -8 =8 -

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT AT THTL THT
At 31 March 2019 R=Z-n&=A=1+-H

Financial assets SREE

Financial assets at FVTOCI BAREFALMZERA

LEREE 426,187 - - 426,187

Investment in films REATY - - 301,832 301,832

Z 7 O SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2 £ @A R A °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

BE_T—

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

42.7 Fair value measurements (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Group’s contingent considerations are
further detailed in Notes 24 and 44(b), and their
measurements fall into Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy described above.

At 31 March 2018, the only financial instrument
of the Group carried at fair value was listed equity
securities of approximately HK$1,291,321,000
listed in Denmark (Note 20(b)). These instruments
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and
their fair value measurements fall into Level 1 of the
fair value hierarchy described above.

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2019,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
in which they occur.

Fair value of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets and
liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2018 and 2019.

NEF=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

2 cRERBEERAIAETE

(&)

42.7 7

(i)

AEFEE)

BAABEFTEZZ@MTA

A EER (B)

REBRNSHARERHE24
K ad(p)E— 2l - mHET
EHEBREXFMARE
ERME=M -

RZE—NF=ZA=+—
H A&EEHE—MUAREBEA
RzemITEARNAELT
Z ETRRANE % (175 20(b))
471,291,321,000/8 7T ° %5
SMTATHUQAABED
STEW IR EREIIVESE —
g&o

BE_ZT-N\FR-_ZT—A
E—ﬂ—+—5¢¢7'%
—REFE _RzEAEE

B NEEE=ZREALE
He REBZERRERBNEE
BRoHENRERLAE
BRMzEH -

WHURAREGTEHZHT
AHAE

AEBERZZE—NER=F
—NE=ZA=+—HEKAR
BRI R CEEREA
BHEEER 2 ANREBELRE
BAER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

43. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 43. EXERE

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is
to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the year.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total debt divided by total capital. Total debt is calculated
as borrowings, as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Total capital is calculated as total equity, as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level.

ARBEXREE T ERRRRERS
S SRRV S 3 A N
PAKRFEL 7 REBCRBER AL

ARBRBEEERNCBLEERER
REUHEELRE RERFIHEER
AR ARSI AAERBRRIKNZ
BB MRRFEEALHEITHD o
RAFEE  AEEZBE  HERHEF
W o

AEBERBERNE B X (AMEHAREG
B @R EEER - ERERTRE
i8> THRNEABHARRERA -
BREBDREREEAE  YERE
AUMBRRBERA - FEEZBRRE
BARGELERERE—EAEKYEL-

2019 2018
—E-NF —T—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET AT

Total debt BERALE
Borrowings Eps 873,881 567,652
Total capital BB 2,373,194 3,023,180
Gearing ratio BARBEL X 36.8% 18.8%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

44. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(a)

Acquisition of t FEREEHEERLBREEGR LT
(“ZQYJG”)

During the year, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement for the acquisition of 100% of the
equity interest in ZQYJG, which is principally engaged
in provision of catering services in the PRC, at a
purchase consideration of RMB7,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$8,046,000) which has been settled by
cash.

Acquisition-related costs have been excluded from the
consideration transferred. The costs were insignificant
and have been expensed and are included in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

The fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary as at the date of acquisition and the goodwill
arising therefrom were as follows:

44, ¥EEEHF

() WBARERERBERCEE
BARAB((HFRERE])

FRN - AEBFLBEEHE - LWIKREBIR
RAEEE100% KA - BEREDOA
R #7,000,0007T (16 & 7 £)8,046,0007%
L) LHREKE  ZRRAETERPEH
RIEERIRTS -

WERBARACHBEMBRNKE
Sh e AL AEXN - WE XA+ 5HAL
BEEBAREN [TTHRER]I A -

MEARNKERRNAIRREERE
BERAKELEZEEZAAEBELT

Fair value at date
of acquisition

RIKE BBz ARE

HK$’'000

FAT

Property, plant and equipment L YN 8,902
Inventories rE 32
Trade receivables FEW R 5318 288
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 2% - Y88 FIE K H fib & U 5008 1,079
Cash at banks and in hand MITRFHERS 6,007
Trade payables FE B SRR (2,406)
Accruals and other payables FEFT SR IE K B A RS FUIR (8,043)
Amounts due to related companies FETERs A (100)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value INARBEFEMNAHREEFERTE 5,759
Goodwill SRS 2,287
Satisfied by cash AT & A+ 8,046
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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NE=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

44. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(a)

Acquisition of t AR ERHEESR NI EEBR L
(“ZQYJG”) (Continued)

The fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
approximated the gross contractual amounts.

The goodwill arose in the above acquisition because the
consideration included benefit of enhancing the sales
channels of fine wines through the two restaurants and
the chain of other restaurants under the same brand.

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition

44, (S8t 2

() WBAIRERERBERCEE
BRAR ((HRRERME])) (&)

B EERMAEEBEZARERS
HIMERRE o

AW BELRE  AARERREES
ERENERMETEMERNER
RIBENHERS -

ERZBEEENEEB TSI -

ERARBE-FNBARZEEREST

is as follows: (NN
HK$’000
T
Cash consideration paid FriZ fIIRESKE (8,046)
Cash at banks and in hand RITMFHERS 6,007
Net cash outflows R FEE (2,039)

Since the acquisition, the acquired business contributed
revenue of approximately HK$14,832,000 and loss of
approximately HK$868,000 to the Group’s consolidated
profit for the year ended 31 March 2019.

The Group’s revenue and profit would have been
increased by approximately HK$28,387,000 and
HK$5,726,000 respectively for the period if the
acquisition had been completed on 1 April 2018. This
pro forma information is for illustrative purpose only and
is not necessarily indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 April
2018 nor is it intended for projection of future results.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED B3 &EEF R A
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BUWEEERE  FINBEEALEEE

—NWE=A=+—HIEFENLR
B BB E 4) 5 14,832,000 7T &
E518 49745 868,000 /8 7T °

HKBER T N\FHOA—B %K
9'J$EIzﬂ;ﬁﬂqﬂﬁm&mﬂﬂ‘”‘%ﬂi“bﬂ
#728,387,000 % 7T % 5,726,000/ 7T °
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44. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of Reliable Intelligence International
Limited (“RII”) and its subsidiaries (together the “RlI

NEF=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

44, ¥ 6t#)

(b)

BWREEBERAERQAA(FEE
RO REKBEAR (SR EEEER

Group”)

During the year, the Group has entered into an equity
transfer agreement in relation to the acquisition of the F5
entire equity interest of RIl from an independent third
party. Further details of the transaction were set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 25 June 2018.

The purchase consideration of RMB428,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$497,674,000) has been

SEE )

FA-ARERBBLE=TWE
B 22 BRI HE R] 3L AR AR S8 AR 17
& ARG E—FFHBEHRAE
ARABBHA—ZE-—N\FEARA=-tH
Bz o

BERE AR 428,000,0007T (49
£8497,674,00058 7T ) EAE AR S

settled by cash. %=
The fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities of the RUrEE Qo R E > a7
RII Group as at the date of acquisition and the goodwill EBELAEBELREMEEZEEZ N
arising therefrom were as follows: REWT -
Fair value at date
of acquisition
RBERHZARE
HK$’000
T
Property, plant and equipment YIZ - HES R 18
Other intangible assets Ei\{‘@?ﬁﬁfé?ﬁ 413,211
Trade receivables EWE S 7,194
Deposits, prepayments and e Tﬁ%ﬂ(mlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfgﬂﬁzm
other receivables 74,448
Cash at banks and in hand RIT K FHERE 15,912
Trade payables B E S0 (10,738)
Accruals and other payables J?Eah%)ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%’\lﬁ (88,155)
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE (103,303)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BARBZEBNEEEFE 308,587
Goodwill EE= 189,087
Satisfied by cash IR e 497,674

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 23 % B A R A A
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44. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of Reliable Intelligence International
Limited (“RlI”) and its subsidiaries (together the “RII

Group”) (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs of HK$22,659,000 have been
charged to administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the year

ended 31 March 2019.

The goodwill arose in the above acquisition because
the consideration included benefits of future market
development of the Group and synergies on retail store
expansion. These benefits are not recognised separately
from goodwill because they do not meet the recognition

criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisitions is

expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition

is as follows:

NFE=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

44, (856t

(b)

BWREEBEBRAERQAA(FEE
BROREKBAR (SB[ EEEEKR
&m)) (%)

Wi AR RERC 2 22,659,000/8 L E B
BE_T-NF=ZA=t+—HLF
BEZEE2EBABRRZITRER
MFORR -

BRWEEERE  AARERR

AEBARKRTGHRLTEERR

Z i EIRERRRA o S FR A AR

BEEEERER  AREEITA
A BRI B B 2 IR

BERZKRBMELENEE TS
B o

BRMBNESREZANMT

HK$’000

T

Cash consideration paid BEBRENRE (497,674)
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFHERE 15,912
Net cash outflows B &R F5 (481,762)

Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement, the vendor
shall compensate the Group if the RIl Group fails to
meet the aggregated guaranteed operating profit after
tax for the years ended 31 March 2019, 2020 and 2021
with reference to a formula as stipulated in the equity
transfer agreement. The Group accounted for such profit
guarantee as contingent consideration. The fair values of
the contingent consideration as at the date of acquisition
and 31 March 2019 were assessed to be minimal with
reference to valuation performed by an independent firm

of professionally qualified valuers.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED % @A R A
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NEF=ZA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2019
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44. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Acquisition of Reliable Intelligence International
Limited (“RlI”) and its subsidiaries (together the “RII
Group”) (Continued)

Since the acquisition, the acquired business contributed
revenue of approximately HK$81,982,000 and profit
of approximately HK$51,681,000 to the Group’s
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 March 2019.

The Group’s revenue and profit would have been
increased by approximately HK$119,498,000 and
HK$69,154,000 respectively for the period if the
acquisition had been completed on 1 April 2018. This
pro forma information is for illustrative purpose only and
is not necessarily indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 April
2018 nor is intended for projection of future results.

Acquisition of Beijing Mu Tai Air Ticketing Agent
Company Limited (1t ZARMEREERAF)

In April 2017, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement for the acquisition of 70% of the equity
interest in Beijing Mu Tai Air Ticketing Agent Company
Limited (t RARM=RBFR A F)) subsequently
renamed as Beijing Sparkle Roll Men Dao Men Airline
Agency Limited (1t RRHFIR|FIMMEZHKIEAR A A]),
which is principally engaged in acting as a travel agent
for sale of air tickets in Mainland China, at a purchase
consideration of approximately HK$1,221,000 by cash.

Acquisition-related costs had been excluded from the
consideration transferred. The costs were insignificant
and had been expensed and were included in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

44, ¥ 6t#)

(b)

(c)

BWREEBEBRAERQAA(FEE
BROREKBAR (SR EEEEKR
&m)) (%)

HRWE BEWEEBERAEER
BHE_ZT-NF=A=1+—HLF
E B B EE4981,982,0008 7T M i
A#751,681,00078 7T °

WEBER=ZE—N\FEA—HZ
BX B AR S B 2 B A U 5 & s F)
15 5 B 11 #9 119,498,000 7 7T &
69,154,000/ 7T ° % B % & £HE

55 BA g R T BEFE 9 R il I
BER=ZZT—\FNA—HREK "
NEE ] B ER 2 W RS 2
B S RERKREE 2TEA -

WIB L UM ZE R AR A F

R-ZE—tFWA  AEEFT
EEmaE AEBILRATMZE
RAEARDE (RENE /I RE
HPFPIMERBEREERAA)

T0% A  REBERELY
1,221,000/8 7T * Z 2R ABEEH

=5 6 B K B i A IR
7 o

TR

WiERBEKAE B EEBRAESH
B e RAALTERNRE X HKRETA
RAEmRERA [T
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

44. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(c)

Acquisition of Beijing Mu Tai Air Ticketing Agent
Company Limited (A R AEZEMER K ER 2 7))
(Continued)

The fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities of the
acquired subsidiary as at the date of acquisition were as

44. (%SGt #)
€ WBLESARMERBEERA T
(4%)

RIS B EIE BB A R AT R
BENRABNRAEDT

follows:
Fair value at date
of acquisition
RUWBEREZARE
HK$’000
FHETT
Prepayments and other receivables T8 20 3k T8 I B A FE U IR 1,689
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFHERS 71
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R E MR (9)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BARBZEBNEEEFE 1,751
Non-controlling interest IEIE R o (5630)
Satisfied by cash AR & 2 A5 1,221

The fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
approximated the gross contractual amounts.
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HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

44. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

44, ¥ 6t#)

Acquisition of Beijing Mu Tai Air Ticketing Agent
Company Limited (A ZRAEZMER K ER 2 7))
(Continued)

No goodwill was recognised in the acquisition as the
purchase consideration approximated to fair value of the
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition
of the subsidiary is as follows:

(c)

WL TAFEMERBERLD
(&)

ARBEREBEEKBEEFER
EAEREAAERE - BERK
BEREIRE -

EHREHBATNRS TR
T -

HK$’000

FHETT

Cash consideration HE&KE (1,221)
Cash at banks and in hand RIT A FERE 71
Net cash outflows Rt F5E (1,150)

Since the acquisition, the acquired business contributed
loss of HK$366,000 to the Group’s consolidated profit
for the year ended 31 March 2018.

There would have been no material impact on the
Group’s revenue and profit for the period if the
acquisition had been completed on 1 April 2017 as the
acquisition was completed in the same month.

BRKE - CRBEBRARE
BT N\F=ZA=T—HILFE
#7645 M B BRE 18 366,000 78 7T

HEBER—_T—tFMA—B%
P - B ARG B A A M e Bk A R
EXFE AREBERFEAR
}jﬁ o
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45. LITIGATIONS 45.

NE=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group was involved
in two lawsuits and claims, all of which related to disputes over
the sale and purchase agreements on automobiles with its
customers, and all were final and concluded. References were
made to the Company’s announcements dated 3 October
2017, 17 November 2017, 19 December 2017, 3 April 2018
and 28 December 2018 in relation to the first litigation against
a subsidiary of the Company, namely Tianjin Xin Chang Tai Fu
Trading Development Limited* (K2EEHFEEFLEERA
al) (“TJXC”) (the “First Litigation”) and 12 October 2017,
17 November 2017, 29 December 2017 and 10 July 2018 in
relation to the second litigation against TUXC (defined as the
“Third Litigation” in the Company’s announcements).

In respect of the First Litigation, after the retrial of the First
Litigation, the Jinghai District People’s Court of Tianjin City*
(REMEFEE ARART) handed down a judgement on 19
March 2018, which reinstated the judgement of the First
Litigation. On 30 March 2018, TJXC filed an appeal application
to the First Intermediate People’s Court of Tianjin City* (X)E

— A A RJART) against the above appeal judgement. TUXC
and the plaintiff had reached a settlement on 20 December
2018, the plaintiff made an application to the Jinghai District
People’s Court of Tianjin City and it was ordered that the
previous freeze order against TUXC be dismissed.

On the same day, the plaintiff requested for withdrawal of all
claims in the First Litigation, the First Intermediate People’s
Court of Tianjin City handed down a judgement, and ordered
that, among others, (1) the appeal judgement be revoked; (2)
the plaintiff’s withdrawal of all claims in the First Litigation be
permitted; and (3) the plaintiff shall bear the litigation fee for the
first hearing and the retrial of the First Litigation.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 23 &EEF R A
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NE=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2019

45. LITIGATIONS (Continued)

In respect of the Third Litigation, TUJXC had received a
judgement handed down by the Jinnan District People’s Court
of Tianjin City* (K& EmME ARERT) dated 28 September
2017. On 12 October 2017, TJXC filed an appeal application
to the Second Intermediate People’s Court of Tianjin City* (X
RS - R ARER) against the judgement of the Third
Litigation. After the appeal hearing, the Second Intermediate
People’s Court of Tianjin City handed down a judgement on
4 July 2018; and held that, among others, (1) the sales and
purchase contract is rescinded; (2) the plaintiff shall return the
purchased goods to TJXC within 5 days after the judgement
becomes effective; (3) TUXC shall pay to the plaintiff a sum
of RMB8,520,000 as liquidated damages within 5 days after
the judgement becomes effective; (4) TJXC shall return the
purchase price in the sum of RMB2,300,000 to the plaintiff
within 5 days after the appeal judgement becomes effective;
and (5) the plaintiff’s other claims made in the first trial be
dismissed.

As advised by the Group’s PRC legal advisers, the above
judgements are final and binding on the parties involved in the
First and Third Litigations. The Group recorded the provision
in other expenses of approximately HK$13 million in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 March 2018 in relation to the probable liquidated
damages for the First and Third Litigations. The Group fully
settled the related expenses during the year ended 31 March
2019, and the above litigations were final and concluded.

* For identification purposes only

45. 3

AR Rl (1)

REZHHFRAME @ AEESWE K
*iﬁEAﬁiﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁ:?—t
FRAZTNBBHR - RZT—+F
TATZR  REEERE =IBHFAD
FRAREME_FRARERER £
R o LIFRAE  REME_PR
ARZERERZZ—N\FL AMHABEMHH
R AR(ERERE) : ()EESRER
3 QREABRHAREMES A ARE
RECEEEENE®D Q)X EEEA
RHERERE S ARRRS AL A LA
R¥8,520,000 TIERIBERE : (4)K2E
EEAN EFHREREBSBRNRERSE
ABEEA L ARK2,300,0007T : &(5)
BEREAR—BEFREMNEMER -

BAEBTBREZEMSEN  LFH
ARBTAHERREE -—BRE=ZIFF
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 46.
THE COMPANY

ENNCI AL 3 O

2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT TFATT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets IERENEEE
Interests in subsidiaries R BRE 2 10 10
10 10
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG E 1,949,243 1,951,207
Cash at banks RITHE L 9,969 3,302
1,959,212 1,954,509
Current liabilities mBEE
Accrued charges and other payables  [E&T & R H fh B~ 5508 1,608 1,313
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEST MY B A | 5kI8 - 42,437
1,608 43,750
Net current assets REEESE 1,957,604 1,910,759
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERRBAR 1,957,614 1,910,769
Net assets EEFE 1,957,614 1,910,769
EQUITY e
Share capital R& 7R 9,999 9,882
Reserves = 1,947,615 1,900,887
1,957,614 1,910,769

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
28 June 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Zheng Hao Jiang

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 23 &EEF R A
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Zhao Xiaodong
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Director
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

HE-_Z—NWF=ZA=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2019

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 46. XX R 2 B #AR Rz (&)

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Share Capital ~ Contributed  Exchange Other  Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve losses Total
RitaE EAG% N HERE A& 2R it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000
TEL ThL TEL TET THL TEL TET
A1 Api 2017 N-2-t5mA-A 1423 358 810 58 18 (661G 1483055
Changes in equity in 2018; - \FEGEY:
Loss for the year AEERR - - - - - (15,609) (15,609)
Other comprehensive income E2ERA
Share of other comprehensive income AM-BRERALBRERA
of an associate - - - - (5,270) - (5,270)
Reclassffication adjustments upon REENEN-BREATRER
deemed disposal of investment LENNERE
in an associate - - - (5,874) 5,305 - (619
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ REE2EWALE - - - (5,874) 85 (15,609) (21,39)
Placing of shares BERR 439,245 - - - - - 439,245
Reduction of share premium EIERIEE (500,000 - 500,000 - - - -
Elimination of contributed surplus against M ARBERAARZHER
accumulated losses of the Company - - (88,818) - - 88,818 -
Share of other reserve of an associate AM-EBEAT RS - - - - (15) - (15)
Derecognition of other reserves upon W%ﬁ’i N
deemed disposal of an associate Rt - - - - (188) 188 -
At 31 March and 1 April 2018 RZE-\E=f=1-H
REA-A 1,421,488 3,508 491,312 - - (15,421) 1,900,887
Changes in eouity in 2019: S-NERRAY
Loss for the year MEE& # - - - = = (21,322) (21,32)
Other comprehensive income E2EMA - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AEE2EMALE - - - - = (21,822)  (21,822)
Repurchase of shares BERA - - (84,270) - - - (84,270)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEREAF 152,320 - - - - - 152,320
At 31 March 2019 RZE-hE=A=1-A 1,573,808 3,508 407,042 - - (36,743 1,947,615

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 2B B R A7
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Financial Summary

RESULTS E 4
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
= s e = T ST
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FAET T THBL FABL TER
Revenue Wizs 2,605,701 2,376,904 2,781,222 2,893,052 3,724,845
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable "2 E#% B AFEG
to owners of the Company KEEHRF/(B1B) (455,685) (32,328) 87,845 664,565 97,429
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
0% ZE—RE B o3 —T-N\E “E-hE§
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FAT TAT FHT T THT
Total assets BEE 2,410,514 1,735,506 2,366,334 3,907,033 3,933,651
Total liabilities BwaE (1,280,169) (651,780) (578,507) (883,853)  (1,560,457)
1,130,345 1,083,726 1,787,827 3,023,180 2,373,194
Equity attributable to owners AREEA AELES
of the Company 1,112,564 1,056,178 1,773,994 3,006,150 2,366,637
Non-controlling interests FEfE R 17,781 27,548 13,833 17,030 6,557
1,130,345 1,083,726 1,787,827 3,023,180 2,373,194

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED 23 & EF R A
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